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26" JANUARY 2024 REPUBLIC DAY

TUre fEad, 2024 & SEWR W, AR e (fom) o
T R A ATHEY 3 1Tl S § TP S Bet 3R
AT THTE, ITRE AR BT e, THEd &
ol ST gRI IS BT FHigroT o |

On the occasion of Republic Day, 2024, Hon'ble Director
(Finance) Shri S.C. Das unfurls the National Flag at
Gandbhi Field in Namrup and inspected the parade by
CISF Unit, Vanguard and School students from Kendriya
Vidyalay, Namrup.

?{\ W, Irm'rﬁwair‘?l%% (?T)ng
T I Y AHEY
= HeT H T el BekE SR

| before the Mahatma
Gandhi statue on the
occasion of Republic Day,
2024.

A GY. 3. S1fereh T AT A Hiq anfes fafvre e &
TR TR Bl FHToT- O e i g |
Smt. Mitu Banik, wife of Shri P.K. Banik, handing over

certificates to the participants who won the various
programmes.
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NAMO DRONE DIDI — A HISTORIC EVENT — 11™ MARCH 2024

ot Jifew TTe,
Treet ATIBRI, A famT,
Shri Robin Gangte TSI 41 % 58 X 3T Y
Y ' Shri Satyajeet Misra,
Nodal Officer, Dept. of Fertilizer, General Manager (Marketing) BVECL,
emphasizing Women Empowerment highlighting the benefits of Namo Drone Didi Scheme

and the vision of our Hon'ble Prime Minister

AATHTA GRT TUHEISIRSNTH, TaETeIel (STRUTerai) & 22 HITH R0%% BT T S I B SN T iy S|

AMHA18 TASIS! Bl BV S ISTH BT UTLIT0T f&am | Handing over of Agricultural Drones to Namo Drone
Agri Drone flying training provided by BVFCL to Didis on 11th March 2024

designated 18 NDDs at AMTRON, Guwahati (RPTO)

i, s (S &+
TYRI) TH ;=E|=r Sifgar®
. } Shri PK. Bamk (CMD *
I/C) handing over of
Drones to Namo Drone
Didis
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T2 uerEt srmuria SR 3T s fAEEr it i e
INSTALLATION OF NEW PLC BASED BAGGING & WEIGHING CONTROL SYSTEM

ﬁmmm%ﬁmﬁww&ﬂémamﬁm%aﬁ?%ﬁﬂmﬁwﬁw
gﬁfi]ﬁmw 2 | TG I HUTTeAT SIS T STDTeiel B! § SR VG STSTYE b ToTq el bl Goaaredd s g |
The newly installation of new PLC based bagging & weighing control system enhances efficiency and ensures
quality control in the packaging process. This advanced system optimizes production and streamlines
operations for better output.

Hiek f$eT / MOCK DRILL

U g S

by 1BV 8V Q&U ».f
&

TSI TSR & S 3ieR- Waﬁm%ﬁq@maﬁ?aﬁwmwméﬁﬁmmﬁm@w
T U Uit [$e1 BT SRS b1 TR |

A mock drill was conducted at BVFCL Namrup by CISF and the fire & safety team BVFCL to check inter-co
ordination among agencies.

oy uaterur feaw 05 519 2024 / WORLD ENVIRONMENT DAY 05 JUNE 2024

A 0T I, ‘eﬁ@@wﬁ)
W ot % o sﬁmﬁ?ﬁ Bl
Iufeafe & fay gamae feaa & |
I I U o1 |
@ A glimpse of Celebration of World
B Fryironment Day in the presence
of Shri P.X. Banik, (CMD1/C), Shri
S.C. Das, Director (Finance) and
other Officials.of the Company.
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%ﬁg@ﬁﬁiﬁgmﬁrm FTEUTY, 3T, t@auﬁwwwmﬁmmwgﬁm Fiewe giEer 3 05.06 2024@
NI BT ERT BT | NS BT T e T U THIE 9o STfeid @1 178 | Sri Mukhmeet Singh Bhatia,

IAS, Chairman, National Authority Chemical Weapons Convention, Cabinet Secretariat visited BVFCL on
05.06.2024 A review meeting was held at BVFCL Conference Hall.

21 S 2024 STERTSE T f&a® / 21ST JUNE 2024 INTERNATIONAL YOGA DAY

YUY 3. FTT+eh (T eI &Y Td TeT FHeeTeh) Ud U1 b 31T SITHIeh1a bl SUTe il H AT {[Gad THRIE 1 U 31e1ab |
A glimpse of Yoga Day Celebration in the presence of Shri P K. Banik, (CMD I/C) and Other Officials of the
Company.

ufee fead 09 3T 2024 / WOMEN'S DAY 09 AUG 2024

FATHTA ATHEY B Gl fad TuRIg &l U il |

A glimpse of celebration of Women's Day at BVFCL Namrup.
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15 3T Te=dT fea® / 15TH AUGUST INDEPENDENCE DAY

A glimpse of Independence Day Celebration, 15th August 2024,

HINDI DIWAS — HINDI ADHIKARI VISIT

01-09-2024 ¥ 14-09-2024 % SIGITHLIS ATHET § FH1Y ST Tel Teal UEaTe Sl U el | $3 3T6ER W g HAldd
b TENIS M, 4 WL 919 A.12-09-2024 &) S UhEITe YRR $1 411 fbam 3R S sreaener o3 Ues I fera
A glimpse of Hindi Pakhwada celebrated.in BVFCL Namrup from:01-09-2024 to 14-09-2024. On this occasion; Shri

Bhaskar Babu, Assistant Director, Ministry of Home Affairs visited the BVFCL premises on 12-09-2024 and took a session
onHindi Karyashala.
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TR ISTHTYT HRATEA THAfd, gioRTee gRr agy 2023-24 & R

| ST & IHT USRI & (ol SATUHEITe Bl "3 JSTHTNT TEBR
JISHT" & SAUTd Jaid YEHR " STet THI ATV Sies” T TR
Topar |

{ BVFCL was awarded the third prize "Oil Narakas Rajbhasha Shield”
.| under the "Oil Rajbhasha Puraskar Yojana" for excellent
performance of official language during the year 2023-24 by the
Town Official Language Implementation Committee, Duliajan.

"SI TTA HHR (WY, A1 Hod, 3@ [aHHT412.09.2024 &1
AN BT TRER BT ST BT | A SIS 3R s ()
IR HAL: GATITHE SR B S B TEHA GRS (A BIE)
FHHTIENT 36T | NS TR T T T 8l & U THIgT 8 8%
AR H TS | doth & 18, I8 G UHY T ST SRS
e IR an”

~ /| ""Shri Rajat Kumar Mishra, Hon'ble Secretary, DoF, visited
: | the BVFCL premises on 12.09.2024. The Hon'ble CMD and
| Director (Finance) welcomed him with a Phulon Gamocha
and a wooden carved Rhinoceros (Pride of Assam),
respectively. A review meeting was held at the Conference Hall of BVECL. Following the meeting, he visited the BVFCL
production and bagging site.”
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TISTAT SATATH 02 3TFear 2024 / SWACHTA ABHIYAN 02ND OCTOBER 2024

ol aﬁm:ru'{ 2024%@31?@ W?ﬂ@@ﬁmﬁ%aﬁmﬁa‘r%mﬁﬁwﬁﬁaﬁmmw
PIe AR FIg A B, E BT T T o [o01Q 3Tl FATe febalm

A glimpse of cleanliness drives 2024 on Swachta Abhiyan. Hon'ble CMD joined the Officials of the Company
who kicked off the day with grass cutting & brooming, working tirelessly to make the village cleaner

AT 3R & T 2024 / TREE PLANTATION AND DISTRIBUTION 2024

2 s b | iy GECATRRT 5 IRE A i i Hx = : : S o
A WA 8 faRka #2d gu, aks afRer 18 ema gu, JamRIavr siaarg IRedq & fues, S faferar &
TTET 37 R TATERONT FRRAT bl 531 H HEedqyol YiHiehT Mwrar g1
The Hon'ble CMD distributing tree saplings, while senior officials plant them, as tree plantations play a crucial

role in combating climate change, promoting biodiversity, and enhancing environmental sustainability.
DIWALI 2024

éﬁﬁuw&ﬁqauﬁa?frﬁaﬁzomwﬂgaﬁww

A glimpse of Diwali 2024 Celebration'at BVFCL premises
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TeAehdl ARl THTE 2024 / VIGILANCE AWARENESS WEEK 2024

¥ At ARG - 0
acree VIGIANCE MBS Ve 2 !

ARG

i VIGlLMICE AWAREN|
2 TeFe! Gl
fors - WA R

S i Theme: “Cultu \‘&fn'

2810.2024 ¥ 03.11.2024 % SATTHATe ATHET H TATY ST dTel AT STTEhAT TS i U ST | 59

TR TR A T TH. UTe, Tatell, SUhEITe 3 SiaIUhETe TRER ST GRT fhaT 3R W= TgHs! gRy 3
T BT TR AT Haidhd! STEhal R U T SR 1947 7T |

A glimpse of Vigilance Awareness week celebrated in BVFCL Namrup from 28.10.2024 to 03.11.2024. On this

occasion Shri L.M. Pandey, CVO BVECL, visited the BVFCL premises and welcomed by Hon'ble CMD and a

session on Vigilance awareness was held.

TSI |TETReR Hgld BISeIH 2024
NATIONAL FOUNDATION FOR COMMUNAL HARMONY 2024

TR Tgid % iy APTT TATAT 2024 1 S8 GG % s ThelT, Tl 3R UL GHAT & HEed TR BTl
SIAAT & | TgTd I TGTaT 37 S FHISTIIAT 3R Ao WISIERT & el 81 SHTY T bl a9 &l TS
The celebration of National Foundation for Communal Harmony 2024 highlights the importance of unity,

peace, and mutual respect among communities. An oath was taken to promote harmony and uphold the values
of inclusivity and social cohesion.
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17 317TEd, 2024 &1 TG [ORIY HIFHH SIS [6d1 11| I8 [HaTell el aod o ol U JTGTTR HIIsHH IT #4911
@t 1ot vt faam & forg &2 41 Y Brgerr T1eR @R it &1 ugr &

Sawan special programme was conducted on 17 August, 2024 It was a memorable event for Mitalee Ladies
Club as the members decked up in Green Mekhala Sadar and sarees to showcase their talent.

I
W 3 foraR Tre g | farel! e & areaey S Wiq afie 3 gt fiaredt s & im % 99 faaia e ik
JTH-UTE & &1 § G AR BIAHH bl THTI feba|

June 5,World Environment Day, was celebrated by Mitalees. Keeping the theme June 5,World Environment
Day, was celebrated by Mitalees. Keeping the theme,”Our Land, Our future.”, in mind, all exchanged their
views on dias. Presidentt of Mitalee Club, Mrs.Mitu Banik distributed Neem plants to all Mitalees and
concluded the event by planting them in surrounding area

Aot & &9 0%

are-faare mnfsra & |

International Women's Day was observed on 8 March, 2024 A debate among Mitalees was conducted to make
the day eventful n purposeful.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Shri Pradip Kumar Banik

Chairman & Managing Director
(Additional Charge) (Since 03.02.2024)
Director (Production)

Shri Siba Prasad Mohanty
Chairman & Managing Director (Upto 28.12.2023)

Shri Subash Chandra Das
Director (Finance)

Dr. Ashwani Kumar
Govt Nominee Director (From 28.10.2024)

Shri Surendra Thakur
Govt Nominee Director(From 24.12.2024)

Shri Harvinder Singh
Govt. Nominee Director (Upto 28.10.2024)

Shri Niranjan Lal
Govt. Nominee Director (Upto 16.07.2024)

Shri S.K. Sharma
Non Official Director (Upto 04.11.2024)

Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen
Non Official Director (Upto 04.11.2024 )

Shri Bipina Bihari Padhy
Non Official Director (Upto 08.05.2023)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Priyanka Kumari (Since 25.07.2024)

Shri Aashish Srivastava (On Contract) (Since 06.05.2024)

Shri R. K. Tiwari (Upto 02.03.2024)
Shri R. K. Gupta (Upto 31.07.2023)

CHIEF VIGILANCE OFFICER
Shri Lalit Mohan Pandey

NAMRUP UNIT

Shri Mathew Johnson Dara - GM (Finance) (Upto 03.10.2024)

Shri'Samit Mohapatra— GM (HR)

Shri Satyajit Misra- GM (Marketing)

Shri M. P. Sinha— GM (Technical)

Shri D. K. Das — GM (Production& Maintenance)
ShriArun KumarW.V. — DGM (HR)

Shri A.K., Dutta— DGM (Marketing)
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Shri A.K. Singh -DGM (Material Handling)
Shri Amrit Bandyopadhyay — DGM (Technical Services)
Shri K.K. Dihider — DGM (Maintenance)

STATUTORY AUDITORS
M/s. B.L. Purohit & Co.
Chartered Accountants, Guwahati (Assam)

COST AUDITORS
M/s. Subhadra Dutta & Associates

Cost Accountants, kolkata

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
M/s Pravin Chhajer & Associates

Practicing Company Secretaries, Guwahati

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O.: Parbatpur, Namrup-786623, District-Dibrugarh (Assam)

Phone: 0374-2500240;

Fax: 0374-2500317

E-mail: info@bvfcl.co.in

Website address: www.bvfcl.com
CIN: U24123AS2002G0O1006786

UNIT
Namrup (Assam)

BANKERS
State Bank of India

Canara Bank
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oft st o afren
e (Scuter)eTeaet U T e Stfaftes TvrR & arer
(03.02.2024 @)
Shri Pradip Kumar Banik
Director (Prodcution) with Chairman & Managing Director Addl Charge (From 03.02.2024)

off gwTe =% T
ST U ety fAevTeR (28.12.2023 ¥F) (EEHENER))
Shri Siba Prasad Mohanty Shri Subash Chandra Das
Chairman & Managing Director Upto 28.12.2023) Director (Finance)

(28.10.2024 T) (24.12.2024 %) (28.10.2024 k) (16.07.2024 )
Dr. Ashwani Kumar Shri Surendra Thakur Shri Harvinder Singh Shri Niranjan Lal

Govt Nominee Director
(Upto 28.10.2024)

Govt Nominee Director
(From 24.12.2024)

Govt Nominee Director
(From 28.10.2024)

Govt Nominee Director
(Upto 16.07.2024)

oft T3, st oft @i &= 8= oft farfor fererdt uredt
e fdrh R T fawre R TR fdr
(Fad F29meR) (04.11.2024 TF) (T fewmeR) (04.11.2024 ) (T F291eR) (08.05.2023 TF)
Shri S.K. Sharma Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen Shri Bipin Bihari Padhy
Non Official Director Non Official Director Non Official Director
(Independent Director) (Independent Director) (Independent Director)
(Upto 04.11.2024) (Upto 04.11.2024) (Upto 08.05.2023)
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T2vTen Tiget % weEAl i MWTEA - DIRECTOR'S PROFILE

1. oft TE9 AR afeh, sTeaer Uat weer fHaereh (atfafte Twr)eii fewres (3eate) (DIN: 10095724) , 1. Shri Pradip Kumar
Banik, Chairman & Managing Director (Additional Charge) and Director (Production) (DIN : 10095724)

TR T, THTA 3T I HATCH, IR TP 2 HLai2024 o TSR oh AT H 3T ST HI sT1+1h, Ha=Teh (IcTa), siie T | et st
3o ST el oh STATA sfTall U 1 Tt o STee 3 STaler THawTeh o6 U8 T STieh ST ETT| 36 o Wi, 2t e AR sk = 3.02.2024
T il Ut H uer o 31eey 3T Teier fasTen o eAfafien T gvrer foram & 22 wred 2023 @ sfieft U H uer 1 fe e (Icumed) S U H HrRid 2
AT T8 TR IO T & T, 2} S o R sk sfTel U E Ot & 39 7T Wefereh (HohfaheT) o &9 H hreita 2l

The Govt. of India, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers vide Order dated 2nd February,2024, entrusted additional
charge of the post of Chairman & Managing Director, BVFCL, to Shri Pradip Kumar Banik, Director (Production), BVFCL, in additional to his
own duties. Subsequently, Shri Pradip Kumar Banik has assumed the additional charge of Chairman & Managing Director of BVFCL w.e.f
03.02.2024. He is Director (Production), BVFCL w.e.f. 22nd March, 2023. Prior to his present assignment as Director (Production), BVFCL,
Shri Pradip Kumar Banik was working as DGM (Mechanical), BVFCL.

2. sitgarweza™, e (), SetuweiTen(DIN: 08988297), Shri Subash Chandra Das, Director (Finance) DIN-08988297)

ey <% aE A 18 e 2020 W seUhEiTer o fawreh (foret) 3 HRIMIT STeT| 3o T8 $ETd TR GegHIAam &= H 26§ SAfeeh aui &1
UG A €, ST 30 6 (SAIL), FTehT (NALCO) ST T sheli HTeisTieh &1 o SUshHT (CPSEs) ST fsf shmret ermr 37ttt faam)
TAHT TSR B Ug, 2T G 22.12.2017 B okl § 39 HeT Jaieieh (fory) 3 &9 1 H12id 9| ATeshl H, 3 Ua Sl Ui ISHTST, s9adT fashre
HI STTEET Te forhre (R&D) ST b ferctar ForHaTieat o ST o) $6eh ST, 3 ATeeh! o a6 SR HaTiaf e s et a6t oft
REEEETGD

ATl H RMTHA B 6 T8, 3 &e1et S7eiTieet 3T 3fean faafies (SAIL ), Tethen e wetie o farfire yifiremrati # amd foram st Sl awmen &
Aok Tl I S, Ieeie forfar s 31 fisror, e it eran adven, whamsuy it s, i weier ofic e, anforfsaes it
HIAT S &1 H SATeh ST ST foharm|

05 TS 1971 1 70 211 T, SEITIE AT H1ES HHSH HT 3T (ICAI) F ell e 8| of TR Jeferd S ([IM), Th & 6 o1
2, ST R 3=e T e H e ot fevatrr o fora

T URTE TTIcall H SehaT STH ohT o HT2T-ETeF 3T ST |HTISTeh Tt et ST T forshre # i e eh e g aram ¢d W al

Shri Subash Chandra Das has assumed charge of Director (Finance), BVFCL w.e.f. 18th December, 2020. He has a rich industry experience of
more than 26 years in steel and aluminium sector in premier CPSEs like SAIL & NALCO and private paper industry.

Prior to his present assignment as Director (Finance), BVFCL, Shri Das was working as DGM (Finance), NALCO w.e.f. 22.12.2017. He was in-
charge of finance function for wind power projects, Business Development and R&D division of NALCO and also supervising affairs of CSR
Trust and superannuation funds of NALCO. Prior to joining NALCO, he worked in various capacities at Steel Authority of India Limited,
Rourkela Steel Plant. During a career span of more than two decades, he garnered experience in the field of Financial Planning and Control,
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Accounts & Audit, MIS & Budget, fund management & Investment, Commercial and Tax matters etc.

Bornon 05.07.1971, Shri Das is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India (ICAI) and also an alumnus of Indian Institute of
Management Ranchi from where he completed Executive PG Diploma in Management.

Apart from excelling in professional responsibilities, he has been equally active in social activities and community development.

3. 1. 3rgAr AT, Wmﬁm, Dr. Ashwani Kumar, Govt Nominee Director (From 28.10.2024)

2. 31t R, WA SATfe W (IES) 2012 =1 o SRR 8| 379k Seforeh Aiwran sreferer o fiw=rel 8 3 WRd i o fafie
AT ST CHUETHS, 1Tl ST, FeT 7R ST HTerd H ST ATl aemeshi s & H Hardr el

AT H, 78 TETR S 3o HATCT, ST feTvTT o Tk (+1aTeh (STTEHT) o 78 T T 2| 376l 3w SalT et BTSSR hitd iy fAfies
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Dr. Ashwani Kumar is an officer of Indian Economics Service (IES), 2012 batch. His educational qualification is Ph.D (Economics). He has
served in different Ministries of Government of India i.e. MSME, Niti Aayog, Information & Broadcasting as Addl. Economics Adviser.

He is presently working as Joint Director (IC) in the Department of Fertilizers, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Government of India. He

is now appointed as Government Nominee Director on the Board of M/s. Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited (BVFCL).

4. 50 '5:@(3‘@7(, mmﬁ%ﬂiﬁ, Shri Surendra Thakur, Govt Nominee Director
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T HATC (T ST H AT, o6 & 8 S e 1) 3TRTE Harrers (FSre T TS un o S HawTeh o & 8 i+ feh i amfier )|

T8 T T TR TR oh TR ST I AT oh Iaiteh foreTT & 39 ferel (SIToT, |HT-=1 SR, ST 31 Teha) % & § el 21 37 37a Sargd
et HTETTESR B frfiee (fetuseiuet ) o &S 5 awanr AT fawTeh o & 1 g forar a2

Shri Surendra Thakur is an officer of the Central Secretariat Services. His educational qualifications are M.Sc. (Physics) and PG Diploma in
Disaster Preparedness & Rehabilitation. He has served in different Ministries of Government of India i.e. Ministry of Communications
(Department of Posts, Department of Telecommunications, BSNL Corporate Office & TRAI-on deputation), Ministry of Culture (as AO in
National Museum on deputation) and Ministry of Home Affairs (including deputation in NIDM as Joint Director).

He is presently working as Deputy Secretary (Estt, Gen Admn., IT & Cash) in the Department of Fertilizers, Ministry of Chemicals and
Fertilizers, Government of India. He is now appointed as Government Nominee Director on the Board of M/s. Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer
Corporation Limited (BVFCL).
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CITIZENS' CHARTER

Preamble
This Charter is a declaration of our mission, objectives, values,
commitments, standards and our expectations from others.

Mission

* To produce fertilizer efficiently, economically and in
environment friendly manner.

» Toestablished itselfas profit making enterprises

*  To work for all round improvement of the strategically important
North Eastern parts of the Country.

» Todiversify into production of other industrial products.
*  Toprovidebalanced economic growth in the region.

Objective
BVFCL has the following objectives:

* To produce and market fertilizers efficiently and economically
in an environmentally sound manner;

* To maintain optimum levels of efficiency and productivity in all
activities and to carry out upgradation of Technology;

* Reduction in specific energy consumption of the product by
taking up and implementing energy savings schemes;

*  Tocontinuously improve plant operation safety.

» Toachieve increase in urea production capacity utilisation during
2023-2024;

* To continuously upgrade the quality of human resources of the
Company and promote organizational development.

Values
We shall carry out our functions and duty with utmost:

» Sincerity
e Speed
e Equity
* Integrity

*  Transparency

and without any fear or favour.
Standards

*  We have set up upon ourselves the standards for all transactions
with you. We undertake that in case of likely or inevitable delay,
we shall promptly communicate the same to the party concerned.
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Our Commitments

We commit to:

* Produce and distribute quality fertilizers conforming to the
specifications.

*  Timelydistribution of our fertilizers to ensure consumer satisfaction.

*  Continual upgradation of Technology and Development of Human
Resources.

«  Strict adherence to the prescribed Safety, Health and Environmental
Protection Standards.

SERVICE EXTENDED TO THE CUSTOMERS/CITIZENS'
Training is imparted to the farmers free of cost by the Company in
village/ block level for balanced use of fertilizers for improving
productivity.

FOLLOWING GRIEVANCES REDRESSAL MACHANISM
HASBEEN CONSTITUTED IN THE COMPANY.

1. Employees Grievance Redressal Committee

Township Welfare Committee

Information under the Right to Information Act, 2005

Customer Grievances Redressal Cell

Complaints involving redressal for bribes or financial

A

irregularities, public may approach to the Chief Vigilance
Officer of the Company

6. Centralized Public Grievance Redress And Monitoring System
(CPGRAMYS)

7. Internal Complaints Committee under Sexual Harassment of
Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act,2013

TIME LIMIT FOR DISPOSAL OF GRIEVANCES

a. Issueofacknowledgement/interim reply to petitioner -2 week

b. Forwarding of the grievance petition to the concerned authority
-3 weeks

c. Finaldisposal of the grievance petition -2 months

EXPECTATION FROM CUSTOMERS/CITIZENS

We expect from the customers / citizens to be reasonable and prompt
in exercising your rights and obligations in all your transactions with
the Company without extending inducement of any kind and not
raising any frivolous issues.

a. Timely feed back of information about the product purchased by
the customer, its quality, weight, etc.

b.  Suggestion for further improvement.
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CMD'SADDRESS AT THE 22ND AGM

Dear Members,

It gives me immense pleasure to extend my warm welcome to all of
you at this 22nd Annual General Meeting of the Company. By now
you must have received copies of the Annual Report of the Company
for the Financial Year 2023-24. I assume, you have gone through the
full Annual Report and consider it as read.

[ am delighted to take this opportunity to recount the remarkable
journey of your Company's success and growth. BVFCL, being the
sole fertilizer manufacturing entity in the North Eastern region of our
nation, has played a pivotal role in supporting farmers, especially in
Eastern India and the North Eastern regions. Today, I take immense
pride in narrating BVFCL's inspiring transformation from a
struggling entity to a thriving and profitable enterprise, an
achievement made possible through our collective and unwavering
efforts.

Coming to the performance of your Company during the Financial
Year 2023-24. Urea production in Namrup-III during the Financial
Year 2023-24 was 180153 MT. Energy consumption per MT of urea
produced in Namrup-III was 13.27 GCal/MT in the Financial Year
2023-24. On-stream days of 239 could be achieved in Namrup-III in
Financial Year2023-24.

In pursuance of the policy of Govt. of India to promote production of
organic fertilizers, in the Financial Year 2023-24, all time highest
production of Bio Fertilizers was recorded. Bio Fertilizer production
achieved during the Financial Year 2023-24 was 195.68 MT,
compared to previous highest of 152.938 MT in Financial Year 2022-
23.
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In January 2023, the Company has also established a Water Soluble
NPK 19:19:19 fertilizer production plant and 463.59 MT of NPK
fertilizer has been produced during the Financial Year 2023-24,
compared to 67.53 MT in Financial Year2022-23.

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company has marketed
imported urea through Paradip Port, as per the allotment received
from Department of Fertilizers. Total 257694.265 MT of imported
urea were sold through own dealers network in different marketing
territories in the Country, compared to 218897.38 MT in Financial
Year2022-23.

Despite encountering challenges such as intermittent plant failure and
shutdowns, your Company has made significant strides in improving
maximum production per day from 730 MT to 854 MT which is
approx 95% of daily maximum production capacity.

One of the most noteworthy achievements of your Company has been
the expansion of its market presence through introduction of its
various agri-products in new states, including the State of Odisha,
Jharkhand, Chhattisgarh, Madhya Pradesh, Arunachal Pradesh, and
Meghalaya. This expansion not only broadened the Company's
customer base but also enhanced our financial stability.

We diversified our product portfolio through collaborations with
various companies, offering a comprehensive range of plant nutrients
under a unified concept. This diversification empowered us to meet
the evolving needs of our customers and solidify BVFCL's position as
atrusted nationwide distributor of fertilizer products.

Furthermore, your Company's commitment to empowering local
communities and fostering grassroots-level skill development is
evident through initiatives to revamp and establish multiple block
level and district level Pradhan Mantri Kisan Samruddhi Kendra
(PMKSK) Shops. These PMKSK will cater to a wide variety of needs
of the farmers and provide agri-inputs (like fertilizers, seeds,
implements etc.); testing facilities for soil, seeds, fertilizers; generate
awareness among farmers; provide information regarding various
government schemes and ensure regular capacity building of retailers
atblock/ district level outlets.

In spite of all bottlenecks due to small capacity and old age of the
Plant, your Company is immensely contributing to Prime Minister's
call of Atmanirbhar Bharat by producing indigenous urea at a very
low production cost. The plant is using only APM Natural Gas from
the near-by wells and thereby ensuring no dependence on imported
LNG/RLNG etc. Moreover, as the plants are becoming very old, so
most of the spares are now procured from indigenous sources by
developing local vendors for the same.

Your Company is committed to work for the protection of
environment and it is adhering to all the relevant and applicable
laws/rules/ standards etc. viz. the Water (Prevention & Control of
Pollution) Act, 1974, Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act,
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1981, Environment Protection Act, 1986, Public Liability Insurance
Act, 1991 etc. All the returns/reports etc. which are required to be
submitted as per various laws/rules/govt. orders are submitted
regularly in time. Consent to Operate is renewed by the Pollution
Control Board, Assam regularly as per Water Act and Air Act. A
policy of Rs.15.00 crores under Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991
has been taken to give insurance coverage to the nearby people in case
of disaster. The Company successfully procured goods and services
worth Rs..15.15 Crores from GeM portal and procurement worth
Rs.15.34 Crores was from MSE vendors.

Looking ahead for long term sustainability, as per the Cabinet
Approval, RFQ was floated on 28.01.2016 and RFP was floated
onl7.06.2016. Two bidders viz. M/s Gujarat Fertilizers & Chemicals
Limited and M/s. Adani Enterprises Ltd. were pre-qualified, but none
of them submitted their financial bids inresponse to RFP. As such, the
two stage bidding process approved by the Union Cabinet could not
be successful, as there was no response from the Bidders for the
Request for Proposal. In view of no response received in PPP mode
bidding, a meeting was held on 05.09.2016at DoF and it was inter-alia
decided that a proposal should be put up for setting up the new
Ammonia-Urea plant of BVFCL at Namrup (i.e. Namrup-1V)
through PSU route. Anew initiative was taken by DoF for setting-up
of a 12.70 LMTPA NG based plant through nomination route by
forming a JV of CPSEs and Govt. of Assam. This will give a boost to
industrialization and economy of the North Eastern region.

It is my pleasure to share some noteworthy achievements of your
Company. BVFCL has been allotted PICT port, Paradip for Handling
& Marketing of Imported Urea in Govt. of India account for Three
years from 2022-23 onwards. Marketing areas have been extended to
Chhattisgarh, Jharkhand, Odisha & Madhya Pradesh and dealers
network has been increased in lesser represented areas of Bihar &
West Bengal states. During F.Y. 2023-24 BVFCL has successfully
completed Handling & Marketing of 06 numbers of ships. BVFCL is
also planning for further expansion of Marketing areas to Uttar
Pradesh, Telangana & Andhra Pradesh with the aim of achieving a
pan India presence.

In addition to the existing MoUs, BVFCL has executed MoUs with
new business partners viz. IFFCO, Agrophos India Ltd, Madhav
Agrochem Pvt. Ltd., MN Crop and Fertico Pvt Ltd, Deepee Chem.
Ltd to enhance the range ofits product basket during 2023-24.

Good corporate governance has always been the hallmark of your
Company. The philosophy of the Company is to ensure transparency
in its dealings and compliance of country's laws and regulations in
order to promote ethical conduct of business. Quarterly/Annual
compliance report for corporate governance guidelines have been
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sent to the Administrative Ministry/ DPE as per the applicable
guidelines. Your Company has been awarded “Excellent Rating”
towards good governance by the Department of Public Enterprises for
the Financial Year 2022-23. During the year under review, the
Company also expected “Excellent Rating” in the year 2023-24 based
on the compliance documents submitted to the Department of Public
Enterprises. All the Directors and Senior Management officials have
affirmed the compliance to Code of Conduct Rules.

In conclusion, I extend my heartfelt appreciation to my colleagues on
the Board of Directors for their invaluable support and guidance in
managing our Company's affairs. I take this opportunity to express
my gratitude to Departments and Ministries of the Govt. of India viz.
Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers, Fertilizer Industry Co-
ordination Committee (FICC), Ministry of Agriculture, Indian
Council for Agricultural Research, Ministry of Petroleum & Natural
Gas, Ministry of Railways, Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Home
Affairs, Department of Public Enterprises, Statutory Auditors, Cost
Auditors, Practicising Company Secretaries, Comptroller & Auditor
General of India, Assam Gas Company Limited, Oil India Limited,
PDIL, FACT, IFFCO, valued dealers, customers and the Press and
Electronic Media.of our Company.

Above all, I would like to sincerely thank all the dedicated employees
of the Company for their unwavering efforts in overcoming
challenges and contributing to our success. [ also extend my gratitude
to the trade unions for their constructive cooperation. On their behalf,
I'seek your continued support, as always.

Thank you all once again.

JaiHind

Sd/-

Director (Production) with Addl. Charge of
Chairman and Managing Director,
BVFCL, Namrup, Assam

Place : Namrup
Date: 28/11/2024
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION

LIMITED
Reg. Office: Namrup, P.O. Parbatpur,
Dist.: Dibrugarh, Assam — 786623
CIN - U24123AS2002GOI1006786
Website: www.bvfcl.com
Phone no: 0374-2500618,

e-mail: pkumari@bvfcl.com
NOTICE OF 22ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 22nd Annual General Meeting of
the Members of Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation
Limited will be held through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other
Audio Video means (OAVM) on Thursday, 28th day of
November, 2024 at 3.30 pm to transact the following

businesses :-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements
of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024,
together with the Reports of Board of Directors, Independent
Audit and the comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General
of India (C&AG) thereon and to pass the following resolution
with or without any modification(s) as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Annual Financial Statements
of the Company for the Financial Year ended 3 1st March, 2024
along with the Director's Report, Independent Audit Report and
the comments of C&AG thereon be and are hereby approved and
adopted.”

To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the Company for
the Financial Year 2024-25 and, if though fit, to pass the
following resolution with or without modification(s), as an
Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors
of the Company be and are hereby authorised to review and
approve such remuneration as it may decide for the Statutory
Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India for the Financial Year 2024-25 and the Statutory Auditors
shall hold the office from the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting
ofthe Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS :

3.

To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial
yearended March 31,2025.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution,
with or without modification(s), as an Ordinary Resolution
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ii.

iii.

iv.

Vi.

Vii.

Place : Namrup, Assam
Date :27.11.2024

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148
of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, M/s.
Subhadra Dutta & Associates, Cost Accountants, Kolkata, as
Cost Auditor of the Company appointed by the Board of
Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of the Cost
Accounting Records of the Company for the Financial Year
ending 3 1st March, 2025, be paid the remuneration as under ::

A total professional fee payable Rs. 42,500/- (Rupees Forty Two
Thousands Five Hundred only) towards annual cost audit and
quarterly cost review for three (03)quarters i.e. June, September
and December for the year 2024-25;

Conversion of Annual Cost Audit Report to XBRL format and
uploading fee to MCA portal for Rs. 7,500/- (Rupees Seven
Thousand and Five Hundred Only) ;

Reimbursement of travelling expenses by Airfare (Economy
class) (to & fro) to Proprietor or 1(one) Partner and/or 1 (one)
qualified staff, the reimbursement will be in2AC rail fare (to &
fro) and to audit assistant 1(one), the reimbursement will be in
3ACrail fare (to & fro) or as per actuals, whichever is less, on
submission of documentary evidence;

Fooding and lodging to the audit team in BVFCL Guest House
shall be provided free of charge;

Local transport at the Namrup Railway Station/Bus Stand and
Company's Guest House to place of work (to and fro), shall be
provided by the company free of charge.However, in respect of
local transport charges at the originating destination, the
reimbursement (to and fro) shall be limited to auto charges @Rs.
200/- to Audit staff and Rs. 300/- for Proprietor or Partner by
Taxi, or actual, whichever is less on production of documentary
evidence;

Three set of hard copy of the audit report (Quarterly/ Annual)
should be printed and bind before submission for which no
additional payment will be reimbursed by BVFCL,;

Allthe charges/fees are excluding the applicable taxes, ifany.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the
Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds
and things and to take all such steps, as may be necessary or
expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Priyanka Kumari

Company Secretary
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Notes :

1.

2.

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the item No. 3 (Special
Business) is annexed hereto.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) vide its General
Circular no. 09/2024 dated19.09.2024 read with General
Circular no. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 , 2/2022 dated
May 05, 2022, General Circular no. 02/2021 dated January 13,
2021, General Circular no.20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, General
Circular no. 17/2020 dated April 13,2020 and General Circular
no. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted holding of AGM
through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual
Means (“OAVM”) till September 30, 2025 without the physical
presence of the Members. In pursuance of the applicable
provisions of the Act read with MCA Circulars, the Twenty
Second Annual General Meeting of the Company (“AGM?”) is
being convened and conducted through VC / OAVM, which
does not require physical presence of members at a common
venue. The venue of AGM shall be deemed to be the Registered
Office of the Company at Namrup, Dist. Dibrugarh, Assam, PIN
-786623.

The meeting web link will be sent to all the members of the
Company at their official mail id.The Members can join the
AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the
timescheduled for commencement of the meeting. Members can
also join within 15 minutes of the commencement of meeting.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through
VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08,2020, the
facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members
is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section
112 and Section 114 of the Companies Act, 2013,
representatives of the members such as the President of India
shall attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes
through show of hands.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular
No. 17/2020 dated April 13,2020, the Notice calling the AGM
has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.bvfcl.com.
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7. T ¥ Hehid s S&drest S8k i fafdr dek @t ™ 7. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice are open for
ﬁaﬁ(@amsﬁtqﬁaﬁa;waﬁm)qtmqﬁ inspection by the members at the registered office of the
o I YT 3 Usfiohd hicrd B geedt & e & fog gt Company on all working days (that is, except Sundays and

< )

H Public Holidays) during business hours upto the date of the
Meeting.
[qATH To
Eicileasiiucic X ke cre) All Members of BVFCL
a‘laﬁqwaﬁwaﬁééamﬁﬁ%m All the Directors on the BVFCL Board
ﬁm%&uﬁmmqﬁw Statutory Auditors of the Corporation
R afEa eET TRy Secretarial Auditors of the Corporation
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

(Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies
Act,2013)

Item No. 3 : Ratification of the Remuneration of the Cost Auditors of
the Company fo rhe Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025. The
Board of Directors of the Company has approved the appointment and
remuneration of M/s. Subhadra Dutta & Associates, Cost
Accountants, Kolkata, as Cost Auditors of the Company in its 123rd
Board meeting held on 29th July, 2024 on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee of the BVFCL Board to conduct the audit of the
Cost Accounting Records of the Company for the Financial Year
2024-25. In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 and other
applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 14
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, ratification for
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year
2024-25 by way of the an Ordinary Resolution is being sought from
the members, as set out at item No. 3 of the Notice. The Board
accordingly recommends the passing of the proposed Ordinary
Resolution for approval of the members.

None of the Directors or Key managerial personnel of the Company
or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially
orotherwise in passing of the said Ordinary Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Priyanka Kumari
Company Secretary
Place : Namrup, Assam
Date :27.11.2024
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,
The Members,
Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited

Dear Members,

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the 22nd
(Twenty second) Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company along with the Audited Annual Financial Statements for the
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 together with Independent
Audit Report and Comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of
India thereon.

1. REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

The summarized financial performance of the Company during the
year under review vis-a-vis previous year is stated as under:

(FUSTITH) (Rs. in Crore)
feraror forfmadfag Particulars For the Financial Year
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

IR, 1S 3TLHTH Profit(+)/Loss (-) before
qgfw(+) /%Tﬁf(-) 2451 5921 Depreciation, Interest & Tax 2451 59.21
ILF\@%TH 15.14 34.73 Depreciation 15.14 34.73
p— 0.66 0.10 Interest 0.66 0.10
U T (+)/TH (-) (fefier 8.71 24.38 Profit (+)/Loss (-) before

& ® ©)( ) Tax (PBT) 8.71 24.38
HLAT 0 0
FILTA TG AT (+) /BT () 8.71 2438 Tax Expenses 0 :

° ) ) Net Profit (+)/Loss (-) after Tax 8.71 24.38

forfrar ad 2023-24 o <, ST A et o & 59.20 FS T H
TG, AT 31 (PBDIT) H & &1 o Hehleed 24.51 FS
T T HEAGT, SATST 3L (PBDIT) § & AT SA1SId foham &
ﬁaﬁﬁu@amﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁaﬁaaﬁ 2022-23 st qoT H forefr a0
2023-24 % SN SeqTE 3 oY (wmmumv%a)ﬁamﬁ%
T g% ol Forefa o 2023-24 % SR JREAT HT e 180153
Hifesm a1 (MT) (et farefrad 223342 Hifem ) om

forfter s 2023-24 3 SR sf=l 78 AT AT HET 175340 Hifgh o7
(et forfter a & 227873 Hifesh o) off 3ok staman, foxfiw o
2023-24 o IR, SATITNG IcATa1T shi ToIshT 1 AT &. 258.42 FS
93 (fUee T ad 1'%, 409.98 e &) 9|

2. sfara PAfr T emafa R aln ok =g e

fora ad 2023-24 § &€ 7 forelt oft Tizr <61 wmT= fisrd & TomTaiE
T sl T el |

During the financial year 2023 — 24, the Company earned profit
before Depreciation, Interest & Tax (PBDIT) of Rs. 24.51 Crores
against the profit before Depreciation, Interest & Tax (PBDIT) of Rs.
59.20 Crores in the previous year. The decrease in profit is mainly due
to the decrease in production and sales (Including trading business)
during the financial year 2023-24 in comparison to the previous
Financial Year 2022-23. During the financial year 2023-24 the
production of Urea was 180153 Metric Tonnes (MT) (previous
Financial Year 223342 MT).

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the quantity of Urea sold was
175340 MT (Previous Financial Year 227873 MT). Further, during
the Financial Year 2023-24, value of sale of traded products was Rs.
258.42 Crores (previous Financial Year Rs. 409.98 Crores).

2. AMOUNT,IF ANY, TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES :

In the F.Y. 2023-24, the Board did not recommend any amount to be
transferred to General Reserves.
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3.DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND :

The Company has earned the profit of Rs.8.71 crores during the
Financial Year 2023-24. As per the DIPAM Guidelines on Capital
Restructuring of Central Public Sector Enterprise, every CPSE would
pay a minimum annual dividend of 30% of PAT or 5% of the net-
worth, whichever is higher subject to the maximum dividend
permitted under the extant legal provisions. Section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013, prohibits the Company to declare dividend
unless carried over previous losses and depreciation not provided in
previous year or years are set off against profit of the company for the
current year.

In the FY 2023-24, the Board is hereby not recommended for paying
dividend out of the profit earned by the Company during the Financial
Year 2023-24 on account of huge accumulated losses (Rs.68,166.28
Lakhs) and negative networth (Rs.31,583.04 Lakhs) in compliance of
the provisions of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder.

4. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:
A Report on Management Discussion and Analysis Report covering
the operations and future prospects of the Corporation is enclosed at
Annexure — I, forming part of the Directors' Report

5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

A report on Corporate Governance along with declaration of
compliance of code of conduct rules for Senior Management and
Board members, Secretarial Audit Report, Certificate from Practicing
Company Secretaries Firm conforming the compliance of corporate
governance guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) and the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) and the
management replies on the observations made in Secretarial Audit
Report and Certification of CEO & CFO in compliance of Guidelines
on Corporate Governance for CPSE, 2010 are collectively enclosed at
Annexure — I, forming part of the Directors' Report.

6. CHANGESINBOARD OF DIRECTORS'":
During the period under review, the following changes took place in
the Board of Directors of the Corporation:

* The tenure of Shri Bipina Bihari Padhy, Non Official Director
(Independent) who was appointed by Ministry of Chemical and
Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers, dated May 01, 2020 for a
period of three year (03) years commencing from May 09, 2020 has
ended on May 08,2023.

e Shri Siba Prasad Mohanty, Chairman & Managing Director,
BVFCL, has resigned from the post of CMD, BVFCL w.e.f.
28.12.2023.
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* The Govt. of India, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers,
Department of Fertilizers vide Order dated 02.02.2024 has
assigned the additional charge of Chairman & Managing Director,
BVFCL, to Shri Pradip Kumar Banik, Director (Production), w.e.f
30.01.2024.

Subsequently, Shri P. K. Banik has assumed the additional charge of
Chairman & Managing Director, BVFCL w.e.f. 03.02.2024.

The Board of Directors wishes to place on record its sincere
appreciation for the services rendered by Shri Bipina Bihari Padhy
and Shri Siba Prasad Mohanty, during their tenure on the BVFCL
Board.

7. DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In compliance of the provisions of Section 134 3 (c) read with Section
134 (5) of Companies Act, 2013, your Directors states that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended
March 31, 2024, the applicable accounting standards read with
requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the
Profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on March 31,
2024,

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities.

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 'going
concern' basis;

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and are operating effectively;

f)  the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.
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8. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:

The conservation of energy can be achieved by using the energy more
efficiently or by reducing the usage of energy. The Company
continuously makes efforts to conserve energy in its manufacturing
facilities and allied operations and look for avenues to use alternate
sources of energy, to reduce its carbon footprint. The disclosure of
information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134 (3) (m)
read with Companies read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding conservation of energy,
technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo are
enclosed at Annexure -1 (A) & (B).

9. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. B. L. Purohit & Co., Chartered Accountants, Guwahati were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company by the Comptroller
& Auditor General of India to audit the accounts of the Company for
the Financial Year 2023-24. The above Auditors have submitted their
Independent Audit Report dated 24.08.2024 on the Annual Financial
Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31,
2024. The Statutory Auditors has drawn the attention with due
emphasis on certain key audit matters. The management replies on the
above key audit matters are enclosed at Annexure - I1I, forming part of
the Directors' Report.

10. COMMENT OF COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR
GENERAL OF INDIA (C & AG):

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) has undertaken
supplementary audit on the audited annual financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 under the provisions of
Section 143 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013. C&AG Auditors issued
8 (eight) nos. of observation on 11.09.2024 and Management reply
including comment of Statutory Auditors were sent to the Director,
O/o the Principal Director of Audit (Agriculture, Food & Water
Resources) Kolkata on 25.09.2024. The Comments of C&AG dated
15.10.2024 on the audited annual financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024 is enclosed as
Annexure [V, forming part of Directors' Report and do not require for
any reply, as no comments has been reported by C&AG.

11.COST AUDITORS:

Your Company is maintaining cost accounting records as specified by
the Central Government under the provisions of Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. M/s Subhadra
Dutta & Associates, Kolkata, (Firm Registration Number: 000223)
were appointed to conduct the audit of cost accounting records of the
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Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. The above firm has
submitted their draft Cost Audit Report to the management on
19.09.2024. The filing of Cost Audit Report for the Financial Year
2023-24 is under process. The Cost Audit Report for the Financial
Year 2022-23 was filed/uploaded on the website www.mca.gov.in
vide SRN F71961098 dated 26.10.2023, after duly approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company on 27.09.2023.

12. INTERNAL AUDITOR:

M/s. AMAA & Associates, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi,
(Firm Registration Number: 013066C) was appointed as Internal
Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. The above
firm has submitted their internal audit report for the year 2023-24. The
Audit Committee after reviewing the Internal Audit Report and
compliances issued necessary directions / advisories to the Executive
Management of the Company for taking corrective actions, wherever
sought necessary. The Technical Internal Audit of the Company are
being conducted by an in house Technical Internal Audit Committee
consisting the representatives of the Technical Services, Finance and
Material Management Departments of the Company.

13. IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE POLICY:
Your Company is making all efforts to propagate and implement
Official Language Policy of the Government of India. All Govt.
directions for implementation of Official Language Policy of the
Govt. of India are being followed. During the year under review,
following activities were taken place to increase the awareness and
motivate the employees for the use of Hindi Raj Bhasha in the
Company:

1) Hindi fortnight was celebrated from Ist September to 15th
September, 2023. During the fortnight, competitions like essay
writing, speech, questionnaire, translation etc. were organized,
in which employees and officials participated enthusiastically;

i)  Four (04) Hindi workshops/seminars were organized during the year;

iii) BVFCL Head Office was inspected on 20.05.2023 by Deputy
Director and Head of Office, Implementation Office,
Guwabhati.

iv) BVFCL participated in Hindi Diwas Celebration and 3rd All India
Official Language Conference, Pune (14-15 September, 2023).

v) BVFCL participated in the International Conference and Official
Language Award Ceremony 2023 organized by Vishwa Hindi
Parishad on the occasion of 115th birth anniversary of national
poet Shri Ramdhari Singh Dinkar Ji.

vi) During the Financial Year 2023-24, BVFCL was awarded the
first prize for Hindi implementation by NARAKAS Duliajan.

vii) Annual and quarterly reports related to the implementation of the
Department of Official Language are being regularly sent to the

31



\%/
N //
V= eI iefl Bitesue Giufeerd fEfdcs
BVEC BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

frafia €7 8 T fawm, T8 HETerE, IRa 9RR, T
Taeett, TS foreiT o &t shri-ara shierd, T8 Hamed,
Waﬁxmgﬁm%ﬁﬁm(mwm)
AR

viii. STHZSR HIE H HTAINSIA bl STTEHAT HHIE o SR Gl
Sfern T e: et v & striford i (@ () HER
TIE)

ix. oo feae o A BT 3 srferentiat o for fevmef) wfayspferar
BRI RIS RCIRIE]

x. o1, U, e, = e (SIS 2l sigehi # Wi fefam)

xi. o .U%HLTH. 7 08 AT, 2024 FI THee! # qof vd gaiw
151 o FoTC T2 &1 T2 TISTHITST & & T o

xii. e Rreor s, TsrTeT forvm, g wETer 3 - fespre W
TSI T JATS-FeR, 2023%51‘2‘«11@%?@@@ T f&dt
uaﬁwmzﬁwmaﬁtwawamqﬁmmﬁﬁﬁﬂél

xiii. f&et vma it Sreehan o fore st afeee # ufafes wen sree
R/=iusht wefsia fram ST 8, oo st o f&dt s 36 s
T g et

xiv. st Uw H U, dewrge fgumdt ® i aug-em wosed
Frafia g ferusma g

xv. ST o I SATUHIET sht STfrenTiish Wed SATfeer s ST
o5 e foemefl g e

14. &RT 197k AT HHTTIAT ohT frauT:

ST st 2013 R 197 & TTEHT 37 ST ST ST
T T2t o STTE, T ST Rl =TI oh fereor o6 feremor
=1 IS T 8 e & 7T § T FAIAY I foraor e o6t e |
o e fpg T

15. TEAT T SRR SATATEH, 2005:

T T ST ST 2005 o ST ST T oh [eTq AR o
ST O HH T I AT A eI EIelT 21 SR el Gl Hia i
TATIES THRIA ST 3o AT, S T o SRTRAfe (ot ot
TS ATl U HOhRT T & ST HTeTTen TR o &ATaehR H
AT 21 T T ARTFR ATARM, 2005 % UM o TR =T
AT o ST TR HGRTT T ST T T & 6Wel ST foharT
ST 81 ST T RS AR, STl TR, S gEE
AR, Fohfcaeh TISTTSST TAT ST & HETRIoh ST TeT ST T
ST ToRaT & aTfeh STt o ST STTeeeh! o ST ol ST ST &
T e T e i 3 i A SRR e e e e
ST TR et oY SereTse ot sreite R s st
1 o STCH T & STTHeh|

Department of Official Language, Ministry of Home Affairs,
Government of India, New Delhi, Regional Implementation
Office of the Department of Official Language, Ministry of Home
Affairs, Guwahati and Oil India Limited Duliajan (NARAKAS
Office).

viii) During the Vigilance Awareness Week organized in the month of
October, all the competitions were organized mainly in Hindi
language. (Despite being inarea C)

ix) Bilingual song/poem competition was organized for students
and officers during Children's Day.

x) BVFCL participated in the meetings of NARAKAS (Duliajan).

xi) BVFCL participated in the Joint Regional Official Language Conference
for East and North-Eastern Region in Siliguri on March 08, 2024.

xii) Hindi Prabodh/Praveen/Pragya and Parangat classes were
successfully organized in BVFCL for the session July-November,
2023 organized by Hindi Teaching Scheme, Department of
Official Language, Home Ministry Centre - Dibrugarh.

xiii) For the awareness of Hindi language, one word Hindi/English is
being displayed every day in the office premises, which will help
inuse of Hindi language in the Company.

xiv) BVFCL Website is in bilingual and regular updates thereon are
made from time to time.

xv) Bi-lingual official seals of higher officials of the Company were
made for official use.

14. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES UNDER SECTION 197:
As per the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made there under, Government Companies are exempted from
inclusion of the statement of particulars of employees and therefore
the said particulars are not included in the Board's Report.

15.RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005:

Right to Information Act, 2005 mandates timely response to citizen's
requests for information relating to Public Authorities. BVFCL is a
wholly owned Government Company under the administrative
control of the Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Department of
Fertilizers and come within the purview of Public Authority. As per
the provisions of the said Act, your Company makes all efforts to
follow the directives so issued under the Act. Your Company has
nominated Transparency Officer, Appellate Authority, Public
Information Officer and Alternate Public Information Officer to
respond effectively to the requests of the applicants under the Act.
The details of the officers nominated under the Act have been
displayed on the Company's BVFCL website to facilitate information
about the affairs of the Company.
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The Company's website (www.bvfcl.com) is maintained with
updated information and all provisions of Right to Information Act
have been kept uploaded. During the year under review, total 47
applications were received under RTI. All 47 nos. of applications
were disposed off. 12 nos. of applications were received at first appeal
stage, all of which were disposed off within stipulated time period.

16. DETAILS OF LOANS/INVESTMENTS/GUARANTEES:

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the
details of investments made and loans/guarantees provided as on
31.03.2024 are given in the respective notes to the financial statements.

17. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 (3) read with Section 134(3) (a) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return of the Company for the Financial
Year 2022-23, has been displayed on the website of the company at
www.bvfcl.com, which is available at weblink:_https./bvfcl.com/wp-content /
uploads /2023/12/Final Form MGT 7 19122023 JMD _Signed.pdf.

18. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the Financial Year 2023-24, your Company has complied
with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) duly approved by the Central
Government under the provisions of Section 118(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

19. COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
ENTERPRISES:

The Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Government of India,
has laid down certain parameters for the purpose of grading the
CPSEs on the basis of their compliance with guidelines on Corporate
Governance and this report needs to be submitted to the Government
on quarterly/annual basis. Your Company is regularly complying
with the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs laid down
by DPE and submits reports to the DOF/DPE. During the Financial
Year 2023-24, Company has submitted self assessment report and
expected 'Excellent Rating' to your Company. However, DPE
notification in this matter is awaited.

20. BOARD MEETINGS:

The detailed disclosures of Board meetings have been made in the
annexed Corporate Governance Report.

21. COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Board had constituted an Audit Committee comprising of Mr.
S.K. Sharma, Independent Director as the Chairman; Mr. Rabi
Ranjan Sen, Independent Director and Mr. Niranjan Lal, Govt
Nomine Director as the Members.

Further, the other details of the Audit Committee and other Committees
of'the Board are given in the annexed Corporate Governance Report,
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22. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
UNDER SECTION 149 (6) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Independent Directors (Shri B.B. Padhy, Shri S.K. Sharma and
Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen) on the Board during the F.Y. 2023-24, have
given declarations towards meeting the criteria of independence as
laid down under section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

23. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS
WITHRELATED PARTIES:

The Company has not entered into any contract with the related party
as prescribed under section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 during
the year under review.

24. FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION
143(12), OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE
TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT:

There were no frauds reported during the Financial Year 2023-24 by
the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

25. DETAILS OF APPLICATION / ANY PROCEEDING
PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY
CODE,2016:

During the year under review, neither any application was made nor
any proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 (31 0f2016) for the Financial Year 2023-24.

26. RISKMANAGEMENT :

The Company has a structured internal Risk Management Framework,

designed to identify, assess and mitigate risks appropriately.

The Risk Management Committee has been entrusted with the

responsibility to assist the Board in:

a)  Overseeing the Company's enterprise wide risk management framework;

b) Ensuring that all material Strategic and Commercial risks
including Cyber security, Safety and Operations, Compliance,
Control and Financial risks have been identified and assessed;
and

¢) Ensuring that all adequate risk mitigation measures are in place
to address these risks.

27. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

In accordance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013
(POSH Act) and the Rules made thereunder, the Company has in place a
policy which mandates no tolerance against any conduct amounting to
sexual harassment of women at workplace. The Company has
constituted Internal Complaints Committee(s) (ICCs) to redress and
resolve any complaints arising under the POSH Act. During the year
2023-24, no complaint has been reported on sexual harassment of
women employees in work places of BVFCL.
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28. DETAILS OF THE CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSI -
BILITY INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING THE YEAR:

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company satisfies One
threshold criteria as under the provisions of Section 135 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 i.e. Net Profit >/5 Crore out of the three criteria.
In compliance of the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013, the CSR Committee of the Company was constituted by the
Board on 25.07.2023 and the CSR Policy is in process of formulation.
Moreover, since there is no average profit during immediate three
preceding Financial Years, obligation to spend 2% of average profit
as per the provisions of Section 135 (5) doesn't arise during the
Financial Year 2023-24.

However, your Company undertakes various welfare schemes for its
employees and a host of measures as its Corporate Social
Responsibility limited to (the surrounding areas within 8 kms radius),
the details of which are mentioned in detailed in Annexure I i.e.
Management Discussion and Analysis Report.
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ANNEXURE -1
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

1. PREAMBLE

Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited (BVFCL)
incorporated in the year 2002 (CIN U24123AS2002G0OI1006786) is a
Schedule 'B' category Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSU) under
the administrative control of the Department of Fertilizers (DOF),
Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers, Govt. of India. BVFCL is
engaged in the manufacture of Urea, Bio- fertilizers, Vermi-Compost
manure at Namrup (Assam) and trading of Seeds, Pesticides,
Fertilizers (MOP, SSP, Ammonium Phosphate Sulphate, Ammonium
Sulphate, Rock Phosphate), Plant Growth Regulator, City compost
and Micronutrients etc. The Corporation is marketing its products
under the brand name “Mukta”.

2. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENTS:

Urea, as a major source of nitrogen, is also the only controlled
fertilizer and has a major share of consumption compared to all other
fertilizers put together. Urea is at present covered under Essential
Commodity Act (ECA) and the Government declares statutory price
of urea for sale and issues Movement Orders under ECA to different
manufacturers. The statutorily notified sale price and indicative MRP
is less than the cost of production of the respective manufacturing
unit. The difference between the cost of production and the selling
price/ MRP is paid as subsidy/ concession to manufacturers based on
approved FICC Energy norm. Natural gas is the only raw material for
production of Urea fertilizer and accounts for most of the urea
production costs. BVFCL, being the only urea manufacturing unit in
entire north-east and eastern India, bears primary responsibility of
supplying timely urea to farmers across the region.

3. REVIEW OF PRODUCTION PERFORMANCE:

During the year under review, Urea Production in Namrup-III was
180153 MT compared to 223342 MT achieved in Financial Year
2022-23. The targeted Urea production in 2023-24 could not be
achieved due to various unforeseen breakdowns of old, unreliable
equipments. Energy consumption per MT of Urea produced in
Namrup-I1I was 13.27 GCal/MT compared to 12.20 GCal/MT in the
Financial Year2022-23.

Productions of Urea, Bio Fertilizer and Vermi Compost during the
last five years are given below
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fomra. ?J;FEIT (QTI?,"T) SH9-3ah It hraEe RERED F.Yr. | Urea(MT) Bio-Fertilizers| Vermi Compost| NPK
(T () (i) (MT) (MT*) (MT*%)
soe | feshr  |Sere | ferht e | fesfr | Seae | feht Prod. |Sale |Prod. | Sale Prod. | Sale Prod. | Sale
2019-20| 155992|160186(35.54 | 29.60 | 83.86 | 64.73 | — - 2019-20| 155992|160186(35.54 | 29.60 | 83.86 | 64.73 | — —
2020-21| 131880(137569(14.75 | 16.48 | 81.02 | 80.19 | — - 2020-21| 131880|137569(14.75 | 16.48 | 81.02 | 80.19 | — -
2021-22| 170280( 169922 |53.81 | 48.42 107.17| 110.41] — - 2021-22| 170280( 169922 [53.81 | 48.42 107.17| 110.41| — -
2022-23| 223342]227870]152.94| 147.84| 101.39| 60.66 | 67.53 | 59.94 2022-23| 223342]227870]152.94| 147.84| 101.39| 60.66 | 67.53 | 59.94
2023-24| 180153|175340(195.68| 152.13 | 0.00 41.04 | 463.59| 195.48| [2023-24| 180153|175340(195.68| 152.13 | 0.00 41.04 | 463.59| 195.48

* ICUTEH Shl 3o AT oh Sh1ROT 10.02.2023 § it spriee fmfor sig
ERNEIRIDI

*+ TR CeATe STt 2023 H AT &1 TR R

AEY- 11 G T ford af 2019-20 o IR0 &1 9t fasherarati 1
HIHHT HTAT T, Teet 17.05.2019 i AR GEL 06.01.2020 1 &3
ff| TrEt! ST o T =T W TG Tt ahT TR & Y[ fofalt <17 et
I e HEHAT 6 ST ATHEY- 11 3T HaTer {5 & I &M o qid 918
Za{ FEAEE1 06.01.2020 aﬁmﬁw%aﬁﬁwwaﬁl
w%ﬁﬁw%mqﬁﬁaﬂ%aﬁmww ST Fsgmor
ST H THSIE foharm TTT T Itk forsImT o - 11 Wi ot
TuiEra i snifer wamer ot Reurfr 6t wften & forg we wfif @
T3 TR oI SR THUhUS 3T STRE TS oIt 6t Ueh demieht 9
 ERIAT T ST FoRRT ST AT 11 6= o HelTe ohl T & S
o Faey o AT Fte S sht| @t = ot foh Eor ST H &
IO H HTohT EedT 3 Iou ATt S T e AR TASIE H
TSRS SIS &I9YUT UTU T, ST HeTeid o Ao H stgeterd feorfa
a1 S Hehd & Fibfd J 310 g foh THET-11 # Sredfores s @ud
THHTSH I HIHES H 5d HATe €, Tl dh UHSATSH | THSHI HeS
NI Tl 21 ST, Tl ok T4 ohl HeTei foi 19 &9 W a8 Tt
B wfafr F T @ R o -1 % SR e % we
I I CHIESHET THEH Aee | Geied ol STEwehdr g,
Tk ATHEY-11 TR 2T T & & LA 6l T G- bt S
Teh| gafery, afirfe 3 TrmeEy- Ilm%mﬁﬁqﬁww%
q&wﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁeﬁ%mﬁaﬁaﬁﬁaﬁﬁqﬁsﬁtwﬁg@ﬁ
foeta =1¢ 1 <@d g, 8 WE, 2023 H A5 foood H ARSI
sfeftemreieet o fHaeres ded &1 1174 daeh | “THe9-11 ¥ &
HET o Tl ®9 § &g R 3R 6 fuer # foe ue e
EaTe W ferer-femst fopam mram sfidfiuseiuet & wrisrt geee &
TS R ST o THETeh Hee shT Tt JeTe ot 178, o FmHey-11
HUE o W1 bl TRl & §(E A SR 36 Hefer § 3fert fshAn
T T o6 SITG, 0k T S[S SIcT ST E i BISH, "6 8
STt 2" o TR T FHHT (IS T oh1 a1 el 15| 1S § STIAIGH
SITH L o ST, "THEY-11 §98 o ST ! Tl &9 8 o8 i 371
T8 (U o1 SRTe 27 ST 2023 i Itk I i 371 o
for ST e 3k aite, T feramr 3 sfiefiuwdive o (ged we:
18017/02/2023-91T8 (5.3463 1) Tk 17 S[@T$ 2023 o ATEad &

* Vermi Compost Manufacturing was discontinued w.e.f. 10.02.2023
due to high Cost of Production.

**NPK Plant has been commissioned in January 2023

Namrup-II plant suffered two major failures during FY 2019-20, the
first one was on 17.05.2019 and the second was on 06.01.2020. The
plant could be re-started after the first incident after about four
months time and the second incident occurred shortly after
resumption of operation of Namrup-II after the first incident. The
plants are under continuous shutdown after the second incident on
06.01.2020. PDIL was engaged for inspection of the plant and NDT
was carried out in the Synthesis Section. Department of Fertilizer had
constituted a Committee to review the status of safe and economic
operability of the Namrup-II plants and a Technical team comprising
NFL and RCF experts visited the plants and submitted their report
regarding the resumption of operation of Namrup-II plants. The
Committee observed that in the Synthesis Section itself, a
considerable numbers of faulty welding joints were found in
radiography and some pipeline joints were found to be defective in
NDT, which may create unsafe condition in case of operation. The
committee further observed that the actual energy consumption in
Namrup-II being much higher than the FICC norm, operation of the
plant will not be financially viable, till the FICC SEC norm is revised.
Committee has opined that health study of the entire Ammonia Plant
of Namrup-II and revision of FICC SEC norm is required, to ensure
the viability of re-starting the Namrup-II plants. So, the committee
has not recommended in favour of resumption of operation of
Namrup-II plants. In view of Technical Committee Report and also
huge Financial Losses to the Company, a detailed proposal for
“Permanent de-commissioning of Namrup-II group of plants and its
disposal” was deliberated in the 117th Meeting of Board of Directors
of BVFCL held on 8th May, 2023 in New Delhi. The consent of the
Board of Directors of the Company was accorded on the proposal of
the Executive Management of BVFCL to permanently de-
commission of Namrup-II Group of Plants and its disposal on “as is
where is” basis, except the Water Treatment Plant associated with it,
after following due process in this regard. After obtaining approval
from Board, proposal for 'permanent decommissioning of Namrup-II
group of plants and its disposal' was sent to Department of Fertilizers
on 27th June 2023 for approval. Subsequently, DoF directed BVFCL
vide letter (Ref. No.: 18017/02/2023-PSU (E.34631) dated 17th July
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2023 to forward a proposal for closure of Namrup-II Unit to DoF in
the form of Note for Alternative Mechanism containing the
introduction, background with physical and financial performance,
manpower and land details of Namrup-II unit, justification and
financial implication of the proposal under terms and conditions as
stipulated in DPE “Guiding Principles for Closure of Units by the
Parent Public Sector Enterprises” issued vide OM dated 3 1stOctober
2022.

During the FY 2023-24, 239 on-stream days could be achieved in
Namrup-I1I Plant compared to 315 days in FY 2022-23.

Some of the Jobs carried out in April, 2023 due to forced shut down for
Secondary Reformer-RGB Transfer Header Failure are as follows:

1. Rectifications of Secondary Reformer to RGB transfer header
leakage.

Skimming of Secondary Reformer catalyst dust.

won

Unloading and reloading of catalyst in Primary Reformer Tube
no.229.

Plant was taken shut down on 11th June, 2023 for Annual Shut Down
2023. Some of the major jobs carried out in the Annual Shut Down
2023 (June—July,2023) are as follows:

Synthesis Converter catalyst replacement

2. HTS Converter Bottom bed catalyst refilling along with
replacement of bottom support grids (with new wire mesh).

3. Skimming of De-Sulphurizer and Methanator top bed dust and
top up of catalyst in Methanator.

4. Replacement of 7 nos. of tubes of Auxiliary Boiler steam super
heater coil.

5. SGC- overhauling of both EMG and WK turbines and all four
barrels beside Rotor replacement of EMG turbine and 2nd
barrel.

Overhauling of PAC HP barrel.
Bearing check up of NGBC and PRC.

Replacement of Governor of NGBC turbine with the one from
Ammonia-II.

9. Hydro-jet cleaning of heat exchangers.

10. Dry ice cleaning of Benfield Solution Cooler (1.32 HE4) fins.

11. Cleaning of Cooling Tower pit.

12. Installation of 3rd Cooling Water emergency pump.

13. Installation of reconditioned motor of Cooling Tower M/D M-1
Pump.

14. Provision of backwashing lines at PRC Condensers and Sub-
condenser.

ATA 2023 got extended up to August due to shearing off of EMG
rotor of Syn Gas Compressor.
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Production Organic fertilizers: In the FY 2023-24, all time highest
production of Bio Fertilizer was recorded. Bio Fertilizer production
achieved was 195.68 MT, compared to previous highest of 152.938
MT in 2022-23. The production of Vermi Compost has been
discontinued w.e.f. 09/02/2023 due to high cost of production.

Neem Coated Urea: As per Government of India's directive for
mandatory 100% production of Neem Coated Urea (NCU)
considering beneficial effects of NCU on increase in soil fertility and
higher yield, BVFCL has successfully set-up developed in house
Neem coating plants in Namrup-III to produce only NCU. The
Company has been producing only Neem Coated Urea with effect
from 20th August 2015 from its plant. The Gol has allowed sale of
NCU at 5% of above MRP of Urea as encouragement for its
production and to recover extra cost of coating.

Implementation of One Nation One Fertilizer: Government has
also made it mandatory to implement One Nation One Fertilizer by
introducing Single Brand for Fertilizers and Logo under Fertilizer
subsidy scheme namely “Pradhanmantri Bhartiya Janurvarak
Pariyojna (PMBJP)”. The Company is using new bags w.e.f. 27th
December 2022 under this scheme as directed by Dept. of Fertilizer
vide F. No. 20-1/2022-FI, dated: 24th August 2022.

4. MARKETING PERFORMANCE REVIEW:

During the year under review, your Corporation has following

marketing activities:

A. Review of Marketing Operations:

(a) Own Products.

1. Mukta Neem Coated Urea: During the financial year 2023-24,
company sold — 175339.800 MT Urea (Previous year
2,27,870.160 MT; excluding export quantity)

ii. Bio-Fertilizers: 152.134 KL liquid Bio-Fertilizers valued Rs.
228.20 Lakhs were sold (Previous year 147.84 KL liquid Bio-
Fertilizers valued Rs. 221.78 lakhs)

iii. Vermi Compost: 41.040 MT Vermi Compost valued Rs. 5.75
Lakhs were sold (Previous year 60.66 MT valued Rs. 8.49
Lakhs).

iv. NPK (19:19:19): 195.48 MT of Mukta NPK (19:19:19) valued
Rs 293.22 Lakhs were sold (Previous year 59.94 MT valued Rs.
89.91 Lakhs).

v. Imported Urea: 257694.265 MT of Imported Urea valued Rs
14551.14 Lakhs were sold. (Previous year 218897.38 MT valued
Rs. 11,725.82 Lakhs).
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(b) Traded Items.

i.  Urea (NFL): 13993.380 MT valued Rs. 790.16 lakhs were sold
(Previous year 65705.22 M T valued Rs. 3,516.77 lakhs).

ii. Urea (HURL) : 49023.000 MT valued Rs. 2768.17 lakhs were
sold (Previous year Nil).

iii. Urea (IFFCO) : 273.735 MT valued Rs. 14.61 lakhs (Previous
year Nil).

iv. SSP Fertilizers: 32468.000 MT valued Rs. 3103.08 lakhs were
sold (Previous year 71927.60 MT valued Rs. 7,950.85 lakhs).

v.  MOP Fertilizers : 1965.500 MT valued Rs. 603.91 lakhs were
sold (Previous year 6988.60 M T valued Rs. 2,200.25 lakhs)

vi. DAP Fertilizers: 375.000 MT valued Rs. 93.60 lakhs were sold
(Previous year 17566.85 MT valued Rs. 4,404.76 lakhs).

vii. Rock Phosphate : 4943.800 MT , valued Rs. 376.67 lakhs were
sold (Previous year 10115.00 M T, valued Rs. 756.99 lakhs).

viii. Mukta Power: 1424.810 MT valued Rs 1823.76 lakhs were sold
(Previous year 3450.22 MT valued Rs 4,416.28 lakhs).

ix. Ammonium Sulphate: 6455.700 MT valued Rs 1067.96 lakhs
were sold (Previous year 16867.51MT valued Rs 2,999.35
lakhs).

x. Factamfos: 1455.400 MT valued Rs 304.18 lakhs were sold
(Previous year 426.00 MT valued Rs 110.52 lakhs).

xi. APS:Nil (Previous year 3583.60 MT valued Rs 945.23 lakhs).

xii. NPK (10:26:26): 119.000 MT valued Rs 32.45 lakhs were sold
(Previous year 2742.60 MT valued Rs 746.54 lakhs).

xiii. PDM : 345.500 MT valued Rs 51.19 lakhs were sold (Previous
year4052.95 MT valued Rs 565.77 lakhs).

xiv. Zinc Sulphate: 254.525 MT valued Rs. 198.10 lakhs were sold
(previous Year 261.98 MT valued Rs. 152.08 lakhs).

xv. NPK: (Water Soluble Fertilizer): 0.100 MT valued Rs 0.10 lakhs
were sold (Previous year 53.52 MT valued Rs 80.19 lakhs).

xvi. Seed: 14.000 MT valued Rs. 16.52 lakhs were sold (Previous
year 110.00 MT valued Rs. 12.23 lakhs);

xvii. NANO UREA : 0.816 KL valued Rs. 3.17 lakhs were sold
(Previous year Nil).

xviii. NANO DAP : 0.186 KL valued Rs. 1.93 lakhs were sold
(Previous year Nil).

xix. Calcium Nitrate: 68.000 MT valued Rs. 38.85 lakhs were sold
(Previous year Nil).

xx. Bentonite Sulphur: 4.260 MT valued Rs. 1.90 lakhs were sold
(Previous year Nil).

xxi. Sagarika - IFFCO 10 Kg Bucket/Bag: 51.000 Nos valued Rs. 0.20

lakhs were sold (Previous year Nil).
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xxii. SAGARIKA - IFFCO: 0.060 KL valued Rs. 0.29 lakhs were sold
(Previous year Nil).

xxiii. City Compost: Nil (Previous year 397.00 MT valued Rs. 28.96
lakhs);

xxiv. HIL NET: Nil (Previous year 7000.00 nos valued Rs 18.76
lakhs)

xxv. Pesticides: Nil (Previous year 7.67 MT/KL valued Rs 33.35
lakhs).

xxvi. Boron: Nil (Previous year 9.00 MT valued Rs. 9.02 lakhs).

(c) Agricultural Promotion Programme:

Your Corporation is the only Urea manufacturing company in
Northeast, playing proactive roles in imparting education/ creating
awareness to its customers/farmers for maintaining the soil health and
increase in crop production. The details of farmers/dealers training
pogramme undertaken by the company are mentioned as below:

I.) Dealers Training Programme: 03 nos. of Dealers Training
Programme were conducted at during F.Y. 2023-24 in different
marketing territories. Since the dealers are vital link in
disseminating the information to the farmers & retailers. Dealers
were educated about the importance of soil testing, benefits of
balanced use of fertilizers based on soil sample report and
benefits of Neem Coated Urea, Vermi Compost & Bio-fertilizers
of your corporation. Dealers were requested to facilitate supply
of fertilizers to the farmers conforming to their soil requirement.

ii.) Farmers Training Programme: 34 no.s of Farmers Training
Programme were conducted at during F.Y. 2023-24 in different
marketing territories. Valued farmers are the key for sale
fertilizer in any area. Though these training programs farmers
were educated and encourage for using the products from
BVFCL product basket and balance use of fertilizer to maintain
soil health.

iii.) Demonstration Programme: 06 nos of Field Demonstration
were conducted at during F.Y. 2023-24 in different marketing
territories to establish the benefits of product of BVFCL to the
farmers.

iv.) Pradhan Mantri Kisan Samruddhi Kendra (PMKSK) :
PMKSK will cater to a wide variety of needs of the farmers and
provide agri-inputs (fertilizers, seeds, implements); testing
facilities for soil, seeds, fertilizers; generate awareness among
farmers; provide information regarding various government
schemes and ensure regular capacity building of retailers at
block/ district level outlets. More than 3.3 lakh retail fertilizer
shops are planned to be converted into PMKSK. BVFCL has
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v.)

vi.)

opened nos of PMKSK in district level in North Eastern states
during F.Y.2022-23 and for F.Y.2023-24 DoF has entrusted us
to serve the farmers of the nation by opening 1126 nos of
PMKSK in North Eastern states.

Viksit Bharat Sankalp Yatra: Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer
Corporation Limited (BVFCL) showcased a series of innovative
programs during the Viksit Bharat Sankalp Yatra, conducted
across the north eastern states of Assam, Meghalaya, Arunachal
Pradesh, Nagaland, Tripura and Mizoram. The event aimed to
promote agricultural advancements and government initiatives,
emphasizing sustainable practices and technological integration
in farming.

A key highlight of the yatra was the drone demonstration, which
illustrated the modern agricultural techniques available to
farmers. These demonstrations showcased the potential of
drones in precision agriculture, from efficient spraying of
fertilizers and pesticides to monitoring crop health, thereby
enhancing productivity and reducing environmental impact. The
practical use of drones was met with enthusiasm from local
farmers, who saw firsthand how technology could transform
their traditional farming practices.

Namo Drone Didi: Union Cabinet has approved a Central
Sector Scheme “Mabhila Kisan Drone Kendra”. Under the said
scheme, Women Self Help Groups (SHGs) will be provided with
15,000 drones in the next three years and the women will be
given training to fly and use drones. These women pilots will be
known as “Namo drone didi”. BVFCL had distributed 18
numbers Drones to 18 numbers of women belonging to Women
Self Help Group of Assam in six districts viz. Dibrugarh,
Tinsukia, Jorhat, Golaghat, Sonitpur& Udalguri.

6. CONSTRAINTS FACED INMARKETING OF UREA:

During the year under review, company experienced constraints in
marketing of urea due the following reasons:

Railway related issues:

Non-availability of rakes due to Restrictions, Congestions and
Quota problem.

Movement Problem:

Negligible or no Supply plan for Bihar and West Bengal.
Distance limitation of 1400 Kms for rake movement.

Limitation of 500 Kms road freight reimbursement in case of Ex-
factory dispatches.
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Other issues:
» Mktg Dept. is working with very limited manpower.

» Trading business always depends upon the market conditions and
supplies.

Production and Marketing of Organic fertilizers:

BVFCL is producing two types of Bio-fertilizers i.e. Azotobacter and
Phosphobactrin (PSB) since 2008-09 and started producing in Liquid
form w.e.f. 8th Jan 2021. Production of Career based Bio Fertilizer
has been stopped due to non-availability of the career materials and
their economic non-viability. Production of Liquid Bio Fertilizer has
been started by using in-house expertise. This is highly beneficial in
achieving higher production on a steady basis in economically viable
way, depending upon demand and marketability.

Vermi Compost Project is also located at Namrup having production
from F.Y. 2008-09 onwards. For composting at the initial stage, the
earthworm Red wigglers (Eisenia fetida) species were procured from
Assam Agricultural University, Jorhat. The Vermi Compost
produced is as per FCO norms. Vermi Compost Manufacturing was
discontinued w.e.f. 10.02.2023 due to high Cost of Production.

BVFCL has started marketing of City Compost from October 2016.
City compost supplies are arranged from West Bengal as no
manufacturer is available in NE states, which results very high cost of
City compost. The current MDA of Rs.1500/MT is not sufficient for
Assam as the cost of transportation by Road from West Bengal to
various districts of Assam is very high.

BVFCL is the only urea manufacturing company in Northeast and
playing proactive roles in imparting education/ creating awareness to
its customers/ farmers for maintaining the soil health and increasing
Crop production.

Some of the major steps adopted to reduce marketing cost are as
follows:

 Rationalization of movement - Rail-Road movement ratio brought
down to 94:06 against permissible limit of 80:20 by DoF (Railway
freightis 100% reimbursable).

 Sales in North-Eastern States is given priority.

* Reduction in Inventory Carrying Cost by maximizing Rail- head
sales with minimum storage.

¢ Minimum Inventory level in Silos.

* 100% Payment collection is through RTGS/CMS.

The company is continuing the trading activities for fertilizers and
agricultural products to help farmers so that all Agro products are

available under one roof (Single Window Concept).
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Afereh 3eTeh o STANT Rl G TeT o o foTe, sfefiumeiuet & Sfae
JATehT I FAIL AT AT 3TGH, AL, B, Armele 1K
IEEEEEEISIGIE]

B UHTOE, R0Ted Yen AR fafrrm usat o oft 5w
TRTTE/3H Y ferTT/ehefieh o |rer frrefe wvmerr o Stforsh Saent i
QTS o [T ST HASE T LR 2

FicTE! T ITTT:

ii.

ST TEI e AT 3T IR GTE T TE Sioeh IaLhl AT
A3k I THT-HFIEE ohl GfoErEl FISHT o dad IiHe i
Y 37 3cq1el ol foremt <t Farfia fshar & snfie o d 7ee
foreh

fordt sprdiee o forw 1500 w0 i #ifgen 2 il er @ A uaEin
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Constraints in Marketing of Organic fertilizers:

i

iii.

Vi.

Lack of awareness about uses & benefits of Organic fertilizers
among farmers.

Organic fertilizer does not show instant and dramatic response
like chemical fertilizers.

The shelflife of bio-fertilizer is limited to 6-12 months in powder
form and 12-24 months for liquid form.

Adaptability of bio-fertilizer strains is limited to specific soil &
climatic conditions.

Organic fertilizers are pushed to the dealers along with Chemical
fertilizers and forced sale is taking place at Dealers/Retailers
level to farmers.

Needs special care during its handling & transportation to avoid
leakage/bursting of packing's.

Steps taken by BVFCL to overcome the Constraints:

i

iii.

Vi.

Switched over to Liquid bio-fertilizers as they have longer Shelf
life to the extent of 12 to 24 months.

Training to farmers on uses and benefits of Organic fertilizers
during Fertilizer Application Awareness Programme (FAAP),
Mass Contact Programme & Farmers Training Programmes etc.

Training programmes to Dealers & Retailers on Organic
fertilizers on mode of action, benefits so that they can guide
farmers in a proper way as they are having day to day contact
with the farmers at larger level.

. Involvement and active Support of States' Agriculture

Department/ Agriculture Universities and Krishi Vigyan Kendra
Scientists to promote Organic fertilizers.
In order to promote the use of Organic fertilizer, BVFCL's
Organic fertilizers are sold in North Eastern states i.e. Assam,
Manipur, Tripura, Nagaland& Mizoram.

We are also trying our best efforts to promote Organic fertilizers
in Meghalaya, Arunachal Pradesh & Sikkim states as well, in
close coordination with the State Administration/Agriculture
Department/ KVKs of these states.

Provision for subsidy:

L.

ii.

Inclusion of Organic Fertilizers i.e. Bio-fertilizer and Vermi-
compost under Subsidy scheme like other Chemical fertilizers &
City Compost will help these products to get added into regular

package of practices by the farmers.

M.D.A. applicable for City compost @ Rs 1500/- Per MT needs

to be restored.
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7. Ay & forg vl wrgivs sivuge:

sfefiusHiuer i1 2022-23 8 19 A1 o ot TR TR & @rd |
ST T <hT S ST aTeh e oh fore arrdia s dfremefidy
SeUTE SATEfed foram T R) AT &A1 B SiEg, NG,
anfeem ST HeT YT deh et fean & ofi forem i ufam smer
T=AT o S TidiTIed aret &5t § Sl ot Jeeeh sIgET T3 2l
forr ad 2023-24 % S sfefiuwEite 3 06 srETSi 6t Eefei 3t
AT HherdTIae T &t 2| sfefuweine sifiae wiRd
Iyl BTfiret vt % SE9 & I TS, AT ST i yewr
forqur &5t 3 ST foreqm ot T AISHT ST TR

HISTET AHEIIT JTOA o STATE, ST TTHETTA o 2023-24 3
YT IS FI IS TG o oIt TT AR qFfeRl & $Hh,
fefies, ddt Fm fafies & ary a@siar I w

idehl qTgdd TedlHCS,

TR fhU 8

8. SUFRHITA THET A Weterd ATHTAN WRa 6T Rafa
fare:

T g FH TS ARTA T U gl IO FSSTs foh T =y =t
TATHL TR AT T IS Lo SATCHH IRA H g ST
FNTET & TEY 2| H U1 oh 371 & el UHUH STeh{cieh 119 ol ST
FLTET & L TH ThR ST TS/ STRTATTS 317e T Frefeat
T gfE o T 31 38 ST, < @ agd [ 1, 3Efey
aﬁwﬁmwﬁa%ﬁmﬁmﬁﬁaw&sﬁ@ﬁﬁ@ﬂ%
BIGK]

. 9k R, AT AT Sfean fafies (OIL) Fasidiht e d
TS sheleT BT A PM STah ek 11t a1 ST fobarT & ST fopeft
it LNG/RLNG 3T =T ST Ereweieh shr i 7 famerm
B G 3 319 Tl e shl IR i 3T AT forhetaraty
Y R B o STes[E, T TTHideh 16 1 TN e
TR EE FIET T IeATa ek et H3T T =i et sht
s, T8 stmrem it <t et 1 g R o T ST e
B

T, SHATHITHTAT T TTCHTIEd L o6 (T8 AT IeTe 2l dF T H
mwmmwﬁﬁwww%mmm
F e Fh ST &TAT T T A3 AT F i
{-?JII‘M ERC ARSI dd{*ldm%ﬁa—m‘@ﬁq%l

T 3 yiEeETe & foaudid, S 1ot Srewdieh STeawehdr &
TATHT 30% o foTg sTRuaeTst @ fnft €, wisEr w6 it
ST RIS O T § HeH ST 8 STE-ITE o &l |
SUCToE BT STehfdieh T T SATEMT S 6@ STreafrafear hr
RIECICACEC RS

7. FUTURE OUTLOOK AND INITIATIVES FOR THE
CURRENT YEAR:

* BVFCL has been allotted PICT port, Paradip for Handling &
Marketing of Imported Urea in Govt. of India account for Three
years from 2022-23 onwards. Marketing areas have been extended
to Chhattisgarh, Jharkhand, Odisha & Madhya Pradesh and dealers
network has been increase in lesser represented areas of Bihar &
West Bengal states. During F.Y. 2023-24 BVFCL has successfully
completed Handling & Marketing of 06 numbers of ships. BVFCL
is also planning for further expansion of Marketing areas to Uttar
Pradesh, Telangana & Andhra Pradesh with the aim of achieving a
pan India presence.

 Inaddition to the existing MoUs, BVFCL has executed MoUs with
new business partners viz. IFFCO, Agrophos India Ltd, Madhav
Agrochem Pvt. Ltd., MN Crop and Fertico Pvt Ltd , Deepee Chem.
Ltd to enhance the range of its product basket during 2023-24.

8. STATUS REPORT FOR ATMANIRBHAR BHARAT
PERTAINING TO BVFCL NAMRUP:

The Company is immensely contributing to Atmanirbhar Bharat by
producing indigenous Urea by running one very old designed plants at
a very low production cost. The plant is using only APM Natural Gas
from the near-by wells and thereby ensuring no dependence on
imported LNG/RLNG etc. Moreover, as the plants are very old, so
most of the spares are now procured from indigenous sources by

developing local vendors for the same.

Salient points are given below:

a) During the year, the Company has used only domestic APM
Natural Gas available from the near-by fields of Oil India
Limited (OIL) and not used any LNG/RLNG or other imported
feedstock. In spite of the plants surpassing their effective life and
troubled with frequent failures, saving of foreign exchange was
achieved by producing indigenous cheap urea using local
Natural Gas, which would have to be imported otherwise to meet
the shortfall in Urea.

b) A proposal to replace the existing plants by establishing a new

modern project of bigger capacity is under consideration of DoF to

reduce dependence of urea import by boosting Urea production by
more than three times to encourage Atmanirbharta.

¢) Unlike other projects which are dependent on RLNG for about

30% of their feedstock requirement, the existing plants and the

proposed project will be based entirely on domestic Natural Gas

available from the near-by areas from M/s OIL. This will give a

big boost to the scheme of Atmanirbharta.
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o, 39 USHT § IS 230 S oIiATesT, JUTe, FIHR e sl d)  This project has a very high potential to export Urea to the
T ot s Bt srad 31T ST &, s I neighbouring countries like Bangladesh, Nepal, Myanmar etc.
i s N %’%{QT 3 T 3 because of its close proximity to these countries and good
& e & ST et fereford %’ SIS USLERIE connectivity, when self sufficiency in Urea production is
AT AT BT 21 STt shufi 3 gged S AT B 2.0 LMT achieved in the Country. The Company had already exported
¥ srfres i frata frm 21 s g g & A more than 2.0 LMT of Urea to Nepal in the past. This will boost
. S . S the vision of honourable Prime Minister for 'Make for World',
A ATy Heh R ATE o fors oht +f srgran firer| along with 'Make in India’
T, forfay 2023-24 % SR STETH UIEe ST THUHS o AT 8 e) Procurement of Goods and Services through GEM Portal and
aﬁ?’ﬁ I CI G CARC R aﬁn‘s‘% MSE during the Financial Year 2023-24 is given below:
) 2)
F) TS ATIL I a.  Onnumber basis:
- - : Sr. Number Basis No Percentage
HHE. | HEAT AR e 5l o ETeT TicRrd £
= . S No. w.r.t Total
1 FAR AT | 474 I Total No. of PO | 474
(I + 9 % 9TeX) placed (GeM +
9 247 52% Outside GeM)
BEEEIE 227 48% GeM 247 52%
(T fHferan/ Out Side GeM | 227 (including 37 Pos placed|48%
on Single Tender/
Nomination basis
@) W%Wm b. Onvaluebasis:
A | T AT T (%) BN & |mey SL. | Value Basis Amount (Rs.) Percentage
9. Bl No. w.r.t Total
2 | FA (S + S E ) Tl 55,62,79,661.00 2 | Total (GeM + Outside GeM) 55,62,79,661.00
Procurement
T ST o OTEIH § el Tt o 15,15,22,955.00 27.23% Total PO Value through GeM 15,15,22,955.00 27.23%
ff | Se-grEe SW % ey 40,47,56,706.00 72.76% B Total PO Value through 40,47,56,706.00 72.76%
T e el 7o Out-side GeM
off 1| iR / U ffeer & 16,51,85,787.00 29.69% st 1| Total Value procured from 16,51,85,787.00 29.69%
TR 9T YTH el I Nomination/Single Tender Basis
2| I W ATITsIdT 23,23,77,083.00 41.77% st 2| Total Value procured due to 23,23,77,083.00 41.77%
EF[I‘JTEh_vF Epk el non availability on GeM
3 el THUHUHS (@-q+@-q ﬁaﬂg() 15,34,80,658.00 27.59% 3 Total MSME 15,34,80,658.00 27.59%
(@) (GeM + Outside GeM) (A+B)
T ST o AT O el 10,18,57,874.00 18.31% A | Total MSME PO Value 10,18,57,874.00 18.31%
W@—g \:ﬁa}qu through GeM
ot EIRUSEE R I EE 5,16,22,784.00 0.28% B Total MSME PO Value 5,16,22,784.00 9.28%
el THTETHS N3 5o through Outside GeM
@t | ofear saftet o @ddues 1,16,43,769.00 2.09% C Total Value of procured from 1,16,43,769.00 2.09%
& | er™faq sfaerERE SHeTd | 0.00 0.00% WOMEN entrepreneurs
FETT T oiTe THTEs D Total Value procured from MSEs| 0.00 0.00%
) ATH et oA owned bySC / ST entrepreneurs
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TTASTETET o oh ATEA © sfie e et 3T ey Usieiue &
= arforfsass foame & meaedyamee & fag afmt i
fif (&fatiew) i s afufa i 09.06.2023 i sfegfa
[EZIREIES éﬁaﬁrarﬁ@wﬁwqﬁgé%lﬁaﬁﬁa%aﬁrﬁ
57.16 IS TII R

FICC SSil HTEST o1 |MeH: 22.05.2024 i AR 1224
I 3 1, ford o 2023-24 3 forw shot o e 3 focftar
Iqei oh THTEAT L g, fHaTeR (3came) it Hiewe (arfafh
TR, STEUHE T T &S sl oy 202 1 H i mgua &l f{uie o
STERTA AT 3T Fe1 AFES 12.69 STHTTA/THET ht T@Teht
13.24 STEOuet/qHe s g feam

I TSI T foreqa ==t 31 foram-fomef o qem shofi 6
iR faramr =Rt et foar fo6 e didiemsua foard & amam
TS HTEET H gfeg oh ST H S HaTerd & a1 bl

FeTER, diEiAtsua i fawier % IEr 01.01.2017 &
THET-IIT ¥ 0 ChaSee vadet ardel 1 G
13.24 STETCUA/THE T o FAFHIET 6 T 02.07.2024
AL H e (TUH), SIS T ST o ST A7 7]

ATIEY- 111 e T TTE STEAIAIAH UHgyd § Sfifaret 3
e % foTu, TTHE-111 3613 6 HISET 61 61 St @ud o
AT 3T eFmar gfg o foTu SasmidT F1 3Teher i o fag
W&ﬁ%ﬁqﬁﬁmm@raﬁﬁaﬁﬁsﬁw
m?ﬁn‘sﬂaﬂw ﬁwfzrqxﬁw(qéﬁﬁﬂﬁwm
W)aﬂtﬁuﬁﬁﬁwﬁaﬁﬁm aﬁmaﬁtsqaﬁﬁmwsﬁ%
mwﬁﬁmw%mwwm%mwﬁw
12.03.2022 3 HTeaH § e foham i, fSreenr 329 &:

GHAT I (TR TR 720 Hifeaw 2/fe & @ 1200 Hifewh
/i)

Tt @ud § FHH (FdHH X 12.00 StEieue/mndt @ 8.00
Sirefiuuet/undt ae) g frmrrdt aiies @, dTfeh 37 Gt ot
form fopeft o1g e o6 o & ohi 3TTT 10 9T ek HeiTford Tk
ST

SIS oh ST ST HE Ul ST oh STcree T /Aefi-fieRtor
HTEW & Sl B o o TTT-ETeT &7 H gfeg b1 href ot o fore
oY TIATTE ¥ 16.06.2022 T 3 HGH AUT T 20.06.2022
1 T T T

Sreftuheiue i€ 3 1ot 1124 3 (3R 2022) T SWIh
TR o EETCH o (1T “ B Teieh &0 &7 Tl e 6l gur
ST o SR o ToTT 07 AT SITEH o &4 H sfefiuweive
! Torf i TreTeraT o fofu femies 18.11.2022 31 04.01.2023 %
TATh AT SISTUS & Heh feha T |

9. ISSUES PENDING WITH DEPARTMENT OF FERTILIZERS:

L.

iii.

a)

b)

Committee of Secretaries (CoS) meeting for arbitration /
resolution of commercial dispute between BVFCL & M/s
AGCL through the AMRCD mechanism: Committee has been
notified on 09.06.2023, meeting date yet to be finalized. The
amount of claim in the dispute is Rs. 57.16 Cr.

Revision of FICC Energy norms: In the 122nd Board Meeting
held on 22.05.2024, while reviewing the Physical & Financial
Performance of the Company for FY 2023-24, the Director
(Production) & CMD (Addl. Charge), BVFCL apprised the
Board about the report of PDIL in the Year 2021, and suggested
enhancement of energy norms of 12.69 GCal/MT to 13.24
GCal/MT.

The Board held detailed discussions and deliberations on the
agenda note and directed the Executive Department of the
Company to pursue about the enhancement of energy norms to
the Ministry of DoF based on PDIL Report.

Accordingly, a request letter was sent to Addl. Secretary (AM),
DoF on 02.07.2024 for according approval for revision of FICC
SEC norms for Namrup-III to 13.24GCal/MT w.e.f. 01.01.2017
asrecommended by PDIL.

Health Study of Namrup-III Plants: For sustenance & survival in
present scenario, requirement was felt for engagement of
Process Licensors to conduct study to assess feasibility for
energy consumption reduction & capacity enhancement of the
existing plants of Namrup-III Unit. Accordingly, M/s Topsoe
A/s (previously M/s Haldor Topsoe A/S) and M/s Saipem were
contacted vide Letter dated 12.03.2022 for submission of
proposal for undertaking the above mentioned study for
Ammonia, Urea & Utility Plants with the objective of:

Capacity Enhancement (from its present level of 720 MT/day to
about 1200 MT/day).

Energy Consumption Reduction (from its present level of 12.00
Gceal/MT to 8.00 Geal/MT) in the most economic way, so that
these Plants can be operated for at least next 10 years without any
further major investment.

Proposals were received from M/s HTAS on 16.06.2022 & from
M/s Saipem on 20.06.2022 for undertaking the job of energy
reduction as well as enhancement of capacity through up

gradation of the process and replacement/ renovation of critical
equipments.

BVFCL Board accorded “In Principle” Approval in its 112th
Meeting (Aug'22) for conducting the above study. DoF was
approached vide letters dated 18.11.2022 & 04.01.2023 for
Financial Assistance to BVFCL in the form of Loan or Grant for
implementation of the revamp measures.

47



|

\
S

;‘g,@;— TN il BiceTsue mitfee fEfets

BVFC BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

BT Toh, ={feh ATHEY-1V GRS oh T 2T S Tel Hishd &
O foramarefi o, safore wareey stear i e fear

T AT o HelTe o fo1g foretr wifler svera o qu
B 3TN ST Tte 3 qepieht 37 foreftar qeartert & ame &
AT e BTeA{eh, STEAET o HTer o o ST o
AT 8.00 (3113 S T (SHTHT) B

TETETL, &Y 111 FTT g ST STt i o forg
HTHIE Y& L o W8T 36 (T8, S UHHTTe T foreitar
FERAT YeH i & foTT 02.07.2024 T 3T G (TTH),
ST o T ST O AT TTAT Tl

iv. AHEY-1V YRESET & T AHEY-1V 6 EA9AT & fog
feTe 21.05.2015 T Shfere T ST o HATH, 75 TREASHT
Jeften formT, 3eites Ue 9 HrTetd o G fshd o= 21

10. TR

FHAAT T 2004-05 T AT T o HTer THSAT 197 9L ST HTAT
% LT ot ST A 2022-23 2 S TTw T <=t off o

However, as the proposal for setting up of Namrup-IV project was
under active consideration, the Health Study was kept on hold.

The financial involvement for conducting the Health Study
would be known only after completion of the study and technical
& financial appraisal of the study report. However, approximate
financial implication for conducting the study would be to the
tune of Rs. 8.00 (eight) Cr (approx.)

Accordingly, a request letter was sent to Addl. Secretary (AM),
DoF on 02.07.2024 for according approval for conducting the
revamp study for Namrup-III as well as for extending financial
assistance to BVFCL for the same.

iv.  Establishment of Namrup-IV Project: As per the Cabinet Approval
dated: 21.05.2015 for setting up of Namrup-IV, the new project is
under active consideration of Department of Fertilizer, MoOC&F.

10. MOURATING:
The Company had started signing MoU with Department of Fertilizer
w.e.f. 2004-05 and Ratings obtained during the year 2022-23 was

2023-24 %mmwﬁgyﬁr@ offy qud . The.MoU R?ttlng for the Year 2023-24.was exempted.
Rrea T S TR TR AT Ratings obtained during the last five years are given below:

ELl yfe Year Rating

2019-20 RCNE] 2019-20 Poor

2020-21 RCE] 2020-21 Poor

2021-22 RCNE} 2021-22 Poor

2022-23 =T 2022-23 Good

2023-24 AT BT 2023-24 MoU Exempted

11. Frisren Hmer™ 3T 217 R SR WATAS 1/ TAToaT 3T
o ot fcert st srgaTer

TG TR o Hiues o fafim amdet it frrt & fore e,
ot fafid &9 9 39 9rgel ol FHaH IucTey SRR & 9
TR L TET & STt STTaveharail sl I qLg § STITe L &l
2l

Atk e fomT 3 &1t € A S-ufen dider e foRaT 2, S U
gt R SR srqoes @ 8, NH WRa @R %
31T et fafiee st woiftr o wifor srl-fofgadt / sremalt /
TE /AT R /e ST % AT H dst T % forg

o o o
[FehHd TshATTAT &

11. COMPLIANCE OF VARIOUS DIRECTIVES OF THE
CONTROLLING MINISTRY AND OTHER GOI MINISTRIES
/AGENCIES ETC.

Govt. of India has set-up many online portals viz. Samanvay,
Samadhan, Sambandh, Drishti etc. to monitor various parameters of
the CPSEs and the Company is regularly updating these sites with the
latest available information and is fully complying all the
requirements.

Department of Public Enterprises has recently launched e-Samiksha
portal which is an online Monitoring and Compliance Mechanism,
developed to fast track the compliance of pending action-points/
proposals/ issues/ projects/ schemes/ targets, etc. of various
implementing agencies such as Ministries/ Departments/
Organizations of Government of India, State Governments,
Autonomous Bodies, PSUSs, etc.
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forey, wTee ETeH, FeET by, S 3T stiafes R
WW%%WWWW%

Once the action-points/ proposals/ issues/ targets, etc. are added in the
eSamikSha digital platform, system automatically pushes it for the
regular interval updation to the respective stakeholder(s), till it get
compliance. Monitoring Agency(s) may obtain various exceptional
and compliance status reports on the fly.

This system also facilitates the Monitoring Agencies to further give
directions/ remarks and send email/ SMS to the stakeholder(s) on a
particular action-points/ proposals/ issues/ targets etc. Monitoring
Agencies directions/ remarks may be prioritized and displayed in
different colours to act promptly by the stakeholder(s). The Company
has duly nominated its Nodal Officer and is effectively interacting by
using the latest Gol portal.

12. STATUS REPORT TOWARDS SETTING-UP OF NAMRUP-IV
PROJECT:

As the plants are facing ageing problem and they have already
surpassed their effective life, so if the establishment of a new project
is not immediately expedited, serious interruption in urea production
may be resulted because of major failures of the equipments and
machineries. Still with the available in-house resources, utmost
efforts are being made to continue to run the plants safely till the new
project is commissioned.

As per the Cabinet Approval, RFQ was floated on 28.01.2016 and
RFP was floated on 17.06.2016. Two bidders viz. M/s Gujarat
Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited and M/s. Adani Enterprises Ltd.
were pre-qualified, but none of them submitted their financial bids in
response to RFP. As such, the two stage bidding process approved by
the Union Cabinet could not be successful, as there was no response
from the Bidders for the Request for Proposal.

In view of no response received in PPP mode bidding, a meeting was
held on 05.09.2016 at DoF and it was inter-alia decided that a
proposal should be put up for setting up the new Ammonia-Urea plant
of BVFCL at Namrup (i.e. Namrup-IV) through PSU route. A new
initiative was taken by DoF for setting-up of a 12.70 LMTPA NG
based plant through nomination route by forming a JV of CPSEs and
Govt. of Assam.

13. RISKMANAGEMENT:

The company had laid down Risk Management Policy for
Assessment & Minimization procedures to be reviewed by the Board
of Directors on quarterly basis. The possible risks have been
identified and grouped under specific responsibility areas such as
Plant Operation & Maintenance, Utilities, Environment Regulatory,
Business Competition, Market, Finance, Human Resources,
Information Technology, Legal and Internal Control.
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14. COMPLIANCE OF ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY
MANAGEMENT:

BVFCL Namrup is committed to work for the protection of
environment and it is adhering to all the relevant and applicable
laws/rules/ standards etc. viz. the Water (Prevention & Control of
Pollution) Act 1974, Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act
1981, Environment Protection Act 1986, Public Liability Insurance
Act 1991, Batteries (Management & Handling) Rules 2001 etc. All
the returns/reports etc., which are required to be submitted as per
various laws/rules/govt. orders are submitted regularly in time.
Consent to Operate is renewed by the Pollution Control Board, Assam
regularly as per Water Act and Air Act. A policy of Rs.15.00 crores
under Public Liability Insurance Act 1991 has been taken to give
insurance coverage to the nearby people, in case of disaster.All safety
norms are strictly followed in BVFCL. Personnel Protective
Equipments

(PPE) is periodically issued to employees and health check-ups are
also carried out. All jobs are executed as per safety norms. BVFCL is
also having a well equipped Fire Brigade, which is capable of meeting
all regular need. As per Mutual Aid Scheme with the neighboring
industries in Dibrugarh and Tinsukia district, external assistance is
also available in case of any disaster.Liquid ammonia is stored in
Horton Sphere of 1500 MT capacity which is covered by Petroleum
Explosives & Safety organization (PESO) License under Static and
Mobile Pressure (Unfired) Rules 2016. Hazop Study was done for the
first time along with External Safety Audit and Risk Assessment, by
engaging the external Consultant in 2020. External Safety Audit (IS
14489:1998) was conducted in 2022. Also the On-site Emergency
Planisupdated periodically.

15. PLASTIC WASTE MANAGEMENT RULES, 2016:

The Ministry of Environment Forests and Climate Change (MoEF &
CC), Government of India, vide gazette Notification dated
18.03.2016 has specified rules for Plastic Waste Management. The
Rules fix the responsibility of local bodies, Gram Panchayat and
Waste generators, as well as producers, importers and brand owners
for collection and management of plastic waste. As per this rule,
BVFCL has started the registration process.

16. KEY OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS:

i.) The Opportunities to the Company

» Scope for exporting of urea to neighbouring states.

 Diversification into other agricultural products.

* To arrange for all fertilizers and agro products as per single
window concept.

 Setting up new brown field project.
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ii.) The Threats to the company

Competition from other urea manufacturing companies having
lower energy consumption and lower cost of production.
Uncertainty of continuation of supply of Natural Gas at a
concessional rate.

Shortage of capital investment due to paucity in fund generation.
Closure of the Company due to high cost of production & un-
viability.

Acute shortage of manpower to run the plants.

Continuous attrition of qualified and experienced manpower to
other CPSUs offering
Delay in establishing a new bigger size project replacing the

attractive remuneration.

existing one.

(iii.) Strength and Weakness

Entire requirement of feedstock and fuel is being met from APM
Natural Gas available at Gol notified price.

The unit is using only domestic gas and is located close to the
source of Feed/ Fuel NG.

Lower absolute cost of production in the units if run without
interruption.

It is the only urea producing Company in the entire North-Eastern
States, where still there is shortfall to the extent of 40 Lakh MT
exists.

Transportation advantage for supply of Urea compared to other
companies situated outside North-Eastern states of India.

Lower transportation cost of the natural gas because of location of
Namrup plants near to the gas wells.

Direct and indirect generation of employment in the States of
Assam & other North-Eastern states, which are predominantly
economically backward.

iv.) The Weakness of the Company

Notconnected to the National Gas Grid.

Small capacity of the plants compared to modern standard size
plant.

Old energy inefficient technology inherited from FCIL and
HFCL.

Oldage ofthe plants.

Non-availability of spares due to obsolescence.
Non-availability of skilled & trained manpower.

Acute shortage of skilled manpower
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17.1T UPGRADATION AND E-GOVERNANCE:

L. IT ADOPTION/UP-GRADATION:

* Email service from NIC has been implemented in the domain
@bvfcl.com. All Officers have been provided official email ids.

» Visitor Management System has been implemented.

* Online Outgoing AVI for Employees has been implemented.

» E-Office, a digital workspace solution developed by NIC has been
implemented.

* Accounting System is being migrated from old COBOL based
software to Tally Accounting System.

» HR Management System has been implemented.

* House Allotment Application form has been made online.

* Company's website has been renovated with up to date
information.

 Bill Tracking System has been implemented.

II. E-GOVERNANCE:

* Government eProcurement Platform (GePNIC), developed by
National Informatics Centre (NIC) has been utilized to publish
online tenders and to conduct online auctions.

* Procurement through Government e-Market place (GeM) is being
utilized.

» The Company's web site is maintained with updated information.
Vacancies/ notices are published in the company's website and the
portal of National Career Service.

* Official Twitter, Facebook, Koo app, Youtube Channel and Instagram

accounts are being maintained with updated information.

18. INSURANCE:

The properties and insurable assets of your Corporation such as Plant
& Machineries, Building Stocks and others are adequately insured.
As required under the provisions of Public Insurance Act, 1991, your
Corporation has taken a policy of Rs. 15 crores to give insurance

coverage to the peoples of adjoining areas, in case of any disaster.

19.SECURITY:

The security of the Namrup Fertilizer Complex is being monitored by
the CISF and in Corporation's township, the security guarding in
public buildings as well as night patrolling are being monitored by the
outsourced private security Agency. Corporation is providing a night
patrolling van to local police authority to keep vigil in and around the
Namrup Township for maintenance of peace and tranquility in entire
area/township. In order to review the entire security system of
BVFCL factory premises, Security meeting is organised from time to

time with CISF Unit Commander and the requirement/infirmity if any
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highlighted by them are immediately addressed. The management,
security staff and the employees of your corporation are sensitized

periodically to the security needs of Corporation.

The sanctioned strength of CISF personnel for deployment in BVFCL
factory area is 144 during the period under review. Moreover, total 31
nos. private security personnel are also deployed in entire BVFCL

township on 24*7 hrs. through out source security agency.

20.INTEGRITY PACT:

Your Corporation has implemented Integrity Pact (IP) in all the
Procurement of Goods and Services having threshold value of Rs.
1.00 Crores and above after obtaining approval of Board of Directors
in the year 2019. Further, the Integrity Pact clause is invariably
incorporated in all the Tenders having value more than Rs. One Crore
and above. Prescribed periodic review of Integrity Pact
implementation is being done through Independent External
Monitor(s).

21.STATUS OFISO 9001 & 14001 CERTIFICATE:
Certificates for ISO 9001:2015 & ISO 14001:2015 were obtained
w.e.f. 17/01/2022 and valid till 16/01/2025. Certificates were

obtained after successful completion of Recertification Process.
Recertification Audit was conducted in the month of March 2022.

Re-certifications for ISO 9001:2015 and 14001:2015 are being
implemented in Namrup- IIT Group of Plants and Common Services
Departments of BVFCL.

Certification Agency:M/s SWISS CERT PRIVATE LIMITED, Delhi.

After Recertification, First Surveillance Audit was conducted in
January 2024.

Second Surveillance Audit is due in the current year (2024-25) which
will be conducted shortly.

22.INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

The Company has adequate internal control system in the respective
areas of Finance & Accounts supported by Internal Audit and regular
management reviews. In the accounting, internal control is exercised
right from the preparation of vouchers where each voucher is checked
and countersigned by respective senior officers as per delegation of
power. The daily cashbook balance on manual basis is physically
counted and checked with the book. Similarly, all bank accounts are
also reconciled periodically. Internal control is also exercised for

accounting where vouchers including journal vouchers entered into
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the system are checked and validated before those are accounted for.
Every proposal for purchase/works contract or others having
monetary involvement are examined as per policy and procedures and
reviewed by a committee before taking appropriate decision. Internal
Control System includes compliance of all the applicable laws, safety
of assets of the Company and risk management. The System is
reviewed from time to time and necessary actions taken for its
improvement. Internal Audit is conducted by the outside qualified
agency supported by the Finance & Accounts Department. Internal
Audit examines documents / records / procedures and submits
periodical reports for compliance. The Internal Audit Reports and
follow up actions thereon are regularly placed before the Audit
Committee. Audit Committee regularly reviews the internal audit and
adequacy of internal control. As reported by the Internal Audit Firm
and the Statutory Auditors of the Company that the check and balance
of'internal control system in the present accounting software, which is
based on the COBOL Programming, needs to be strengthened by
replacing the same with the latest accounting software prevailed in the

Industry.
23, ATHa T foreRTa: 23. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT:
&, ST e A.MANPOWER POSITION
3192024 Wﬁmﬁgmwﬁﬁﬁaﬁ 387 91131.03.2024 The total manpower status of the Corporation as on 31st March 2024 was
U STeTTR T Reerfer A oft- 387. The manpower position by category as on 31.03.2024 was as
° under:-
EXK Afort AT % SI.No.| Categories Nos. %
1 srggfea sfa 31 8 1 Scheduled Caste 31 8
2 LG St 50 12.90 2 Scheduled Tribe 50 12.90
3 1 e it 109 28 3 OBC 109 28
4 qcﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ 0 0 4 Ex- Servicemen 0 0
5 SRR ®9 4 foshetin 1 0.25 5 Physically handicapped 1 0.25
6 Higat 27 6.9 6 Women 27 6.9
(TEE-04,T0-03, (SC-04,ST-03,
SASE-07,5TA-13) OBC-07,Gen-13)
HeuHETH 22 5.6 7 Minority 22 5.6
T 197 50.9 Others 197 50.9
@. gfvreror B.TRAINING

e ad 2023-24 S SR UiSTRUT Rt Y el

ST o foTe, for ad 2023-24 o fotu G fepw o f3retor sheiet
o TTAR TH1S H AN TIRI&T0T 3 el SARA o HIEAH o
TR o Sgdt Ye3i o foru it s feru e 2| e i ufireror

Areport of the Training Records during the Financial Year 2023-
24.

For employees, continuous effort for improved performance of
employees has been made through in-house training both in the plant
and through classroom lectures as per Training Calendar prepared for
FY 2023-24. In spite of limitations on fronts like fund and training
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resources, BVFCL works out training need assessment based on the
yearly feedback on performance from the departments. Further
extensive training need survey is carried out periodically based on the
analysis of the educational qualification; training imparted during the
induction period, subsequent on the job exposure, summarized
nfeedback on performance and interviews

Further, the Company is engaging apprentices under Apprenticeship
Act. Apart from engaging apprentices, CMA trainees as well as
Vocational Trainees for exposure to actual industrial environment are

also engaged.

During the year ending 3 1st March, 2024, 07 (Seven) nos. of in-house
training programmes, 07 (Seven) nos. of external training
programmes and 3 (Three) webinars were conducted by the Training
Department of the Company.

hRISHHI 1 i feTd fereor i feammare: e
. : Briefdetails of the programme(s) are stated as below:
1
AT n-house programmes
FH|  HEHH yfamfeisr | fEw G HH| R yfqefri s | fedien TR
H. EaRiicED TR He . EQRIILE TSR Hen
01 | GamsIreeshdr | SATeepri=02  [04/08/2023 | 37T Ud geaam 01 | Safety Awareness | Officers=02  [04/08/2023 | Fire & Safety
e AT FHHAT =26 ferm ST & Fire Fighting FHE =26 Deptt and
Terfercar farrmm Medical Deptt.
02 Q’HBTIQ‘J‘T 5 fe R =11 [09/08/2023 TH. HEgre 02 | Electrical Workshop| Officers =11 |09/08/2023 | M. Mohammed
SHITHTIH T s, S on SIP 5 Relay Aseef, M/s
Sﬁﬁ;%—v{ TR ity ffies| Configuration Siemens Ltd.
03 | Farafafad | afmii=27 [17/082023 | s s/, & || 03 | Workshop on Officers=27  |17/08/2023 | Shri A.Acharaya
IS A e T = 05 T HRTIS Retirement Financial | Workmen = 05 Ex-CGM
T FHRETTAT Eﬁ, Tt Planning and Finance,
Investments NALCO
04 Eﬁﬁﬁq‘ﬂﬁwﬁ SRR = 24 18/08/2023 | 3T&UT qg?-ﬁ, é— 04 | Workshop on Officers = 24 18/08/2023 | Arun Mahato
Fﬁ@f{l}&ﬂ BRIl TR A implementation of E-square alliance
% FHRIIT T’ ffires, 73 foeeft LOTO safety system Ltd. New Delhi
RN in BVFCL
05 | TME TR | SfEmRi=44  [19/12/2023 | s RE H, AR | 05 | Seminar on Stress | Officers=44  [19/12/2023 | Shri Narendra
Hﬁ?ﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁm FHHAT =23 T Management and Workmen =23 |[to Kene,
W AR 20/12/2023 Naturopathy 20/12/2023 | Nagpur
07 | dreua/dEivg MR =31 [23/01/2024 | 3TTFR 9RG, IW | | 07 | Outreach/ Seminar | Officers =31  [23/01/2024 | Income Tax
T IR/ tﬁﬁ &, THT%TZ'T Program on TDS/ India, North
AR wEwT TCS Eastern Region
mg&ww External Training Program
H| 9™ ST EapEa) MikED srafer SI. | Name(s) Organised | Venue Title Duration
., s [ No by
01 | 1. #ffwreft Siferare =ifc, | &, hiY, BIESH 13 & | | 01| 1. Mrs. Juliet Chetia, | SCOPE, |SCOPE, |Leadership | 13thand
BERED HKieeht (TRt |oRmmfei® | 144 Manager New Delhi |New Delhi |Development | 14th
W@gﬁm{m U ferr Tg?ﬂ'%, (MH & Training) for Women July,
2. et T T o, ﬁ?;'a 2023 2. Mrs. Gayatree Mani Executives 2023
3. el () Das, Dy.Manager(Ch
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02 | it form e, FTTEHISery | ATsHiEsey |Tachar JemeE | 7 3R 8 02 | Ms Priya Joshi, ICW, ICwW, Vigilance 7th & 8th
5’5‘%9@% 73 feeett ° 73 feeett B I e ITTET Asst. Manager New Delhi | New Delhi | Administratior] August
(WerehaT) Tasar A= | 2023 (Vigilance) and Preventive 2023
Fed o feru Vigilance as a
T IYHT 6 tool for Good
w9 T ITET Governance
03 | =it fer gt s, @, TEE | L4577 3fc | | 03| Sri Dhriti Sundar SCOPE, | Lucknow |National Meet| 14th 3T
eiereh (T 3T 7$ Rt sfufemw | 154t Baruah, Manager New Delhi onRTI Act | 15th
Hhfremden TEdeE | R (Legal) & CPIO Sept.
2023 2023
04 | 1. #f arfisha 5, T Ted OeieT | ST H | 9 3TdET 04| 1.Shri Arijit Nandi, Fertiliser | Hotel FAI Training | 9 Oct.
e (i T Toet e = Dy. Manager (Mech) | Association| Regenta Program for | tol3
zl'[?/é:i 3062/712)0 A x mﬁ& 3 R w13 C/E No. 3062/7120 of India Central, Senior October
: > a 2. Shri Girish Ch.Gowala, Lucknow, | Maintenance | 2023
2.9t ﬁF?r&T' Eﬁﬂ'ﬁb TETeT, I |THTSTS 2023 Dy. Manager (Mech) Uttar Engineers in
3 yEEe (Fi) wf¥egor HrRish CJE No. 3052/7225 Pradesh | Fertilizer
/8 4. 3052/7225 Industry
05 | =ff gegsia fyem JSENIED At |Rect ygmura | | fegear| |05 | Shri Satyajeet Misra | Institute of | Hotel Le | Master class | 1st Dec tg
: ’ B ~ - : GM (Mktg) Directors | Meridien, | for Directors | 3rd Dec
wEI S () | s Ao, (e fawm | 3 e Delhi leading to | 2023
o fore fgemant | 2023 Certified Corp
T A FA | dh orate Directors
= 06| 1. Shri Sachin Kheman{, Institute of | Guwahati, | CA National 1st Dec to
06 | 1. =it afa @um . AT TS| TR, T T | oo T Chief Manager Chartered | Assam Conference 2nd Dec
. ’ 5 > ’ 3 o (Finance) Accounts of 2023
qeTs X (%!?T) i 3T 2 2. Shri Prashanth India (ICAI
2. #f1 T FHE, eI 2023 T Kumar,
srfrrT () (FTSHuaTE) Officer (Finance)
07 | oft SRR OTE, HAgdiun- s foet | onTd 12 SHa 07| Shri Suryanaryana ICMAI- | Blue Lily | The Regional | 12th Jan
&“ f = > frsits 3 Sahoo, Eastern Beach Cost to
: e T3 i f "~ 2024 (¥ Officer Finance India Resort, Conference 14th Jan
/5. €. 0313/7594 — it v | Sferamater | faw 14 St C/E. No. 0313/7594 Regional | Baliapanda | 2024 onthe | 2024
&t yftwe | _ %R - 2024 qF Council & | Puri, theme
PSRN < f’ﬁ ; Bhubaneswdr Odisha Rupantor —
SR Th TR - Chapter New Bharat —
EENIE] A Paradigm
Shift
iR Webinars
S| R gt | EED] SL | Title of the Level& No. of |Date Faculty
G | e T IR T No| programme participants
0¥ STIRMEATHS st =29 |9 eFTEd ot SR T, 01 Workshop on Officers=29 |9" August | Shri D.R. Sarin,
EIRCIEIY FAIRI =05 |2023 & HAet Disciplinary Workmen = 05 {2023 Ex CMD
EIENII it NP Proceedings Artificial Limbs
ferrsm Mfg. Corp. of
Fgtherattr India
A f . th
sfear 02 | Electrical Officers=15 |11 August| Ms Kena
o3| forera yourrett uT TR = 94 |29 3T F2ft ST e, Workshop on Workmen = 012023 Mehta, M/s
) N 2
fomrd e, | FHERi= o0 [R033 TeY TR Power System Encon
ﬁg\’ﬁ' IR 9T SSfiferd wrgae Study on . Engineers Pvt.
ST ffire Power Trading Ltd.
03 T T le AR = 0% |3¢ FTEAY| T A 03 | Online workshop Officers = 74 28" August| National
Fiftdt s whe R e | wHTeT R on Public t0 29" Aug| Academy of
T ST 3033 TR, T Procurement 2023 Human
FrfeTTeT feoett Policies and Resource
Eicilwasilugl Procurement Development,
F foru S qiee through GeM New Delhi
FUTem Y portal for
BVFCL
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HEITUT TR I ok (TTshuA T hT it et

TRt o Srgfer ST, srgaia sHeaar s 3= fiser
wﬁ%ﬁmﬁmﬁﬁww%mw T IR TR g THT-THT T
ST feru T Trsgafa 3 e ofit fewm-fads/sTrest <t ute st @t
21 gl iRt ST STg e S & Heiferd Srfieani s
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ALY STfc/SsT W%Eﬁﬁaﬁq\wﬁ oft & STt ) =Rt
SRt ST T TR & SATRATER ST 3 e s R aTeie
EIEEREEIE]

01.01.2024 T STHraa S, FTHET SHSaal AT 3=
ﬁ@%wﬁwuﬁﬁﬁﬁrwnﬁmaﬁWZOB FHEAHT

néﬁgﬁﬁqﬁ?ﬁu@nmﬁwﬁaﬁﬁmﬁmm
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24. FEW TS 1Y IH (THUHETH) TSI +eh Tg i e,
2012:

T TR o HEH, T TR HEH FEH AT o [asTTar 23 Hr=,
2012@@%)%311%31%%11 aﬁaﬁqcseﬁqa%@r&w GREEIKY
Wsammscqnmscqlmaﬁw«:ldaﬁrﬂéﬁamﬁaﬁwaﬁa
forefiar o 2023-24 T A1 715 et THTE 6 27.48% hl HTHT A%k ETiHeT
T, FAAT 25% o i Hnter Tfiet & fawg) 39 sTam,
THUEE o HIEH § %t Tlie § Tel/eadt Sttt & w@fied ol
THUHS W TS ST AT 1 Erdie il ATqwrd 0% M| foretay e o
SR HfgeT et o Ttied aTel THTEs & aeqr 37 dansl
{1 1 FIRTd 2.09% =T al feraT STTsor et (qramseh) |
THUHS TATT B2 o FAq eeprll famTri=rawii shi s o foru trareash
ST foRarT 7T 21 TS @ @RS o forg ffde agett i wlie %
o ot yame fope s w2 sfidusdive wauag wiidat 1 fae
fewaprafen gt e o o foru fereslt 3 wews o € e,
fofioee twEwr 3% Sfewr fofiee  (SMudmsEte) &+
AT I o T Usfiehd 2

C.INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS REPORT

The Industrial Relations Scenario during the year was by and large
peaceful.

D. ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY FOR WELFARE AND
ADVANCEMENT OF SCHEDULED CASTES (SCs),
SCHEDULED TRIBES (STs), OTHER BACKWARD
CLASSES (OBCs) AND PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED (PH)

Your Corporation is following the presidential directive and
guidelines/ orders issued by the Government of India from time
to time in the matter of reservation in services for SCs, STs and
OBCs. Candidates belonging to SC and ST are fully exempted
from payment of fee while applying for any post in the
Company.

Your Corporation is having one SC/ST/OBC Cell under the Liaison
Officer, who initiates necessary action to settle the grievances of the
employees belonging to SC/ST community on priority basis and in

consultation with SC/ST Associations.

All the welfare facilities of your Corporation are also extended to the
employees of SC/ST community along with other employees. Our
company do not received any allocation of fund under tribal sub-plan

from the Govt. of India.

The Annual Statement in the prescribed format showing the
representation of SCs, STs and OBCs as on 01.01.2024 and number of
appointments made during the preceding calendar year i.e. 2023 is

enclosed in Annexure- I1.

24. PUBLIC PROCUREMENT POLICY OF MICRO AND
SMALL ENTERPRISES (MSES)ORDER, 2012:

As per directive of Government of India, Ministry of Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises vide Order dated 23rd March, 2012 (as amended),
BVFCL achieved overall procurement of products produced and
services rendered by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to the extent
of 27.48% of total purchase made in the financial year 2023- 24 against
set amended parameter of minimum of 25%. Moreover, percentage of
procurement of Goods & Services from MSEs owned by SC/ST
entrepreneurs out of total procurement through MSEs was 0%. During
the financial year percentage of procurement of Goods & Services from
MSEs owned by women entrepreneurs was 2.09%. In all the Notice
Inviting Tenders (NIT) necessary provision has been made for stating the
Government guidelines for relaxation applicable to MSEs. All efforts are
being made to procure items specified for procurement from MSEs.
BVFCL is registered with TReDS platform of Receivable Exchange of
India Limited (RXIL), a joint venture of SIDBI and NSE for providing
bills discounting facilities to MSEs parties.
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25 HdhdT:
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Hure 31 HiefteTs, Tareret stem o Tt § sl stfemTi
HeHq gt S ey PR g tam e st gy sttt
W hel TR Tl ST L& 31 i |red ¥ Afereh T @ Gl 9el W
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Y o SR SATeRes Ua it feror fore ) s 3 e afe
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S gy frerffed dot % TER == qedt @ et wret A
HaehAT ot gRT PR e o St S 2 o e &
TrreheT oh SATER T e erd g o fore i g 2

wTien Feare/fermret fares et (Refiarm) ditets i /sreaniien
e PRt deat it arfter & faw/ariis fdid /e gadhar
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T AT ST 2|

25.VIGILANCE:

Vigilance is considered to be an integral part of the management
function. The focal point of vigilance is to protect the honest & punish
the guilty together with the development of “People” in Business and
Industry and to enable the management for culture of transparency,
efficiency and fairness under the guidance of the Chief Vigilance
Officer.

Vigilance Division of the Company is headed by Chief Vigilance
Officer (CVO) and the CVO is assisted by a team of vigilance officers
of the Company. Regular and preventive vigilance activities such as
surprise checks, vigilance clearance for administrative decisions,
enforcement of transfer policy and rotation of officers on sensitive
posts was carried out by maintaining close coordination with the
Management. The roles and responsibilities of vigilance officers are
being monitored and reviewed to bring the focus on systemic
improvement.

The challenge before the Vigilance Department is to create an
environment in which the honest can work fearlessly and the corrupt
are punished promptly.

Due thrust was given to maintain high degree of awareness amongst
the employees. In order to impart proper vigilance training, vigilance
functionaries are being sent at different training institutes for
updating their vigilance knowledge and skill to bring them in a
requisite level and to develop the quality at par the other PSUs.

Total 15 no's of complaints were received during FY 2023-24. All the
15 (Fifteen) complaints were disposed off during FY 2023-24.

Agreed lists of suspected officers and List of Doubtful Integrity were
prepared in consultation of CMD and CBI, Guwahati Assam and a
close watch is being kept on the listed officers. System of rotation of
officers posted in sensitive posts for more than three years is being
followed.

Surprise and regular inspections were carried out during the year.
Discrepancies/irregularities noticed, if any, during the scrutiny was brought

to the notice of the Management for corrective action/preventive measures.

Files pertaining to high values have been examined by Vigilance
Department on regular basis as per CTE laid down pattern and on the
basis of finding of inspections, recommendations has been given for
systematic improvement.

Prompt and timely submission of Monthly Reports/Quarterly
Performance Report (QPR)/CTE Report/Half yearly report to Board of
Directors for their review/Annual Reports/Returns to Central Vigilance
Commission(CVC) and Department of Fertilizers (DoF) is maintained.
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26. HEIATUTHTT IUTH (ShTTNE ATHTISTR ITETRIC):

1Rt T 3199 e o ot fafsr=r sheamorer it T =rarar
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Another good practice that has been adopted in the Organization is the
requirement of public officials to annually declare their assets. These
declarations called Annual Property Returns are scrutinized by Chief
Vigilance Officer(CVO) to identify individuals who seems to possess
assets disproportionate to their legal source of income so that a proper
watch can be kept on such officials. Therefore keeping in view of the
above, regular scrutiny of property returns of employees are carried
out to ensure that employees submit timely information to the
Management about moveable/immovable transactions and to check
whether any of the officers, particularly those posted at
senior/sensitive positions, are holding assets which may be termed as
disproportionate, to their known source of income.

On the directives of Central Vigilance Commission, Vigilance
Awareness Week was observed by BVFEL w.e.f the 30th October
2023 to 5th November 2023 in line with the theme “YST=R &1 forrer
FL; Ra & yfer wufia © “Say no to Corruption, Commit to the
Nation”. In a move towards inculcating the true spirit of participative
vigilance, the commission instructed a three months campaign period
from 16th August, 2023 till 15th November 2023 in which six
different preventive vigilance measures were taken as focus areas. In
house training was also conducted by the Vigilance Officials among
the employees and CISF Personnel to create awareness. Various
competitions were conducted among employees and school children
during the VAW 2023.

Guidelines/Instructions issued by the CVC/Administrative
Ministry/DoPT/DPE from time to time are being forwarded for wide
circulation to all the HODs/Department at Corporate Office, Namrup
for strict compliance.

26. WELFARE MEASURES (CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESONSIBILITY):

Your Corporation undertakes various welfare schemes for its
employees and a host of measures as its Corporate Social
Responsibility limited to (the surrounding areas within 8 kms radius).
Briefly they comprise of the following:

Besides extending housing and medical facilities to its employees and
dependents, the Corporation also provides educational facilities to the
children of employees and the wards of the Township and the nearby
villages. Corporation is running one Higher Secondary School, one
Kendriya Vidyalaya and one Model Higher Secondary School((Land
and other facilities are being provided by BVFCL) besides one
Primary School. The Corporation extended its patronage earlier for
establishment of Namrup College, one B.Ed College for higher
education and establishment of a State Dispensary at Namrup.
BVFCL also extends its helping hand to a Junior College and one
Assamese medium school, by providing accommodations within the
colony area at concessional rate.
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One hospital with modern equipments is available to extend medical
facilities to employees & their dependents. Nearby people of the
localities and contract workers are also provided treatment at nominal
fee.

The Corporation also extends facilities to the public of Namrup and
adjoining areas like Drinking Water Facilities, Market, Land for
Religious / Cultural and other institutions and accommodation for
Telephone Exchange, Post Office, Employment Exchange and Civil
Defense Office.

In order to maintain the total socio-cultural harmony of the locality,
time to time financial assistance are extended to the nearby

educational institutions and other social organizations.

In addition to social security schemes like Provident fund, Gratuity,
Pension in the Corporation, EDLI, Group Personal Accident
Insurance Scheme, Group Savings Linked Insurance Scheme,
Mediclaim policy and reimbursement Scheme are implemented for
the welfare of the employees.

Employees are encouraged to acquire higher qualifications, an area of
empowerment which would enable them to go up the ladder in the
company as well improve their knowledge and confidence levels.

Moreover, without indulging any gender discrimination, special
attention are being paid in taking the appropriate steps for all round
development of the female employees in the corporation.

At BVFCL, Corporate Social Responsibility caring for the society,
for the people around us and contributing in every way possible to add

value and improving their quality of life.

27. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

Your Corporation has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee
under Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 to look into the matters relating
prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women employees at the work
places. During the year 2023-24, no complaint have been reported on
sexual harassment of women employees in work places of BVFCL.
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TrgoTeRt <t Rdte o foTg ereries-1 (%) ANNEXURE-1(A) TO DIRECTORS' REPORT
WHS FORM-A
*. fecret aﬁ'{g“&r—raﬁw A. Power &Fuel Consumption
3HTS 2023-24 2022-23 3HTS 2023-24 2022-23
=, fire R fercttane % feretiame (a) Grid Power
1 ATHET-11 [SLECESEDR:) 0.00 0.00 1. Namrup-II Kwh 0.00 0.00
2 ATHET-111 . /feherae wet 518400 555150 2 Namrup-IIT Kwh 518400 555150
FA A 214.544 210.83 Total Cost Rs. in Lakhs 214.544 210.83
2o 4138 37.98 Rate Rs./Kwh 4138 37.98
. W 3IAE | fhedane & frcame . T Ieared
(wfrefrefh) (wfrefefh)
FA T SlicEER:] 91299950 102993900 F TS Kwh 91299950 102993900
FA AT % /ftrae Her 5826 5857 FdA ATd Rs. in Lakhs 5826 5857
s 6.38 5.69 T Rs./ Kwh 6.38 5.69
v e G tity)
(ferer wrmam) )
R O N — (a)For Captive
N _‘%m Power consumed
. s 0.00 655682 1.Namrup-II SCuM 0.00 655682
o 2 .Namrup-IIT SCuM 29653929 29391302
2 ATET-111 T 29653929 29391302 )
ST Total Cost Rs. in Lakhs 4278.15 4663.26
e AN SECkaErE:) 4278.15 4663.26
> Rate Rs./1000 SM3 14426.91 15519.89
o /1000 THTA3 14426.91 15519.89
. AR i%rq (b) For Boilers
(T, Seeg ) (S.B.,W.H.B.)
(R Tfea) (incl. Canteen)
1 AT 11 THHTH 0.00 39593 1.Namrup-II SCuM 0.00 39593
2 ATEY-111 THHRTH 53292965 64510676 2 Namrup-I1I SCuM 53292965 64510676
FA AT [SickaEp R 7688.53 10018.13 Total Cost Rs. in Lakhs 7688.53 10018.13
T /1000 THTH3 14426.91 15519.89 Rate Rs./1000 SM3 14426.91 15519.89
T, VIS Teieh h (c) For Feed
%"Q Stock
1 A1 RuEipI 0.00 0.00 1 ATET-11 SCuM 0.00 0.00
2 ATEY-111 THHTH 97925123 111212425 2 ATEY-111 SCuM 97925123 111212425
FA A [SLECESEDR:) 14127.57 17260.05 FA AT Rs. in Lakhs 14127.57 17260.05
T /1000 THTH3 14426.91 15519.89 T Rs./1000 SM3 14426.91 15519.89
. gmém (a)For Reformer
o foru* Fuel*
| ATHET-1T THHRTH 0.00 0.00 1.Namrup-IT SCuM 0.00 0.00
2 ATHET-11T TEHRTH 107566568 124466755 2.Namrup-III SCuM 107566568 124466755
FA AT A ' H 15518.53 19317.11 Total Cost Rs. in Lakhs 15518.53 19317.11
2o %./1000 THTH3 14426.91 15519.89 Rate Rs./1000 SM3 14426.91 15519.89
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. gRATIcaTET A aia Hifgeh e @ua:

B. Consumption per MT of production of Urea:

3HTS 2023-24 2022-23 Unit 2023-24 2022-23
(ftr whifges = afem) (per MT of Urea)
pBleate i Natural Gas
(i) IS Wik THUH3/THS (AM-1T) | 0.00 0.00 (T) Feed Stock SM3/MT (Nam-II) | 0.00 0.00
(ATH-111) 543.57 497.95 (Nam-III)) 543.57 497.95
(ii) Teroreft (efididfty | weew3/aadt ([@m-11) | 0.00 0.00 (ii)Electricity SM3/MT (Nam-II) | 0.00 0.00
(FTH-TIT) 164.60 131.59 (CPP) (Nam-IIT) 164.60 131.59
(iii) e oMfe. | wHEH3/wHS (AM-1T) | 0.00 0.00 (iii) Boilers etc. | SM3/MT (Nam-II) | 0.00 0.00
(ATH-111) 295.82 288.84 (Nam-III) 295.82 288.84
T §HT* THUH3/THS (AM-T) | 0.00 0.00 (iv) Reformer SM3/MT (Nam-II) | 0.00 0.00
(ATH-111) 597.08 557.29 Fuel* (Nam-III) 597.08 557.29
farreft Electricity
OIPERIC ferettane s/t (I) Grid Power | Kwh/ MT
o (ATH-11) 0 0 (Nam-IT) 0 0
(AH-IIT) 288 248 (Nam-IIT) 2.88 2.48
(if)3ea=T R mwﬁ.@% 506.79 46115 (ii) Generated Kwh/MT 506.79 461.15
o wfe Power Urea

*3ftere. afrert 37 S, TH g et # s wd i 2|

* Includes NG consumption in Aux. Boiler & Aux. Steam Super Heater.
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SteniehT sTarTreor, freft HeT o1 o 5o o warer & forawor
hT The[ehTuT:

®., FHATEAIUTIUT:

ATHEY-11 TR ATTEY- 111 T G = 3797 T7elt 37Tk Sfiae i ar
T foram B oK wdiugg 37K dfitersuet S Uik arssaerarst
ST SEehl Y 375 & fop g i 7 sfafifea shfidt o smor s weE
o WERI H oIS SIST YR 6w a1 8, S8 SHT WITeh STTehT o I
61 T H BIST GTHAT, HATHTIOIT qehriieh ST STT=ACTd 3T i
SAISTH g STgd Tt S8 U T § 31l 2011 F T oft s
ToRrT T R 3 T2 BT 3TN 4-5 SISt o oA =TT 1T HehelT B 3T
TISIST SIS oh1 SIE L o6 SITG STATY (e qehetIoh T STETNG Toh 7
HTeh TR o HA il TATOHT Sefertfeter tfaca o fore waam
forshea 81 718 e fifd 2015 371 3w 12 % weneH! 7 fterter
TR

&TeAifeh, T H o =] & ok HISET 61 ol fopbrarett ofieh &
AT o TAT, 20 HTeT T SFreh T et UhATSHIE g dael 3Tem
T A R T Tt @ud AT St W iRt & s i shl S/dd & FiTeh
afferehT STafer H ARt H et ST 2| 3o formT o T
I3 o TIOTTH o STTHTL, o TS TSUet ol - 11 A ATHET-
111 ST o UhSTTSETET Foslt @Ud HTES ohl THTETT i oh oI oI
AT T SR 3Tk G Sl A Te o UhATSEE SR SToRTT ST afted
U STl @I HHEE % € H SHE: THEY- [ 3 AHET- 111 3 o
01.01.2015 ¥ 18.12 S UT/THel IR 371 01.01.2017 9 13.24
ST e/ aret i 3 FaeeTieT 6t 115 21 ot E2 3h1 SISt &,
QAT FefetTeh ST IUHTUTT 6 HROT TS SHSIS I Fel Th
JeTE AT AT R el & e hieeeien TR TS e a8
YRR o g R, foraes shmor vt forfia Hehe 1 e SRt &t
H

. WTenfireht SAaviyor:

Tordtar ad 2023-24 % S TE-aHg W vt auft Tefer 3
T ReITo Tt |, T i9aH SUeTsd 3=Td TN ieh! el ScdTe Wi T
2 o SaTewT T - STHITRIT et o oS hefore S 1 #
ATUSE hfeTee HTA 111 T ST T, TAS{ISTE] HUET ATSeI9H
et foreen sfamet -3300 T FefiTan T et -3500 @
I fofar 1| TS e SR gt 3 Efeehet &l =il

ANNEXURE -1 (B) TO DIRECTORS' REPORT:
FORMB

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

A. ENERGY CONSERVATION MEASURES:

Both Namrup-1I and Namrup-III plants have surpassed their effective
economic life and it has been confirmed by process licensors like
HTAS and PDIL that no major improvement in performance is
possible in these plants due to inherent deficiencies in these plants like
small capacity compared to present day standard size plant, unproven
technology and obsolete equipments which were long discontinued
by the OEMs etc. It was further certified in 2011 that these plants
could be run for another 4 — 5 years and establishment of a new
standard size plant based on state-of-the-art technology, after closing
the existing units, is the only alternative for long term survival. This
has been reflected in the Urea Policy 2015 and subsequent
amendments. Due to paucity of fund, capital investments are
restricted to extremely unavoidable cases and on the basis of need to
run the plants for next4 — 5 years.

However, to run the existing plants in economical viable manner till
the new plant is commissioned, energy consumption norm fixed by
FICC more than 20 years back on adhoc basis are required to be
reworked because of change in circumstances during the intervening
period. As per outcome of QRM meeting at DoF, M/s PDIL was
engaged to review the FICC energy consumption norm of Namrup-II
and Namrup-III plants and the report submitted by them has
recommended 18.12 GCal/MT of urea w.e.f. 01.01.2015 and 13.24
GCal/MT of urea w.e.f. 01.01.2017 for Namrup-II and Namrup-III
respectively as the new energy consumption norm to be adopted by
FICC. The company is experiencing huge financial crunch due to
small capacity of the plant, obsolete technology and equipment
leading to frequent breakdowns and dependence of only one product
i.e. Urea, which is completely govt. controlled for its feedstock and
market price.

B. Technology Absorption:

In all the renewal and replacement jobs executed periodically,
products with latest available upgraded technology are
procuredduring the financial year 2023-24. Some examples are -
replacement of Ammonia Converter 2nd Bed Catalyst KM1 by the
Upgraded Catalyst KM111, NGBC Compressor Vibration
Monitoring System BNC-3300 upgraded by the latest version BNC-
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T ¥ g as § ITie foRa T, AT e % g
TTSShIITEER ST shelet e s diueret srenfia shiet figen
¥ IS FoRAT Tl STHITET-II] TATE o T TR e He 6
e Tt g2 SEt sTomee ardt @ fiRT & ST TR T @R
G AT <o I §Hh S TUATH I ThHIF SHSHL 3+ ohaT
gel

T AR e e T I
. ATHgH U ot
TRUMREETIE e 9

T, Forvirasream oivsaa  etareia a6 & R, ot =
w3 oot wer srfca i T g,
wfeR Ui Suekun o forg
Torcoft sreqat <t @rlig wv 0.84
He T (fUser O 3.63 S
Tu) T feRu )

3500. CO2 Booster Compressor Controllers and Indicators upgraded
from Pneumatic Version to Electronic Version, Bagging Plant old
Microprocessor based Control System upgraded by PLC based
Control System. Cooling tower Cell No.: 6 of Ammonia-III Plant was
reconstructed with upgraded material like Douglas Fir Wood. Process
Air Compressor Suction Chamber was upgraded with the addition of
Rollomatic Screenat its inlet.

C. R&DEfforts :Nil
D. Benefitderived
asaresultof R& D +Nil

E. Foreign Exchange
Earning and Outgo : During the year under review,
Company has not earned any
foreign exchange but expend Rs.
0.84 crores (previous year Rs.
3.63 crores) towards purchase of
foreign goods for capital

equipment.
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T ATEH, 2013 T G 2(45) % WEUHT 6 AR,
TR TR o "EehTr s 2, FSresh 100% el SR gt
W o Tegaid g e &) Tk Hee o el i g
T o TSl gRT T AT 2

@ . ArS/Atata sht reaTEt TR aeaieh aishar

ST o frart ot ST ToifsR i s sEtE F,
FHTINE TERH hl FHiET I et o, forfames StaTe
& AT S T 6 HaTer H IR et o STTew i
HH T o SEATEI ol FHTeaT shaeAT 21 TS Wiufereti/ale oh et o

TR oh foTT Ih o T eI L TRl &)

T, Sre/atuta s dech AR AR

I. fForeaRratrarsrETama e
gt fmfirg gt oot SEmTd s ST e g ==/ Aot o
I ATIIHAT ATl AHAT o foI AT JHT s & forw
T ST afshamd wenfua i & 3239 |, 31aeh i 3 fresmen
Ted 3T 3HehT |iufd il S3eht & foru femfcsT aftfya forg
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FH AT A 2

ANNEXURE-IITO DIRECTORS' REPORT
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance has been a continuous endeavor in your
Corporation that cares for an overall well-being and welfare of all the
constituent of the system and takes into account the stakeholder's
interest at every business decision. Your Corporation is committed to
pursue growth by adhering to the highest standards of corporate
governance. The primary objective is to create and adhere to a
corporate culture of consciousness, transparency and openness in
creating awareness of corporate vision and spark dynamism and
entrepreneurship at all levels. Your Corporation believes that
governance must balance individual interest with corporate goals and
operate within the accepted norms of propriety, equity, fair play and a
sense of justice. In your Corporation, accountability and transparency
are key drivers to improve decision making and rationale behind such
decisions to create stakeholders confidence.

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

A. CONSTITUTION OF BOARD
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 2 (45) of the Companies
Act, 2013, your Corporation is a “Government Company”
holding 100% of its paid up share capital by the President of
India. Members of the Board of Directors are appointed by the
President of India.

B. RESPONSIBILITIES AND EVALUATION PROCESS OF
BOARD/COMMITTEE
The responsibilities of Board is to oversee the Company's
strategic policies, review and monitor corporate performance,
ensure regulatory compliance and reviewing the risk minimizing
efforts of executive management in the operation of Company.
Board is considering appropriate mechanism for evaluating
performance of Committees/Board.

C. BOARD/COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

Institutionalize decision making process

.~

With a view to institutionalize all corporate affairs and set up
systems and procedures for advance planning for matters
requiring discussion/ decisions by the Board, your Corporation
has defined guidelines for the meetings of the Board of Directors
and Committee thereof. These guidelines seek to systematize the
decision making process at the meetings of Board/ Committees,
in an informed and efficient manner. Your Corporation's
guidelines relating to Board meetings are applicable to
Committee Meetings as far as practicable.
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1I.

a)

b)

<)

d)

e)

Scheduling and selection of Agenda items for Board/
Committee Meetings.

The meetings are convened by giving appropriate advance notice
after obtaining approval of the Chairman of the Board/
Committee. To address the specific urgent need, meetings are
also being called at a shorter notice. In case of exigencies or
urgency, resolutions are passed in circulation.

Detailed agenda containing the management reports and other
explanatory statements are circulated in advance amongst the
members of the Board/Committee for facilitating meaningful
informed and focused decisions at the meetings. Wherever it is
not practicable to circulate any document or the agenda is of
confidential nature, the same is tabled with the approval of CMD
and majority of members present in the meeting. In special and
exceptional circumstances, additional or supplementary agenda
are being considered subject to the permission of CMD and
majority of members present in the meeting of Board/
Committee.

The members of the Board are entitled to access all the
information of the Corporation and are free to recommend
inclusion of any matter in agenda for discussion. In case of need,
the senior officials of the Corporation are invited to attend the
Board/Committee meetings to provide additional inputs relating
to the items being discussed and / or giving presentation to the

Board/Committee.

The meetings of Board/ Committee are normally held at the
registered office of the Corporation in Namrup or at any other
place(s) as may be decided by the Executive Management of the
Company from time to time.

The agenda papers are prepared by the Sr. Executives of
concerned departments, endorsed by the functional Directors
and CMD. Duly endorsed agenda papers are circulated amongst
the members of the Board/ Committee by the Company
Secretary well in advance.

Company Secretary follow up with the concern Department for
the action taken reports based on the decisions of earlier Board/
Committee meetings and compiled the reports in consultation
with Functional Directors and CMD before including in the
agenda of the Board/ Committee meetings.
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g) Minutes of the proceedings of each Board/ Committee meeting are
finalized as per the provisions of Secretarial Standard approved by
the Central Government within stipulated time. After the
finalisation of minutes by the chairman, certified copy of minutes
are circulated to all the members of the Board/Committee by the
Company Secretary. These minutes of Board / Committee are noted
in the next Board/ Committee meetings, respectively.

h) The extract of decisions of Board/ Committee are circulated by
the Company Secretary to the HODs of concerned Departments
for taking necessary actions thereon.

i)  As per the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by DPE
regarding training mechanism of Directors, Board of Directors
has approved a Training Policy and undertake to nominate every
year at least One Govt. Director, One non official Director and
One Functional Director at the convenience of concerned
Directors for such training, seminar, conference, conventions
sponsored by the prestigious institutions.

III. COMPLIANCE OF LAWS

The Executive Management of the Company is responsible to ensure
adherence to all the applicable provisions of laws, rules and
guidelines, etc. A quarterly statutory compliance report (collected
from all the departments) confirming adherence to all the applicable
laws, rules, guidelines, etc. are being reviewed by the Board on
quarterly basis.

g. AEISH D. BOARD MEETINGS
gt ay & S feys gea dir 5 (‘Tl%[) % mﬁﬁaﬁ@ During the year under review, 5 (five) meetings of Board of Directors
’ were held, details of which are asunder :
et foraror T 2:
qEAeHE. | feim Sufted fee T den eyt it Fed HEA Board Date No. of Directors Total No. of Directors
Meeting No. attended
117 08.05.2023 | 8 8 117th 08.05.2023 |8 8
118 25.07.2023 | 6 7 118th 25.07.2023 |6 7
1194t 27.09.2023 | 6 7 119th 27.09.2023 |6 7
120 15.12.2023 | 7 7 120th 15.12.2023 |7 7
121 23.02.2024 | 5 6 121st 23.02.2024 |5 6
T TS hIEEAT E. COMPOSITION OF BOARD

31 9T, 2024 T, 1 o FewTeh Hed § 98 (06) Te= 3, 5w off
ST HHR S, Fawreh (Icared) e urer sverer wel weie fawreh
1 ST T 2, #ft gamer =i 3, v (fom), off wefdien fie,
W‘s;mmﬁaﬁm(eﬁaﬁw) ot i e, TR g AT
e (SieTuw), ot adier FAR T, el ek (S
TR 3T oft Tt o B, TR-Hh e eTeh (Sardo fHieeren) sfie
H

As on 31st March, 2024, there were eight (06) members in the Board
of Directors of the Company, comprises Shri Pradip Kumar Banik,
Director (Production) with Additional Charge of Chairman &
Managing Director, Shri Subash Chandra Das, Director (Finance),
Shri Harvinder Singh, Govt. Nominee Director (DOF), Shri Niranjan
Lal, Govt. Nominee Director (DOF), Shri Satish Kumar Sharma, Non
Official Director (Independent Director) and Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen,
Non Official Director (Independent Director).
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During the period under review, the following changes took place in
the Board of Directors of the Corporation:

The tenure of Shri Bipina Bihari Padhy, Non Official Director
(Independent) who was appointed by Ministry of Chemical and
Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers, dated May 01, 2020 for a
period of three year (03) years commencing from May 09, 2020
has ended on May 08,2023.

Shri Siba Prasad Mohanty, Chairman & Managing Director,
BVFCL, has resigned from the post of CMD, BVFCL we.e.f.
28.12.2023.

The Govt. of India, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers,
Department of Fertilizers vide Order dated 02.02.2024 has
assigned the additional charge of Chairman & Managing
Director, BVFCL, to Shri Pradip Kumar Banik, Director
(Production), w.e.f 30.01.2024. Subsequently, Shri P. K. Banik
has assumed the additional charge of Chairman & Managing
Director, BVFCL w.c.f. 03.02.2024.

The details of composition and category of Directors, attendance
of each Director at the Board Meetings and the last AGM,
directorship and membership in committees of other companies
for each Director of the Company are given below.

Name Attendance particulars Details of Directorship
qH 9q
¢ and committee
o e/ el
Sdatl members/chairman
No. of Board | Held on Details of Details of
EARd #r meetings 29.09.2023 Directorships | committee
Suferd g SILECE SIERIRE SRS attended in other memberships
St I EEAT [ 29.09.2023 | fafiee afufe during the public and
A | HafEa JTEJAT T year limited committee
fRyF et | faawor companies Chairman-
=T feraror ship
ol ﬁ%m Functional Directors
#t 7y Waﬁeﬁ, 5 Gl Shri Pradip Kumar Banik, | 5 Yes
IECHIED (3cqTe) aegm Director (Production)
SRR CORE LD with Additional Charge
T TR 99T (%) of Chairman & Managing
- 3 D 1 *
#ft g <z T 5 & fomme irector(*) '
ri Subas andra Das es ember in
R (%R'T) it Shri Subash Chandra Das | 5 Y Memb
R i Director (Finance) Dispute
e Resolution
l Committee.
%ﬁ ﬁ'li[ NCIE lﬂg?ﬁ’ 4 ﬁ Qq;q:mé Shri Siba Prasad Mohanty,| 4 Yes FAI
ST Ue gaY e feeeam Chairman & Managing Hindustan
(@g} &1 iR TWR) 33?,\—05 wd (Add. Charge of MD) Urvarak &
(*%) et Director (**) Rasayan
Rifp Limited
(Q_TI@T F (Add. Charge
s of MD)
TUR)
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ITITeRTToTeR SHATIAERTIER eyt Part Time Official Directors
oft eefde fim 2 T - urfefieR Shri Harvinder Singh 2 No - -Member in
LRI gRT ifer e it o Govt. Nominee Director Remuneration
=T Committee
oft T ot Ty 5 ET _ _afffee Shri Niranjan Lal 5 Yes - -Member in
1fira e afefer i Govt. Nominee Director Audit
ommittee
C .
5 -Member in
-‘Tlﬁ' . Remuneration
afifa 3 Committee
RS -Member in
e Dispute
TUTITT Resolution
afufa Committee
RSS2l
TR TR SivTehTTeTeh Ha9Teh Non Official Part Time Director
sft gdfisr W QTEﬁ, 5 ﬁ - _aAffee Shri Satish Kumar 5 Yes - -Chairman of]|
g s afa s Sharma, Non Official Audit
) areey Director (***) Committee
-Chairman o
Rliteitcy Chai i
Remuneration
gfufa & Committee
St -Member in
REEICE Dispute
e Resolution
o Committee
o
f i S Y Rl _3iffes Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen, 5 Yes -Chairman of]|
Non Officia! udit
e fdrh aftfe Official Audi
Director Committee
-Chairman of]
Remuneration
-Wﬁ'%lﬁ?ﬁ.
affa o Committee
RS -Member in
faare Dispute
U Resolution
gftfa s Committee
e
. . Bipin Bihari Padhy, 5 Yes -Chairman of]
: o 1 il - h Bhubaneswar Audit
EERCN qftd o () Committee
() e -Chairman of]
arfeerfien Remuneration
afufa Committee
TRt -Member in
e Dispute
Resolution
B Committee
RS

(*) YRd TR, TRA Ud Ia¥eh HATed, 39tk 9T o feieh
02.02.2024 % 13T o q&q 2 TeTd FAR A, Fwreh (Ieame) i
30.01.2024 ¥ SfiEfUwHIT & 7e7e] Ue Yeier fewren ot Afdfen
TR G781 38k o1, #ft dieh Ifeh = 03.02.2024 A sfiefuseive
Irege] Ud gaier e e oht Stfafeh T Evrer 21

(*) The Govt. of India, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers,
Department of Fertilizers vide Order dated 02.02.2024 has assigned the
additional charge of Chairman & Managing Director, BVFCL, to Shri
Pradip Kumar Banik, Director (Production), w.e.f 30.01.2024.
Subsequently, Shri P. K. Banik has assumed the additional charge of
Chairman & Managing Director, BVFCL w.e.f. 03.02.2024.
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I7ee] e Taiey e wTen oht STfafeh TR e 81

(**)28.12.2023 ¥ FHewsh 1e 4 qh

() TemieR 25.07.2023 & e e wftfa o oreey 3R famin

15.12.2023 Qramfestties gt o steae fgs frg g

(**#%)09.05.2023 ¥ ¥ v & Hh

o T eRiS oft fdeTen 10 (28) @ S1feres wfufeat w1 e T 2 an

ST et a4 aie (5) & At wifor o6 eremer 1 & S o

ECNER

. AR EEAT
AT Formme 3 3ot o TeTeh Heet TR Aty Yeler shifter (ST HeT
Seferh A A ) T AR &M Tt AT AT A1 Hfershet
T ST 2] 39 EiedT & IFIER FHewment SR =t
Saer), Fregerar, Sfderar i areRiar s st & wrr W
FEAT AR ST Heet 3 ity eieH shifHen! i anfiies Tem
T TR HIEAT o ST ohl I8 AT Il 2 56 |l oh st
e www.bvicl.com R Sef¥id R @ fAeser dea s
Tl T (T ST AT fed) ST At Seiee st o
HfedT T ST foFT & 7R 30 3ATRI o6 SAATEH ohl I8 3T
FRT 1 7T ) T ST T Ush SIS, 3TeRret 3T erey fidwreh
Fr forferea semeftd STere-11 (F) § feam a2l

B. e iser R e W T e R

AT T3 ShT iR Weit frefetiiad STHehrdl fHaereh Heer
o HHET &I U, AT 1 HTEe T o A o &9 5 A1 418

sicch oh QI A& d Ir;he‘IIWIIQ.‘IIZ

o TSR IRETAT TSI ST SSIE TUT RIS ot 3T

S SISEEEEE AR BEE]

o U R 3T TRETAT THET AT ATGETRI Tel o {HTeE!
gium|

« e EEd SR ETE T ST At i ST oh hreie|

o IS T 3 A % aftg AferamtiEt i wrdf s arfeafies f
SR, fore W forfr stferenrlt i shoet wierer o6t frafe
RIREI=A Mk

o ST, T, SANRISH AIeH 3T & TNfeq g9 s dfdm ®0 8
HECAqU o

- T A1 TR GHSATY, TatTeh ST, %hig «ff sfifersh ST a1
TS HTeft T

o et o it forefr aTRrcdl # =t witfreh <o a1 o grRr s g

o c o
HlcT oh TeTU YITH ‘t!,‘ldl'-l'-l IERISICI

Chairman & Managing Director, BVFCL w.e.f. 03.02.2024.

(**) Ceased from the Directorship w.e.f. 28.12.2023

(***) Appointed as Chairman of Audit Committee w.e.f. 25.07.2023
and Chairman in Remuneration Committee w.e.f. 15.12.2023
(****)Ceased from the Directorship w.e.f. 09.05.2023

No Director of the company is a member in more than 10 (ten)
committee or is a Chairman of more than five (5) committees across

all companies in which he is a Director.

F. CODE OF CONDUCT

Your Corporation has adopted a code of conduct and ethics
applicable to the Board of Directors and Senior Management
Personnel (DGM and above) of the Company. The code requires
Directors and employees to act honestly, fairly, ethically, and
with transparency and integrity. The Board of Directors and
Senior Management Personnel are required to affirm compliance
with the code of conduct on an annual basis. The code has been
displayed on the Company's website at www.bvfcl.com. All
members of Board of Directors (including Chief Vigilance
Officer) and Senior Management Personnel have complied with
the code and the compliance has been affirmed by them to that
effect. A declaration to this effect, duly signed by the Chairman
and Managing Director is placed at Annexure -1I (A).

B. INFORMATION PLACED BEFORE THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

The Executive Management of your Corporation shall present
the following information before the Board of Directors, either
as part of the agenda papers or are tabled/ presented during the
course of Board meeting:

e Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates.

*  Capital budgets and any updates.

e Quarterly results for the Company and its operating divisions or
business segments.

*  Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of
the Board.

*  The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior
officers just below the board level, including appointment or
removal of Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary.

*  Shows cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices
which are materially important.

»  Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material
effluent or pollution problems.

*  Any material default in financial obligations to and by the
Company or substantial non-payment for goods sold by the
Company.
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(i)
(iii)
(iv)
W)

(vi)
(vii)
(viii

(ix)

x)
(xi)

ahTg i T7e, Forer orarte STen o STferd |Teft =1k 3T Sce <relt
arer Tt &, fored =g ot = errest et 21, formaes qea
ST 3 STTEROT W et fevauft it g & A Rt s sem %
Hefy # wfager giveror stoArn w |, e s ®
FHTIH T I ThdT 2|
Topell Egh 3Em AT e T AHE I 3T fereon)
T A forH wegraT, stie et an sifiger guer & fag uate
RRGIE NI
q%amf g7 FHEE AR 3 TTGd GHTEH| OHE
HTe ST e wae &ﬁﬁﬁéwﬁméﬁ%ﬂr
A T EEATE, T Foseh Sai-a e AIsH1 oh1 s 3T
Ty, wreTren shaf-rar, afcEafo ol ifen Jenfd i forshl, st
STHR o AT S H A 2l
foraft Hz1 STifam =1 i forsror qem wfasher ot
T 35 SR B E 0 35 R e e gRT SaTT T S,
Ifg SATavIH BN
forelt oft faframmes, Senfaes sTaweRarett 3t STyt it
T ShT STIATCA A AT S o SATHIRT T A T HLAT, 2
AT ol 3Tf|
@ At
G SAEEAT
o e 2023-24 & 3 o, @ e At 4 €= (03) Tee
s (sremen); off Wit 99 99, WMl ey, @
fereTen 3T ot i arTet, TR g e fgeres (Shetius))|
TEfteTeli o o SR, T |t 3 S3eht # fferfaa
FHEThI TR
el HTeA, HEIad] 3cdTe, I 3cd1e 3T AfshT grft &
ek Treama Sl ATiees fare;
WW@WN(W)W,
Tt eramateT fard s ata,
ST ST STTHIGH & T8t Ul o6 ST el ohl S TaT;
gifaftres orar wiersht i eramadier fTafir 3t 37 9w
TSIY o 3T hl T,
Hiigusi i fevafor i awte;
aiferferes i@ aierent o qrierfires st aefterr R,

i) TNTA T aderehi <ht g feh oht wrwte;

e SRETRIE At st saehi H forg e o o et g
TS <l Fd e i wrfte|

et = ST fersgmor fdie;

St ok 3Tere Ud wete fAgwren qer e (fomr) g faefr
ToreroTt o THTOT/ETuTT S e T T,

(i)

(i1)
(i)
(iv)

V)

(vi)
(vii)
(viii

(ix)

x)
(xi)

Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability
claims of substantial nature, including any judgement or order
which may have passed strictures on the conduct of the
Company or taken an adverse view regarding another enterprise
that can have negative implications on the Company.

Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.
Transactions that involve substantial payment towards
goodwill, brand equity, or intellectual property.

Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions. Any
significant development in human resources/industrial relations
front like signing of wage agreement, implementation of
Voluntary Retirement Scheme etc.

Sale of material nature of investments, subsidiaries, assets,
which is not in normal course of business.

Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps
taken by management to limit the risks of adverse exchange rate
movement, if material.

Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory requirements and
shareholders service such as non-payment of dividend, delay in
share transfer etc.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:
Constitution and Composition
At the end of Financial Year 2023-24, Audit Committee
comprises Three (03) members i.e. Shri Satish Kumar Sharma,
Non Official Director, Independent Director (Chairman); Shri
Rabi Ranjan Sen, Non Official Director, Independent Director
and Shri Niranjan Lal, Govt. Nominee Director (DOF).
During the year under review, Audit Committee has reviewed
the followings business in the meetings:
Quarterly reports of physical verification of Raw Materials,
Intermediate, Finished product and Packing materials;
Quarterly Internal Audit (Technical) Reports;
Review Internal Audit Reports
Review of Annual Accounts of the Company before
approval by the Board;
Review of Audit observations of Statutory Auditors and
management replies thereon;
Review comments of C & AG ;
Review remuneration of Statutory Auditors;
Review Appointment of Cost Auditors;
Review of action taken reports on the decisions of earlier
Audit Committee meetings.
Management Discussions and Analysis Report;

Review Certification/declaration of financial statements by the
Chairman and Managing Director and Director (Finance) of the
Company;
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(xil) SR SR oI TieTehi 31 Ry fh shl SeTatT T,

(xiii) AT oI TR sht (- fh shl e,
(xiv)  ATioeR/TeaTen/aTiier AMTd caish ferie i aetetr
&,

(xv) T Sk T s T S fereh T

T 6T i o Hedieh o [Tg USiihd Jedisha i
Fafee;

(xvii) sTergeT Jffee fard hravfia,

(xviii) SRaH yere et foard s aia,

(xix) Wé@ﬁ%‘cﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ,

(xx) T fRE0T ST ART | SRt

o o fewTe Heet 3 06.06.2003 =i 3RS 319t 127 3k o
YRR ®9 G QT ST it o1 T3 foram o orat v afufa &
Havf &1 371 i TS o WA SIS g SFHITGA TR T o SR
03.06.2011 Fr ARARTA Fier teat 1 5741 da § wrafF
I foavmT (S1t) SR ST shiae Sremme o feem-faet & sige
i fomam T o ST ot stfifem, 2013 Y am 177 %
T % 3FTET 10.04.2016 1 SRS 7687 (F4ira) o3 |
Gemiferd feram T em|

(xvi)

11. seffuweiue fraamaden afufa o ferg dgs i ord

aEaieafafa s faemrd fowe frmfefaa 8

1. ot i faefr feqifén wfskar it et i suehr foiar
ST T TR ohLoT e GTE ot o for fon forefier ferareo
ol gty s fagaa e

2. IS TR Yeeh et e i fambrir s

3. wifaferer crEmadierent 3T YeM &t 718 foRelt 3= Bar & fow
T Tereh TRATHRIETehi 3hi YT %1 STTHIEH|

4. mm%ﬁéﬁwméWW%mﬁwm
st e o foao &1 aden wen, fEw & d
frefafga s gedid:

. St AT, 2013 T 9T 144 (5) o AR Hawweh 5
IETRIea feraor  smifiret foru ST aTet 3tTarvee: Tt s s
e T anfret fpu s =nfey;

@, o At K gurstt § afedy, afe s &), 3k 3u%
<P

T e FI R o RN % HTER W A § He e
SICIETRICIERIR

o, e feht @ Seq forfi forrot o fapg g weceul
H’H’Rﬁ\‘rﬂ;

oo o

S. [Edil d{UIIHHGII‘é{(‘I**H \‘5‘||°|'\9€4°h(1|<5-||5|'7f3‘|~1“||("|'-|

(xii)  Review appointment of Internal Auditors of the Company;
(xiii)  Review appointment of Cost Auditors;

(xiv) Review quarterly/half yearly/Annual cost accounting
records;

(xv)  Physical verification of weighted packed urea Bags;

(xvi)  Appointment of registered valuer for valuation of assets of
the Company;

(xvii) Review External Safety Audit Report;

(xviii) Review Risk Management status reports;

(xix)  Appointment of Tax Auditor;

(xx)  CostControl and Cost Reduction

Board of Directors of the Corporation has constituted Audit
Committee initially in their 12th meeting held on 06.06.2003. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been approved by the
Board at the time of constitution and modified in 57th meeting of
Board of Directors held on 3.06.2011 in line with the guidelines of
corporate governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises
(DPE) and further modified in 76th (Adjourned) meeting held on
10.04.2016 in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act,2013.

II. TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR AUDIT COMMITTEE OF
BVFCL

The following are terms of reference of Audit Committee:

1. Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the
disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial
statement is correct, sufficient and credible

2. Recommending to the Board the fixation of audit fees.

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services
rendered by the statutory auditors.

4. Reviewing with the management quarterly, half yearly and the
annual financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval, with particular reference to:

a) Matters required to be included in the Directors[] Responsibility
Statement to be included in the Board's report in terms of section
144 (5) of the Companies Act,2013;

b) Changes, ifany, in accounting policies and practices and reasons
for the same;

¢) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the
exercise of judgment by management;

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising
out of audit findings;

e) Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f) Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
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T, TEIETAGTORIET e J A

. ST SHE ol U

ERRSCICE B RRIRE]
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8. UM AW § SN I TIaTehi/eiaT TieTehi/ TSt I i
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BIEESH
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12. fire e weteren wliereh shi eramaien feoafort w srgerdt
LTS ohl AHTET ATl
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ST SHILATS hT EHTETT HLT

14, o e Tiersh, SAdien o e 3 e Hee s afta
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15. shut # afi wsifera ver A-a ot wefien i) 39 32w o forg,
AT TETT A Ush HEET ht 1A o Hehd! & ST Salford et
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s fafi= fequmert & oI Tehdientor o fore 38 a¥ & forw
e shl fedie  wmfiret ferar s =Ry

TSRO " et T IT6q ST et 37 BN ST Rt
TTEE FHTSELH HEAH ZRT ST @ik AT 18 7 ffea 2

2)
h)

)
k)
h

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Qualifications in the draft audit report.

The going concern assumption.

Compliance with Accounting Standard.

Reviewing the company's financial and risk management policies.
The going concern assumption.

Compliance of Accounting Standard of ICAI

Reviewing with the management performance of internal
auditors and adequacy of the internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, including the
structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority
of the official heading the department, reporting structure,
coverage and frequency of'internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and/or auditors any significant
findings and follow up there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal
auditors/auditors/agencies into matters where there is suspected
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences,
about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to
the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of
nonpayment of declared dividends) and creditors.

Toreview the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.

To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the
C&AG audit.

To review the follow up action taken on the recommendations of
Committee on Public Undertakings (COPU) of the Parliament.

Provide an open avenue of communication between the
independent auditor, internal auditor and the Board of Directors.

Review all related party transactions in the company. For this
purpose, the Audit Committee may designate a member who
shall be responsible for reviewing related party transactions. A
statement in the prescribed format giving details about all related
party transactions taken place in a particular year should be
included in the Board's report for that year for disclosure to
various stakeholders.

Explanation: The term “related party transactions” shall have the
same meaning as contained in the Accounting Standard 18,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.
21.

22.
23.
24.

111

(@)
(i)

(iii

(iv)

)

(vi)
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16.
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18.

19.
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23.
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I11.

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

™)

(vi)

Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit
efforts to assure completeness of coverage, reduction of
redundant efforts, and the effective use of all audit resources.

Consider and review the following with the independent auditor
and the management:

The adequacy of internal controls including computerized

information system controls and security, and

Related findings and recommendations of the independent
auditor and internal auditor, together with the management
responses.

Consider and review the following with the management,
internal auditor and the independent auditor:

Significant findings during the year, including the status of
previous audit recommendations

Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any
restrictions on the scope of activities or access to required
information.

Explanation: If the company has set up an Audit Committee
pursuant to provision of the Companies Act, the said Audit
Committee shall have such additional functions/features as
contained in these guidelines.

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee.

Reviewing the company's financial and risk management policies.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it
isnecessary.

Evaluation of internal financial controls
Scrutiny of'inter-corporate loans and investments.

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the
company with related parties.

POWERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
Commensurate with its role, the Audit Committee
empowered by the Board of Directors the following:
To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.
To seek information on and from any employee and access to
information contained in the records of the Company.
To obtain outside legal or other professional advice, subject
to the approval of the Board of Directors.
To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it
considers necessary.

To have independent back office support and other resources
from the company.

To protect whistle blowers.
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IvV. eEadaratufafiraes
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IV. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
During the year under review, four (04) Audit Committee

D, Meetings were held.

TETORTET e Suferq Fesment it dean Frezment it kXN g Audit Date No. of Directors Total No. of
giufa 9. Committee No.| attended Directors

80 25.07.2023 |3 3 30 25.07.2023 | 3 3

81 27.09.2023 |3 4 81 27.09.2023 | 3 4

82 15.12.2023 |3 4 32 15.12.2023 | 3 4

83 23.02.2024 |3 3 33 23.02.2024 | 3 3

TR T ZIT e T o AT & Fo[eh kot o Tt Haehdl
W(maﬁaﬁ)ﬁmﬁé@wﬁmaﬁﬁaﬁéﬁﬁw%@q
I ee 81 31eer ud yey e, fewes (fomn), sriafes
SETaieren 3R Fifafies daTTierss ey St geer & w0 d
ST H UL 9|
V. HUHT T Syt T oiaT ot afifa o afe & ® 0 H
HTAHATE
3. TRy wTSHEw
HeqeT T Tt HaxTeh TAT =1 qUIshTIcTah AT [HITehT i
AT HHTEIS TN 2| o1 6 STea& Tel Ta g FHawreh qei qulentforen
HrateHe okt i Ffth wd % gl grr et oWt o
T § FHIAYR T80 i i fafsr & gier o ot erafer & forg an
Farfg e i fafor e a1 wRa TR @ 31Tl fHder aes, St oft ueet
1, 3 Trq T SITelt ]1 W EehTt o 3aitean farsmr st wfafafercar
e gLt fewrer Saten forsmm & srfareerd 7€ e a1 a9
T (ST TR ST AR 199 o T ST & Tt &
STet )1 e frarerent bt R feh TRd SR g Uk AR A A A o
AR EIR AN IEA ISk

4. TrRvmtwTTisfes

AT b1 YUl TaTfEcel aTetl s HTefTIeh &= h1 SUshA & S
ST AffRm, 2013 3R 3T Faid s T T & S
TR U1 B o AT, SO oh ShT e HaRTeh ohl WILd o Tseufd
ST THTE FI 3T HATCH, 3T [Tt o wrear § foggeh/ATwifera
fopa ST 21 38 wehr forarek shrartenen fwren sitenfies weTs s
(3MMEENT) e o AHT A YA TR 5 THI-T9T T STRT
ot 31T Tl & SAER Wit S & H & A §
FSTeRTITeh FTRIRTIER (BLhT TTHa) FaTen st & oh1g arfesrfien
e I 8| 3 haret TR SATRITE! & & § Iaiteh forvmr & fafira
arfesrfies I St &1 S 3 e T StreRiers T-wenr) e
(e TS ST Ffufa it T S8 & T 10,000/- T4 i
3% HE % WA SR HANLE % HaHE % Hae § fopg g
TR AT, IS, ST 3T 37721 Gt ohi SIffdl o gehai 2l

Chief Vigilance Officer (CVO) of the Company appointed by the
Govt. of India through Department of Fertilizers is the permanent
Special Invitee in the Audit Committee meeting of the Corporation.
Chairman & Managing Director, Director (Finance), Internal
Auditors and Statutory Auditors were attended the meetings as
Special Invittee(s).

V. Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to
the Audit Committee.

3. Tenureof Directors

The age limit of Chairman & Managing Director and other Whole
Time Functional Directors is sixty years. The Chairman and
Managing Director and the Whole Time Functional Directors of the
Company are appointed by the President of India through the
Department of Fertilizers for a period of five years from the date of
taking charge or till the date of superannuation or till further
instructions from the Government of India, whichever event occurs
earlier. The Government Directors representing the Department of
Fertilizers, Government of India, retires from the Board on ceasing to
be officials of the Department of Fertilizers or withdrawal of
nomination by the Department of Fertilizers (Govt. of India).
Independent Directors are appointed by the Government of India for a
tenure of three years ata time.

4. Remuneration of Directors

Your Company is a wholly owned Central Public Sector Undertaking
and being the Government Company under the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Functional
Directors of the Company are appointed /nominated by President of
India through the Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Department
of Fertilizers. The Functional Directors so appointed, draw
remuneration under Industrial Dearness Allowance (IDA) pattern of
pay scales and as per the terms and conditions issued by Government
of India from time to time. The part-time official (Government
Nominee) Directors on the Board of the Company do not draw any
remuneration from the Company. They only draw regular
remuneration from the Department of Fertilizers as Government
officials. The Part Time Non Official Directors (Independent) on the
Board of the Company entitled for the payment of sitting fee of Rs.
10,000/~ for each meeting of the Board and/or Committee and
reimbursement of actual travelling, boarding, lodging and other
expenses incurred in connection with the business of the Corporation.
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In compliance with the conditions of guidelines issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and Department of Public
enterprises (DPE), Corporation has constituted/ re-constituted
remuneration committee of Directors from time to time and the last
reconstitution of the Remuneration Committee was done by
Resolution by Circulation No. 116.01 dated 02.03.2023 (noted in
116th Board Meeting dated 13.03.2023). As on 31st March, 2024, the
Remuneration Committee of the Board of your Corporation
comprises three (3) members i.e. Sh. Satish Kumar Sharma, Non
Official Director, Independent Director, (Chairman), Shri Rabi
Ranjan Sen, Non Official Director, Independent Director and Shri
Harvinder Singh, Govt. Nominee Director. The existing terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee shall remain unchanged.
The above Committee shall meet at least twice in a financial year and
not more than six months shall elapse between two meetings. The
quorum shall be one-third of its total strength or two members,
whichever is higher and at least two Non-Official (Independent)

Director must be present.

During the year under review two (02) meetings of Remuneration
Committee were held.

uTfesfieR femtieR Sufterq fasrent Fr wear | fRwreRT el HEAT Remuneration | Date No. of Directors Total No. of
afyfa . Committee No. attended Directors

3 25.07.2023 |2 3 3 25.07.2023 | 2 3

4 15.12.2023 |3 4 4 15.12.2023 | 3 4

5. Traeamamatuta

TR H, 30.06.2020 =T SATTSTT ST 667 S5k T Ramader aiufd
o eIl % ATER, FEHM Jeie F Rawh fawren (off foftm
forerdt wigl) i svemerar # faish 22.08.2020 T HATRRE=AT SRT
"ferere Gy wiuf T U afufd 1 Ted R 3T St
afty geied rfeeRtiEt & 3= et o1 e fora, foraeht 389w
foremei/amaat ot wefter ST SR Sehfoes 95 % H1eIw 9 SUUh
forael et o HIRTEul SHTET st SWTEHT 3h1 9T TTHT SR aS
T ST T TS S AT <)

forame Ty wfufe &1 gvg-gag W e fRar T ot IR
Fefterefi v o S forare wwTeT @i i stfm qied dehed
B0 TG ST 116.01 & 02.03.2023 (11647 1€ 93
feAiR 13.03.2023 W Are feram mam) gra o ol 31 w1, 2024
o, 3T 7 o 1S ot ferarme wvme winfa & s aeea § srfa
oft Tolt o O (3Tere), oft T e 3, e e, ot
T AT, weepR gRT Tifia e of off uw ©t e, e
(foren)! Teraire wmTeT wifHfa o e sht Hisier wrd sAafataa &l
SR Gt ek fai™r ay § o7 ¥ &7 &1 91 93k Ul 3T
AT o of 1o B8 TR U ST T GHT T} ST =11 hT gahl

5. Dispute Resolution Committee

Initially, as per the directions of Audit Committee in their 66th
meeting held on 30.06.2020, executive management constituted a
Committee namely “Dispute Resolution Committee vide notification
dated 22.08.2020 under the Chairmanship of Non Official Director
(Shri Bipina Bihari Padhy) and other members of Sr. Management
officials of the company for the purpose to review all the legal
disputes/cases pending in different courts, Statutory Authoriites,
Forums, etc. and explore the possibility of amicable resolution of the
above disputes/cases through alternate mechanism and submit its
report to the Board.

The Dispute Resolution Committee was constituted/ from time to
time and the last reconstitution of the Dispute Resolution Committee
during the year under review was done by Resolution by Circulation
No. 116.01 dated 02.03.2023 (noted in 116th Board Meeting dated
13.03.2023). As on 31st March, 2024, the Dispute Resolution
Committee of the Board of your Corporation comprises four
members i.e. Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen (Chairman), Shri Satish Kumar
Sharma, Non Official Director, Shri Niranjan Lal, Govt. Nominee
Director and Shri S.C. Das, Director (Finance). The existing terms of
reference of the Dispute Resolution Committee shall remain
unchanged. The above Committee shall meet at least twice in a
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financial year and not more than six months shall elapse between two
meetings. The quorum shall be one-third of its total strength or two
members, whichever is higher and at least two Non-Official
(Independent) Directors must be present.

During the year under review, three (03) meetings of the Dispute
resolution committee were held :

6. HITNZEATHTISTR TTUTT

fordtar o 2023-24 & R, AT T T srffEm, 2013 B g
135 (1) 3 NTEeH % q&d (HeTid di AMESt # 8 Tk AaS 1 0
fopaT 2, 37917 315 AT 25 SIS | HATereh| shot TR, 2013 st
URT 135 % UMl % A H, F1 & HTasTr (Hane
T STETRI) |HTd 17T 25 TS, 2023 i SIS g foha
T S EeEsT fifg s Fmforafrarag)

Foth e Hr Hramr it d an ey mire 8 e omaT
(3Tee), TR-SATTRIRTIC TwTeh, 2T STt o S, TR-STierehTich
EACKAECHED

7. Gt aEmieTiae

fofr wToet o wATerT (THET) ST SR Sfeses i gemee
feamfett &t 3t V & e & Heg # Hew Yol B U
@ﬁmﬁﬁzﬁﬂm@aﬁﬁ TaTeTet & afere ifee fard s
178 2 3 s & s S T ot e 3 ST Ry A
fedté o STeTe- 11 (@) () H e 2|

8. HTUNE TTTEH fEoTT- e ux STuTer SToTast

wrewifieh Serm ferm (i) g ST feenft o stqEm ke
Wﬁﬁ%@ﬂw%mﬁﬁaﬁwm@@@ﬁw,
ﬁﬁzﬁwmﬁrﬁﬁﬁﬁ TATETE! § ST SHTUTT STH L forarm
S ﬁﬁéwaﬁﬁthé%mm 1 () § ST 8 3R Sure
Wﬂﬁﬂﬂéﬂé%ﬂﬁ@ﬂﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁé%
ST 11 () H T 2

9. Higen/HuwmsN yHTUT

TSIk S T (ST ZTT ST Seues o g shiame ST
T femm-FEe, 2010 % @€ W@ 4.5 (vi) & ST |, A 6
I7eger ud yery fewren o fgwres (o) ot & fagemes vea

forame wTer | fomien ufteq fRyeni e Fewmeni & T Dispute Date No. of Directors Total No. of

afyfa . Resolution attended Directors
Committee No|

5 08.05.2023 | 5 5 5 08.05.2023 |5

6 25.07.2023 6 25.07.2023 | 4 4

7 15.12.2023 | 4 5 7 15.12.2023 | 4

6. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company satisfies one
threshold criteria as under the provisions of Section 135 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 i.e. Net Profit>/5 Crore out of the three criteria.
In compliance of the provisions of Section 1350f the Companies Act,
2013, the CSR Committee of the Company was constituted by the
Board on July 25, 2023 and the CSR Policy is in process of
formulation.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of the
Company comprises four directors i.e. Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen
(Chairman), Non Official Director, Shri Satish Kumar Sharma, Non
Official Director, Shri Niranjan Lal, Govt. Nominee Directorand Shri
Subhash Chandra Das, Director (Finance) of the Company.

7. Secretarial Audit report

Secretarial Audit Report have been obtained from M/s. Pravin
Chhajer & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, Guwahati
regarding compliance of the conditions V of Voluntary Corporate
Governance guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) and the management replies on the observations stated in the
reportare enclosed at Annexure-II (B) (D) to the Directors' Report.

8. Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance
guidelines

Compliance Certificate have been obtained from M/s. Pravin Chhajer
& Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, Guwahati regarding
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance in accordance
with the guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)
is enclosed at Annexure- II (C) to the Directors' Report and the
management replies to the observations stated in the Compliance
Certificate is enclosed at Annexure-II (D) to the Directors' Report.

9. CEO/CFO Certification

In compliance of clause no. 4.5 (vi) of the guidelines on corporate
governance for CPSEs, 2010 issued by the Department of Public
Enterprises (DPE), Chairman & Managing Director and Director
(Finance) of the Company give annual certificate on financial
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reporting and internal controls to the Board of Directors of the
Company. The certificate given by the Chairman & Managing
Director and Director (Finance) is enclosed at Annexure-II (E) to the
Directors' Report.

10. Whistle Blower Policy:

Your Company being a Government Company under the administrative
control by the Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Department of
Fertilizers is covered under Central Vigilance Commission (CVC).
Therefore, as per CVC guidelines, a mechanism has been established in the
Company for all its stakeholders to report about any unethical/ corruptible
behavior, actual or suspected fraud to the CVO or the Chairman and
Managing Director directly. No employee has been denied access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the BVFCL Board.

11. DISCLOSURES:

e The Company has not entered into any related party transactions
with the Directors or their relatives (Disclosure made by
directors individually pursuant to Section 184 of Companies
Act) having potential interest with the Company at large, which
were noted by the Board in its meeting. Transactions with related
parties are disclosed in Note No0.30.02 forming part of the
Annual Accounts, in line with the Accounting Standard -18 on
Related Party Transactions.

e The Company has taken adequate steps to comply with the
guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by Department of
Public Enterprises (DPE), 2010.

*  The Company has complied with the Presidential directive
received during the financial year 2017-18.

*  Noitems of expenditure debited in the books of accounts, which
are not for the purpose of the business.

*  No expenditure incurred which are personal in nature and
incurred for the Board of Directors and top Management.

*  Details of Administrative and Office expenses as a percentage of
total expenses vis — a vis financial expenses and reasons for
increase are as under :
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2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
RNASE ga—cfﬁ?rm DA AT ‘gl;_cfﬁ?rm % of % of Total % of % of Total Remarks
T % T %(STTST ) | T % hT %o (STTST ) Total | Finance Exp.| Total Finance Exp.
somERE (141 Sl 132 S Exp. | (Int) Exp. (Int.)
FATE 34 001 = 0.01 = Administrative| 1.41 Nil 1.32 Nil
Office Exp. [0.01 Nil 0.01 Nil
R A fr et For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
TRITT FeAT BIEATSSR hia v fefies Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited
D
T : ATHEY, 79T Place : Namrup, Assam
S Date :27N ber, 2024
fomieR : oterea, 2024 ate :27 November,

SD/-
gTﬁ %/- o P.K. BANIK
o : Director (Production) with Add't'onai C.harge of

i uction) wi iti
( ‘c . ) & Chairman & Managing Director
sremrer v et foramren DIN : 10095724
FIATSTA : 10095724
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ANNEXURE-II(A) TODIRECTORS' REPORT

DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT

In compliance with the clause 3.4.2 of guidelines of Corporate
Governance for CPSUs issued by the Department of Public
Enterprises, Board has approved the Code of Conduct Rules for all
members of Board of Directors and Senior Management of the
Company, which has been posted on company's website
www.bvfcl.com.

All the members of Board of Directors and the Senior Management
Executives do hereby affirms the compliance with the above Code of
Conduct Rules.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited

SD/-

P.K. BANIK

Director (Production) with Additional Charge of
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 10095724

Place : Namrup, Assam
Date :27 November, 2024
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ANNEXURE-II (B) TODIRECTORS' REPORT

FORM MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023
Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule

No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rules, 2014

To,

The Members,

BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION
LIMITED

CIN: U24123AS52002G0O1006786

P.O. Parbatpur, Namrup, Dibrugarh-786623, Assam

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable

statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by

BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION

LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was

conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating

the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion

thereon.

We report that:-

a. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our Audit.

b. We have followed the Audit practices and processes as were
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

¢.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the
financial statement of the Company.

d. The compliance of the provisions of the corporate and other
applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of the management. Our examination was limited to the
verifications of procedures on test basis.

e. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st
day of March, 2024 (“audit period”), complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY
FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED. (“The Company”) for the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there

under;

(i1) Other corporate laws specifically applicable to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
following:-

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

b) Corporate Governance Voluntary Guidelines, 2009 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

¢) Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises,
2010 issued by Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public
Enterprises, Government of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above except our observation in Note-1 subject to
observation as under:

We further report that:-

The status of the Company during the financial year 2023-24 has been
that of an Unlisted Public Sector Company and all the shares are held
in the name of President of India and officials of Department of
Fertilizers, Govt. of India.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted which is as
per guidelines of Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises, 2010 issued by Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public
Enterprises, Government of India.

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance, (except at few board meeting when consent
was received from the directors to hold meeting at shorter notice on
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urgent matters) and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent and
therefore, no dissenting views were required to be captured and
recorded as part of the minutes. The Company has also recorded few
comments received from the Board of Directors in the minutes of the
Company.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the company
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company had no
specific events / actions which have a major bearing on the
Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

We further report that during the audit period there were no instances

of:

(i) Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares / debentures/sweat
equity, etc.

(i) Redemption/buy-back of securities

(iii) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section
180 ofthe Companies Act, 2013
(iv) Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction, etc.
(v) Foreign technical collaborations.
FOR PRAVIN CHHAJER & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

S/d

(PRAVIN KUMAR CHHAJER)
Proprietor

M. No.: A25787

COP: 9231
UDIN:A025787F001494397

Peer Review Regn. No.: 4436/2023
Date:09/10/2024

Place: Guwahati

Note:1
1)  During the course of our audit, it was observed that the company has

not appointed any Women Director in the board of the company as
mandated Under Section 149(1) read with rule 3 of the Companies
(Appointment of Directors) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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ANNEXURE -II (C) TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

To,

The Members,

BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER COPORATION
LIMITED

CIN: U24123AS2002GOI1006786

P.O. Parbatpur, Namrup, Dibrugarh -786623, Assam

We have examined the Compliance of Conditions of Corporate
Governance by BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER
CORPORATION LIMITED (“The Company”) for the year ended on 31st
March, 2024as stipulated in the guidelines on Corporate Governance for
Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010 as amended issued by Ministry of
Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of India.

The Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance is the
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring the Compliance of the Conditions of Corporate Governance.
It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statement of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanation given to us, we certify that the Company has complied
with the Conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the
above mentioned Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises, 2010 as amended issued by Ministry of Heavy Industries
and Public Enterprises, Government of India, as applicable except
few observations made during the course of our Audit.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

All mandatory conditions of the said guidelines were complied
subject to following observations:-

Note:1

1) During the course of our audit, it was observed that the company
has not appointed any Women Director in the board of the
company as mandated Under Section 149(1) read with rule 3 of
the Companies (Appointment of Directors) Rules, 2014 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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. 7.: A25787

Hramdt: 9231

UDIN: A025787F001494793

TERHT THTEAT USTISRTUT HEAT: 4436/2023

feir: 09.10.2024
1v’i’ﬂ?{:‘\’Ia 6I?f

FOR PRAVIN CHHAJER& ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

S/d

(PRAVIN KUMAR CHHAJER)
Proprietor

M. No.: A25787

COP: 9231
UDIN:A025787F001494397

Peer Review Regn. No.: 4436/2023

Date: 09/10/2024
Place: Guwahati
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ANNEXURE-II (D) TODIRECTORS' REPORT

MANAGEMENT REPLIES AGAINST THE OBSERVATIONS
ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE AND
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF THE COMPANY FOR

I
THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH :-
wag| fequeft Je T STaTe SIL. Observations Management Replies
No.
| BT SRETIETT 3 31T A, 98 | SRt & T it ﬁ'{lﬁﬁ 1 During the course of our audit, | The directors of the company
C | 2Er T TR S T U | e GRS Sy STt © aeT it was observed that the | are appointed by the Central
mﬁrﬁw, 2013 T 9T aﬁqﬁa;qmﬁ\-gﬁﬁ-qﬁ;q}a; company has not appointed | Government, and the
149(1) ¥ ded s f\a'qaﬁ% mﬁa?aq—:{@n:@ any Women Director in the | company does not have an in
(ﬁ%ﬂzﬁ 7 ﬁ'{lﬁﬁ) o, | 2 board of the company as | house mechanism for such
2014 ¥ £ 3 % wr | o L\%IT‘T - ( : rlr;agt(lii)ate(ii U'rtl:erl S3ec;it(})1n appointments.
e - ) P ) read with rule 3 of the
Sk FACH 2024_25)1} FACHTH Companies (Appointment of | The company will take up the
y W uj
Rl ) H H . Directors) Rules, 2014 of the | matter with the Central
f R! T I 2l oli s 6T oEl.i & %I'Q% Companies Act,2013. Government and the concerned
HERR A HAT o Heifere department of the Ministry to
[EEILERIPEIESIEEIL facilitate the immediate

appointment of a Women
Director in the Board of the
Company, in the current
financial year (i.e. 2024-25).
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ANNEXURE- II (E) TODIRECTORS' REPORT

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finance
Officer in compliance of Guidelines on Corporate Governance
for CPSEs, 2010

To,

The Board of Directors

Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited
Namrup

We, Pradip Kumar Banik, Director (Production) with Additional
Charge of Chairman and Managing Director and Shri Subash
Chandra Das, Director (Finance) of the Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer
Corporation Limited do hereby give certification as per Clause 4.5
(vi) of the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, 2010,
that:
(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow
statement for the financial year ended 3 1st March, 2024 and that
to the best of my knowledge and belief:

(1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement
or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
misleading;

(i) These statements together present a true and fair view of the
Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and Regulations.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered
into by the Company during the financial year ended 31st March,
2024 which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company's code
of conduct.

(c) We accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining
internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated
the effectiveness of Internal Control Systems of the Company
pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the
auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation or such internal control, if any, of which we are aware
and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these

deficiencies.

(d) Wehave indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee that :
(1) There was no significant change in internal control over financial
reporting during the financial year ended 3 1st March, 2024;

(i) There was no significant change in accounting policies during
the financial year ended 3 1st March, 2024; and
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(iii)) We have not come across any instance during the financial year
ended 31st March, 2024 of any significant fraud and the
involvement of the management or an employee having a

significant role in the Company's internal control system over

financial reporting.

S/id

(S. C. DAS)
Director (Finance)
DIN : 08988297

Date : 27.11.2024
Place: Namrup, Assam

S/d
(P.K BANIK)

Director(Production)

with Additional Charge of
Chairman & Managing Director

DIN : 10095724
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ANNEXURE-III TO DIRECTORS' REPORT
Management Replies on the Observations stated in Independent Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024

The Management Replies on the Audit Observations of the Statutory Auditor

SL.No.

Key Audit Points

Reply to Key Audit Points

31

NOTE 7: TRADE PAYABLES¥22,922.59 lakhs

As per Section 22 under MSME Act, 2006 the buyer who is
required to get his account audited under any law, shall disclose
the principal amount and interest dues thereon (to be shown
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each
accounting year. Further as per section 15, where any buyer fails
to make payment of the amount to the supplier, the buyer shall,
notwithstanding anything contained in any agreement between
the buyer and the supplier or in any law for the time being in
force, be liable to pay compound interest with monthly rests to
the supplier on that amount from the appointed day or, as the case
may be, from the date immediately following the date agreed
upon, at three times of the bank rate notified by the Reserve Bank
of India.

Since the dues of MSME were outstanding for more than 45 days,
so the interest portion should be calculated as per MSME Act,
2006. As per the details made available an amount of ¥34.55
Lakhs payable as interest on the outstanding amount however the
company has not provided for this interest in contravention of the
MSME Act. This has resulted in understatement of current
liabilities and other expenses corresponding to overstatement of
profit for the year by ¥ 34.55 lakhs.

Company has put its best effort to pay to MSME vendors within
the statutory time as per terms of P.O.. Bills are processed for
payment by Finance department after inspection & acceptance
of materials &issue of SRV by stores department and checking
of required documents like invoice, GC, TC, deposit of Security
Deposit etc. In few occasions processing of billsgets delayed if
the discrepancies in bills / required documents are not resolved
in time bound manner by the concerned vendors. The payment is
processed by the finance section on receipt of all required
documents as mentioned in the P.O./ Work Order.

Sometimes the vendor fails to file the GSTRI Return in time
leading to non- reflection of invoice in GSTR2B Retrun of the
company restricting the company to avail input tax credit. In
such cases the GST component of the invoice is temporarily
withheld and subsequently released after reflection in the
GSTR-2B of the company. Further the total disputed MSME
dues is Rs.6.00 lakhs.

Hence no provision of interest is created for fault attributable to
vendor. Also company has not received any claim towards
delayed payment interest.
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3.2

NOTE 8 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥ 10539.56
lakhs. Advance from customersZ1496.68 lakhs:

(1) This includes an amount of ¥ 33.66 lakhs. against Liability

for Deposit for Scrap Materials sales. We observed that this
amount is received from persons who have purchased scrap
materials from the company but the amount is booked as
liability instead of income by sale of scrap and as result the
liability is shown excess by T 33.66 lakhs and profit is

shown less by the same amount.

(1

The sale of scrap is recognized in the books of account only
when the scrap is removed from the premises of the
corporation when the risks and rewards associated with the
scraps is completely transferred to the scrap dealers.
However though the scrap dealer has deposited an amount
of Rs.33.66 lakhs with the corporation it is yet to remove
these materials from the premises of the corporation. As per
provision of AS- 9, the sale of goods are recognised as
revenue only when the significant risks and rewards
associated with the goods is transferred which is not
fulfilled in this case. Hence the initial amount deposited by
the scrap dealer has been recognized as a liability and will
be eventually transferred to revenue once the above
condition is fulfilled.

(2) Advance from customers include 28.99 lakhs from 15

dealers for which the management offered the explanation
that they have closed their businesses but amount has not
yet been refunded to them. The refund of the excess
amounts should be made at the earliest to dealers with
whom there is no business as undue holding of these
amounts may cause legal issues for the company.

2

Management is in the process of reconciling the ledgers of
such dealers and necessary action will be taken in the FY
24-25.

33

NOTE10. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS:
Z18032.251akhs

Asper AS 10 on “Property, Plant & Equipment”, items such
as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing
equipment are recognized as PPE when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Further, any such spares which have been
classified as Inventory as per AS 2 should be capitalized as
PPE and should be depreciated over their remaining useful
lives of such assets. The company has shown¥ 553.97 lakhs
under PPE. However, no depreciation is charged on such
items. Further, as per the stock details maintained by the
company, it has been observed that many items of stores are
capital in nature and should have been capitalized and
depreciated in due course of time. However, no such
bifurcation has been done and all the items have been
shown as items of inventory, stores and spares. Thus, the
overall inventory has been materially overstated
consequently understating the overall PPE as being
reflected in the financial statements. Moreover, non-
charging of depreciation on such assets has also resulted in
overstatement of the overall Profits of the company for the
FY 2023-24. This observation was given in financial year
2022-23 also.

The item of stores and spares representing Rs. 553.97 Lakhs
has been purchased over years. At the time of purchase
the = Machinery Spares which can be used only in
connection with an item of fixed assets and whose use is
expected to be irregular and qualify as PPE are capitalized
as per the policy of the company and those do not qualify
for the same are considered as inventory.
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The company has not identified impaired assets though it
has huge number of assets lying in its books which have
outlived their useful lives and are not in active use any more.
This has resulted in over statement of property plant and
equipment.

b)

The impairment of asset is done based on the identification
of Cash generating unit. The company has two CGU i.e.
Namrup II &Namrup III plants.

Namrup III - The plant is running at more than 80% capacity
inthe FY 22-23 & at about 67% capacity during the FY 23-
24 and generating cash. As at the Balance Sheet date there
isno indication that the asset may be impaired.

Namrup II - The plant was commissioned in the year 1976
and is more than 46 years old. Major items of the plant and
machinery have surpassed their economic life and carried
at their residual value. Formal decision on restoration of
Namrup II plant is awaited from Government of India and
at the moment there is no indication that the impairment has
occurred.

Decommissioning of non-functional Namrup II Group of
Plant: The plant has been shut down since 06.01.2020. The
technical committee constituted by the Department of
Fertilizers in its report dated 7.01.2022 recommended
against the repairs of the plant as it is no longer
economically viable.

The Board of Directors in the board meeting no 177 held on
8th May 2023 approved in principle the permanent
decommissioning and disposal of the Namrup II Plant
except water treatment plant. However, the company has not
decommissioned the Namrup I plant assets and has charged
depreciation on the assets and debited to the profit and loss
account which is not correct and is against the principles
laid down in AS 10. AS 10 on Property plant and equipment
states that Items of property, plant and equipment retired
from active use and held for disposal should be stated at the
lower of their carrying amount and net realizable value. Any
write-down in this regard should be recognized
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. This
observation was given in financial year 2022-23 also.

Further, repairs amounting to ¥64.22 lakhs are booked in
expenses for Namrup I Plant during the year despite it
being non-operational since 06.01.2020.

The consent of the Board of Directors of the Company was
accorded on the basis of the technical subcommittee
constituted by the DoF for further restoration of the plant.

However formal decision on restoration / de-
commissioning of Namrup II plant or any alternative
mechanism for revival of the plant is still awaited from
Government of India.

The assets have not retired from active use pending decision
from Government of India.

In the matter it is clarified that as per AS 10 Depreciation of
an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e., when it is in
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.
Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that
the asset is retired from active use and is held for disposal
and the date that the asset is derecognized. Therefore,
depreciation does not cease when the asset becomes idle or
is retired from active use (but not held for disposal) unless
the asset is fully depreciated. However, under usage
methods of depreciation, the depreciation charge can be
zero while there is no production.

Though the plant is not in production, the closure of the
plant still requires the approval of the DOF. During this
period certain expenditures are incurred to keep the plant
and equipment at its current state, for the purpose of upkeep
and security. However the observation is noted and the
management will review the expenditure.
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34

NOTE 12 INVENTORIES: %6199.82 Lakhs

a)

Asper AS 2 on “Inventory”, estimates of net realizable value
of inventory are based on the most reliable evidence
available at the time the estimates are made as to the amount
the inventories are expected to realize. These estimates take
into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly
relating to events occurring after the balance sheet date to the
extent that such events confirm the conditions existing at the
balance sheet date.

Moreover, as per AS 5 on “Net Profit or Loss for the Period,
Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies”, an
estimate may have to be revised if changes occur regarding
the circumstances on which the estimate was based, or as a
result of new information, more experience or subsequent
developments.

It has been observed that provision for stores and spares has
been made by the company for inventory which is
outstanding for a period of more than 3 years amounting to ¥
1337.99 lakhs including provision reversed during the FY

2023-24 amounting to ¥ 5.31 lakhs. However, such
provisioning has been done based on estimates set by the
company internally and no actual valuation of the inventory
has been conducted for evaluation of the Fair Market value
and obsolescence of the non-moving inventory. Thus, in our
professional opinion, the basis for the estimation of
provisioning against inventory is not justified and the same
should be revised. Such provisioning should be done by the
company based on actual valuation and physical verification
of inventory conducted by the company on a periodical
basis.

Furthermore, the percentages being used by the company as
a basis for provisioning against non-moving inventory has
not been updated or revised and is being used consistently
over the years. For instance, inventory with no movement
from 15-20 years is being provisioned against at 50%
whereas inventory with no movement for more than 20 years
is being provisioned directly at 95%. However, in our
opinion the percentages being used for provisioning against
inventory shall be periodically revised and should be based
on the actual valuation of such inventory being conducted at
regular intervals. This observation was given in financial
year 2022-23which is still persisting in the current FY 2023-
24.

(a) There is no change in circumstances on which the estimate

was based, or any new information, more experience or
subsequent development have arisen after the balance sheet
date.

The company has been following the policy of age wise
provision on inventory consistently over the years and
based on the physical inventory verification shortages and
excess is accounted for on actual basis.
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3.5 | NOTE 13 TRADE RECEIVABLE:%17392.74 Lakhs
a) We observed that the company has not made adequate (@)
provisioning for Bad and doubtful debts. In accrual
accounting, businesses use the provision to recognize an
item of expenditure for potential bad debts. They do this as
soon as bills are given to customers instead of waiting to
determine which bills are unrecoverable.
i.)  Age wise break-up of trade receivables for the F.Y. i) The company has adopted the following policy:
31?23_224 shows:l9i3‘.851lﬂ<hs ass;utst:a;ldmg fi)r.morz Trade receivables, other receivables, loans and
an. years wiie . fetudes o balance claim o advances are fully provided for as doubtful upon
subsidy for the period from January 2017 to October . .
) review on case to case basis, to the extent of such loss
2017 amounting to ¥ 6.94 crores from FICC, DOF but . . L
Iv for doubtful vables has b 4. Th considered as incurred. Further no provision is created
onty for cou . u r.ecelva es has een.ma . . us, againstreceivables from FICC, DoF, Gol.
adequate provisioning for doubtful receivables is not
made in the books by the company.
ii.) Trade Receivables others includes Sundry debtors ii)  Out of the total trade receivables of Rs. 2011.33lakhs

sales (Marketing)Z 2011.33 lakhs against which the
company has ¥1186.02 lakhs as cash security deposits
and the balance ¥ 825.31 lakhs is unsecured. Further ¥
544.75 lakhs is outstanding for more than six months
from the date they were due for payment, however, the
company has not created a provision for doubtful
debts.

(PY 5008.12 lakhs) there is a cash security of Rs
1186.02 lakhs. Further the company has obtained post
dated cheques from debtors hence the receivables are
secured. Further to the above collection amount of Rs.
175.92 lakhs is currently parked in Suspense A/c
pending reconciliation and to be adjusted against
outstanding receivable amount. The company is in the
process of reconciliation and matching the same with
the debtors. Therefore the net open exposure is very
less. It can be observed that the company has
significantly brought down its receivables by Rs.
2996.79 lakhs compared to previous year end
outstanding balance. The efforts are on for collection
ofbalance amount also.

iii.) Sundry debtors sales (Marketing) ¥ 2011.33
lakhs includes KisanSuwidha Kendra (KSK)- There
are ten KSK managed by the company in Marketing
department since 2016 and there is receivable of
Z122.95 lakhs against these. The realization made
from these KSKS was not regularly deposited or
properly accounted for and thus this account is
showing as outstanding. Normally there should not
have been any balance outstanding. No provision for
doubtful debts has been made through the balance are
more than 3 years old.

iii)

Amount receivable from 8Nos KSKs amounting to
Rs.122.95 lakhs has already been received as all
materials from KSK were sold to ultimate retail
consumers (farmers) on cash and carry basis therefore
there is no question of outstanding. Credit to
respective KSK code could not be given against
collection due to lack of information as to from which
KSK the amount has been deposited into the bank
account of the company.

The matter has been disclosed in the foot note.

99



()
N

AN

it =t aw |

HEl[y dofl Bicesue viufter fAidcs

BVFC BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

. huAThT BT U fevafura:

et 7 fewew 2023 # v Aifd G A, AR 7R
- forgad 2023-24 H ST I T @

ige Aifd % FgER, " AN @ & "HA H
SISIEEEN Rramsit 37 & S areht FA e A
T T A & 60 R & s A e e
IUASY FTS T3 TRSHT o STTER, 31 |, 2024 T SHRT
ST AT S 3T 60 A& St ¥ R s weet
T TR ], 12383, 19 AT &

ohi S dTfeTel oh STET, et SIer/RET T 1:3 o AFdTd H
e shfse ST AT shfee ot Terenst ot ST 81 efead
shise, faarfedt fedifse i wimr a6 e 21 Rt
fedifore @ ot foam mm =18 +ff shfse fom shfee 2iar 2l
I Shfee S ¥ foTg T diee-32e =reh o Sg guferd
o ST 81 "BTeA o, STed o SHaeT H, I8 ol T @ foh
31 9T, 2024 T forT diie ol S T IN T 1910.04
IR €, e Tl 9T E 318.02 AT 21 56 JhI LET SHT
& 3T TAfdm e & stfers shfse 1 srgmfa )

oo T,
FTHD - T o 1,27,26,066
T it T T FHrETeET 1,06,94,921
1 T T fohalT g 1,31,16,936
FIqed gore 1,78,446
Faid gerg 4,02,240
FA T 3,71,18,609

SHITH T AT TP 2 foh 10 FuHeh A Gaiferd 127.27 ARa &9
ITH U & 311X 234002010000100000 AT TR H uTeh T
T

FIS**(TTH-HUTH-0) Afehd AT aAfed 21 131.17 1
F ST TR A8 H T g3 & 3R 106.94 A ¥ shiSe
UTfeTet o hrIfearae O U e feohu e K0T & Helfera 2|
I 5.82 TG hT GHTEH SR SITTRT 2

27 SR U § S 25.50 AT §93 T THET § 3T W
72.46 ARG T THMETR

3 AT 10 HTEe &, FSThl et TIRT 127.26 ARG T
2, Forareh foreg, arereft Tt wretie w3 ot g8 21 91w 151
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. ST T H A TehT § GicHel & ded THald ard €
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) SATIR AT - GfeEe! (WA T T A ThT & ITH 8
areft wfsut wfrer 7, fomeht Tfyr 12076.43 @ &
(et o 8817.59 %42 2, ST draTium & feprelt & o1efia
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3.6

AT 14 Thal TN AH I £11845.66 ATE:

6 sier @Td s T O it € S £3.92 @ ufirsw R
Ife 37 @Al sl 3T STIIHAT 81 © al 32 §ig L [T ST
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STEh|

AHATHIFH R
forrad 2024-25 T AT TS i ST

3.7

T 15 STCUTATEr S/UT 3T STH: £8252.41 AT

. STCHEIATEU o STTHR STHE $YC Siefd £ 8063.33 G
2 SeIfeh Tl T TEeh! % STTAR TE T6865..18 TG ¢,
SHUT 1198. 15 AT 1 S| 58 AT, ST
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T AT T 133.64 ATE@ B FA kA9 SR A
i/ GaTRET T § STETT STl 31 TTa ol TRTT
AT R

%, SCHEATET o ST SHeee! STt S e gedshi
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i) SITEdAEE & AR Stued 9 I aR
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Tt ST Wt 37 =TT sht ST o o fepar Strar
2l
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b) Observations on the credit policy of the Company:

The Company formulated Credit Policy in December 2023,
but implementation of which was not that effective in the FY
2023-24.

As per the Credit Policy “Total credit period offered to
Dealers/Retailers should not exceed 60 days from the
date of Invoicing in case of trading products.” As per the
Ageing provided to us Dealers having balance outstanding
as on 31st march, 2024, with no SD or PDC for more than 60
daysis 383.19 lakhs

As per the Credit Policy, “Every Dealer/Retailer is
offered with Secured Credit and Open Credit in a
proportion of 1:3. Secured credit is to the extent of
Security Deposit offered. Any Credit given beyond the
Security Deposit is Open Credit. Open Credit is secured
through a Post Dated Cheque collected from the
Dealer.” However, in actual practice, it has been observed
that balances of dealers with No PDC as on 31st March,
2024 is% 1910.04 lakhs having SD balance of ¥318.02 lakhs
Thus credit is allowed more than the specified limit of 3
times the security deposit.

Particulars Amount Rs.
KSK - Suspense reconciliation | 1,27,26,066
Prior to Credit policy

implementation 1,06,94,921
Subsequently collected 1,31,16,936
Suspense reconciliation 1,78,446
Under Reconciliation 4,02,240
Grand Total 3,71,18,609

From the above, itis clear that Rs.127.27 lakhs pertaining to
10 nos. of KSK has been received and parked in
234002010000100000 NO DEALER

CODE**(AS-KAM-0) but reconciliation is pending.
Amount of Rs.131.17 lakhs has been received subsequently
and Rs.106.94 lakhs is pertaining to credit provided prior to
implementation of Credit Policy.

Balance 5.82 lakhs is under reconciliation.
There are 27 dealers with SD of Rs.25.50 Lakhs having
outstanding of Rs.72.46 lakhs.

Further there are 10 KSK amounting to Rs.127.26 lakhs
against which the collection amount is lying in suspense
A/c. Out of the rest 151 dealers with total outstanding of
Rs.645.50 lakhs present outstanding as on June 30, 2024 is
Rs.306.44 lakhs.

Efforts are on for collection of the amount at the earliest.

¢) Trade Receivable - Subsidy (Government of India) includes
¢) Trade receivables include ¥15460.67 lakhs receivable Subsidy receivable from G9vemment of India amou.ntln.g
against subsidy from Government of India however, to Rs. 12076.43 lakhs (previous year Rs. 8817.59) which is
subsidy bill is yet to be generated from IFMS portal for the subject to clearance from POS which has been disclosed as
amount of ¥12731.44 lakhs. Note-1t0 Schedule-13.
3.6
NOTE 14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES%11845.66 lakhs: .
The matter is noted.
There are 6 bank accounts which are inoperative since long with | Necessary action will be taken in FY 2024-25.
balance of ¥3.92 lakhs. If the accounts are no more required then
must be closed so that the ideal fund lying there can be used
productively.
3.7

NOTE 15 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES:

a)

GST input balance as per GSTIN is ¥8063.33 lakhs whereas
as per the books of accounts it is ¥6865.18 lakhs ,ther is a
difference of ¥ 1198.15lakhs. Further, the cash ledger as per
GSTIN shows ¥ 3.10 lakhs whereas in books it is ¥ 133.64
lakhs. The impact of these unreconciled difference on the
Profit & Loss or assets/liabilities of the company is not
ascertainable.

The difference in GST ITC as per GSTIN and ITC as per the
books of accounts is due to the following reason:

i.) The GST input balance as per GSTIN reflects the ITC
as and when the party files the GSTR 1. However in the
books of'accounts the ITC is booked on receipt of materials
and invoice by the Finance department.
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ii.) In the current financial year 2023- 24 there has been
reversal of liability towards AGCL having GST component
of Rs. 673.55 lakhs which needs to be reversed in books.

The GST component on expenditure on Grant-in-aid
amounting to Rs.537.41 lakhs has been expensed off in the
current year which was not the practice in the earlier years.
The difference has already been reconciled.

b)

Further, as per sub-section (3) of section 54 of CGST Act,
2017, which provides for the refund of unutilized input tax
credit in cases where credit is accumulated on account of
rate of tax of inputs being higher than the rate of tax on
outputsupplies i.e. on account of inverted duty structure.
The time period for claiming refund of the same is 2 years
from the due date of furnishing return u/s 39, for the period
in which such claim from refund arises. However, no claim
has been filed by BVFCL till date for the refund of the GST
amount and as a result funds are being blocked as Input Tax
Credit which may not be used by the company for set off in
distant future.

b)

The matter is noted.
Necessary action will be taken in FY 2024-25.

<)

Advance to Suppliers includes:

Particulars

Outstanding for more than 3
years(¥ in lakhs )

BHEL

89.49

Flowserve Sanmar Ltd, Chennai 5.24

NF Railway Ninsukhya

18.51

Hindustan Paper

21.22

John Crane

6.34

Total

140.80

Complete details of the advances outstanding for more than
3 years is not available and therefore are doubtful of
recovery and therefore appropriate provisions should be
created for full amount of advances above 3 years of
%140.81 lakhs however provision is made for ¥34.90 lakhs
only. The short provisioning is resulting in incorrect
presentation of assets and liabilities, profit and loss of the
entity.

©)

The matter is noted and necessary reconciliations will be
made in the FY2024-25 will be made and adjustment
entries will be passed.

d)

Other Advances includes the below mentioned balances
which are appearing since last few years and are not adjusted
and seems to be incorrect.e) Loans & Advances to
Employees

d)

The matter is noted. Proper reconciliation will be done in
FY 2024-25 and necessary adjustment entry will be done.
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feraror Qrar 31.03.24 d% 31.03.23 @
HIE A H) (Z TG T)

Zall b A

(fafaenema | 422/107 | 0.35 0.35

T AN &6

Foha (TfEe)| 422/103 | 2.17 2.17

ENESRICY

TR U

ST L 425/101 | 0.94 0.94

T . FHHEATE I /0T Ud AT TRTE 165.06 TG H % 93.24
g e €, SAE " wier @ s 9€t 9
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TN OTTHESEY T aTet THTE ohT L T a1 T ST HehdT
H
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. TSR U LR TTSreRTIE o UTE STHTE 107.08 1:
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o T8 a1 718 2, 30 TR fori 1 forareor # aw1iu S1gar
STHRITRTET 3T et HHE TR fohaT T |

TG STATAT, TR [T+ 2023-24 & feiu 2 fibg
& fareg arrent arferfaam, 1961 st o 270T & T
2021-22 % fATT #47,65,069/- 1 AT FHRITST
fopa 2, TeTifer, 38 ke TS o qedent # s
Tt foram T 1 39 TR STHT T R £47,65,069/- &
Fferen gTiaT T B SR i =S ol 1 hies fegman

TR

i) THATEIEH g 3R A 2024-25 T HEEOT AR
EICICRIS L

i) T 3 wnfereRtor o wHer ITdier TR R & ® aur
GAaTS AT O &1 <ok 2| AT el

3.8

TR GLRAT ATH BT HT

e 17: TiTe O TSR T 74896.44 o (fora fafda searet
o foIC g SR AT gATs WisHST % 10T % 38626.48
ﬁgﬂlﬁﬁ%):

i) U farfrere 3 stE, st st fasht
Y ek sht ferelt o ore 2 afeud) o e s
RETALES

%, T o foh ot 7 i i gf o for foret arer
i o et afeae st amar 2 sar fr i
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Particulars Account| AS AT AS AT

code 31.03.24 31.03.23
(% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)

Advance to | 422/107| 0.35 0.35

Others (Misc)

Revenue

Advance to

contractors | 422/103| 2.17 2.17

(Transport)

Deposit with

Calcutta Port |425/101 0.94 0.94

Trust

e) Loans & Advances to Employees¥165.06 lakhs includes T | ¢) The matter is noted. Proper reconciliation will be done in
93.24 Lakhs consisting of thirteen entries lying unadjusted FY 2024-25 and necessary adjustment entry will be done.
since long and the consequent effect of these un- reconciled
items on the financials is not ascertainable readily.

f)  Deposit with Excise & Govt. Authorities¥107.08 lakhs: 1)

i) includes deposit with income tax department and_other i) The matter is noted and the groupings will be made
tax departments however TDS and TCS amounting to .

. correctly in FY 2024-25.
%34.16 lakhs and GST ¥ 6868.25 lakhs is shown under
Other advances thus there is incorrect grouping of the
deposits as depicted in the financials.

i) Further, against the refund due for AY 2023-24 the ii) The corporation has already filed the appeal before the
Income tax department has adjusted the penalty authority and the hearing has also been concluded.
w/s.270A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the Order is awaitedi.)a) The matter has already been
AY.2021-22 amounting to ¥47,65,069/- however, this informed to DoF. The stocks mentioned in the query
refund adjustment has not been accounted in books. are visible in weekly DBT bills generated in iFMS, but
Thus resulting in overstating the deposits by T the same is not visible in wholesale and retail level in
47,65,069/- and understatement of accumulated losses. iFMS.

OBSERVATION ON STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND

LOSS

3.8 NOTE 17 :Revenue from Operations-¥74896.44 lakhs (which

includes ¥ 38626.48 crores on account of Price and freight

subsidy for manufactured products):

i) As per FICC Regulation, the Company is entitled to | 1)

claim the subsidy only after clearance of stock from
ultimate Point of Sale:-

a) Weobserved that the Company has recognized subsidy
income against unbilled stock of Neem Coated Urea as
detailed below in the table where by the Marketing
department of the Company does not have the

a) The matter has already been informed to DoF. The
stocks mentioned in the query are visible in weekly
DBT bills generated in iFMS, but the same is not
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qrfeteht T foed & SIaTm TR B, SR hueT o fague
famT =T 102.165 Hifeeh o o faarm s SeRrt 72
B T 1 W= | shiee i (45 frmm) e
Tk HAT 19.184 Wifgsh 27 R Fie AT (50
fepam) 0.75 itk o off <o T 118 5 2020 7
forie & wTE IcuTe s &L foarm o, gafe S
we, Tore of1eh forsh a1 e fershat o T iford 2,
T St 3 forqor forsgm et ST et 21 e e
glesaei 7 1.76 A B AU &, 19.934 Hidwm A A 4,
18.915 Hifdeh 21 3T UL SIATT 71T SR & THer &t
fra TRl 92.250 Mifewm T A @ 83.25 Mfgwm T
oft SULIh 1T & et e o e 31 st 2018 9
50 feraTrom it YohfSiT sig st €t 18 oY, wifer aefi off
deTree # for foreh w1k 21 3ot T e T 8H

FHRUT DoF & et 3R wfeurdt bt aregeft § S 2Tt 2l
I 5T | 50 fepetram 45 |ehc1|,||H srarenfaa | wfeaet i
EEIEUl e i | aTE
fifem e d n”lf;*aaz:rﬁ re ke Te
AHEYT [T 0.75 19.184 18.915 1.76
HHSY-1IT | 92.250 83.250 20.63
el 93.00 19.184 102.165 22.39

D

fa@rs ad €, Afer iIFMS H o1k 37 Tat & W
[HelEEHEE]

IRUTTHEEY, PoS o ¥2ieh T REHT &1 foram s
1| S & DoF gRI HiHel gorgn form S,
BVFCL AagaR afede] i1 sh aTamsham)

ST STa TS bl SR 2

Q. T AT <@ foh ot o o ge ferskarati/Siert &
T STE STST SAToTehT £ U1 & AT AT Tt & foreh
TehT & cifer fosht diefioe o wresm & 1 & & 2
Toet s o T | T Toreh 2Tk shi AT H 1 b
yaf afterferd g1 2, ok afomreasa st wmn §
e 3dEg 8 T R| 31.03.24 I, 58278.402 Hifds
= it o foret it AT o1 Wi e 7, e w T
120.764 1 i o wfoudt wmw 7 g 2, 7 form
TR 30.06.2024 TH TG 68,555.209 Hifeeh
A RIS SRt e £ 130.17 FUS 2, 30 TR I8 T
T TET o T8T @ SR e o forqur foram et w2
T THTH A T WHITT IR 3 it STTevgeham @
qTfes Afsae! ST i T STaT UhATSHTHT o ITe gt
ToraT ST Heh ST SRt o fof T TR aterar st e
Bt e (e shres gfe) s forror e fearmn -

31.03.23d% | 31.03.24 d<h 30.06.24 dsh

TR 0T

38,464.86 | 58,278.402 68,555.209

@) 3T forrT o FSeITar wfere! aret Seien T foret
I TR bl HTSHE T T AT foheT ST 3aIteh Elie ST 0
g fopam St e Stafaqur fermr o et st dietiue
TR o AT § SUMIHT a0 U6 & & o1 farsharati
|1 HATa T T 3 SAgad] HHaTs/RETAILER dsfl &
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information of the whereabouts of 102.165 MT. The
pending stock quantity of Namrup II plant- Neem
Coated Urea (45 kg) was 19.184 MT and Neem Coated
Urea (50kg) was 0.75 MT. As the Namrup II plant
stopped production after the blast in 2020 the above
stock is pending with which wholesaler or retailer is
not known to the Marketing department of the
Company. Subsidy involved is ¥1.76 lakhs. Also, out
of the 19.934 MT, 18.915 MT has not been reconciled
for reasons as stated above. Similarly, pending stock of
Namrup III urea (50kg) was 92.250 MT Subsidy
involved is T 20.63 lakhs. Out of the 92.250 MT,
83.25MT has also not been reconciled for the reasons
mentioned above. The 50kg packaging was
discontinued from April 2018 but still there is un-sold
stock in the POS. Non-reconciliation of the inventory is
resulting in delay in recovery of the claims and subsidy
from DoF.

visible in wholesale and retail level in iIFMS.

As aresult the stocks could not be liquidated from PoS.
As soon as the matter is resolved by DoF, BVFCL will
claim the subsidy amount accordingly.

Necessary follow-up is being done..

Urea 50 Kg 45 Kg Un-reconciled | Subsidy
Unit Packaging Packaging quantity Involved
in MT in MT in MT in lakhs
Namrup-II| 0.75 19.184 18.915 1.76
Namrup-II] 92.250 83.250 20.63
Total 93.00 19.184 102.165 22.39
b) We further observed that the company is having huge b) As per directive of DoF any subsidy on subsidized

unsold stock lying with the retailers /dealers or the urea
is already sold but sales is not routed through the POS.
Increasing trend of unsold stock quantity is being
reflected compared to last year, resulting in substantial
amount of fund being blocked up. As on 31.03.24,
stock of unbilled quantity of 58278.402 MT exists on
which price subsidy amounting to £120.764 crores is
unrealized, this unbilled quantity further increased to
68,555.209 MT as on 30.06.2024 valued at T 130.17
crores thus this is turning into a serious issue and the
marketing department of the company needs to
formulate strategy to liquidate the stock so that the
claim to release of the subsidy may be lodged with
FICC otherwise there will be serious liquidity
problems for the company. The Details of the stock
(Neem Coated Urea) is stated as below-

Urea As on As on As on
31.03.23 31.03.24 30.06.24
NCU Qty. 38,464.86 | 58,278.402 68,555.209

fertilizer will be eligible for payment as and when the
fertilizer is bought by farmer/ end user through PoS
machine. All officials of marketing department are
doing periodic and daily follow up with
wholesalers/retailers for faster liquidation of BVFCL
urea stocks through all means of communication-text
msg/whatsappmsg/tele calland V.C.

To supplement we have also started taking the service
of online PoS clearance "Subsidex" provided by M/s
Dextralabs Innovation Pvt. Ltd. for helping in faster
clearance of PoS balance.Marketing department
has also liquidated old stocks which were morethan
300 days old from 62 numbers of retailers of Assam
and efforts are on to liquidate all old stocks at the
earliest.
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ii) T e o o ST & e et fa e 22-23

% fotu % 4,62,76,581 3R fo af 23-24 & fow =
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ii)

Freight receivable for imported urea is outstanding T
4,62,76,581 for FY 22-23and %2,92,84,738(for 2
vessels) for FY 23-24. This freight receivable consists
of both primary (rail) and secondary (road) freight
receivable over & above ad-hoc inland freight at the
rate of 1250 per Mt received. As per DOP order dated
29.06.20, subsidy on rail freight is restricted to
1400kms.However as per the regularized copy of
imported vessels, imported urea has been transported
to states beyond 1400 kms and further subsidy over and
above 1400 kms have been claimed by BVFCL. In
view of the aforesaid DOP order, the additional freight
claimed is doubtful to be received. As per convention
of conservatism, no doubtful income shall be taken into
consideration in recording of transactions by an entity.
Since, no certainty exists regarding receipt of freight,
rather than recording it under income, it should have
been disclosed under Notes to accounts as Contingent
Assets.

ii.) BVFCL had dispatched rakes beyond 1400 Km to the

state of Madhya Pradesh only. In MP minimum 70% of
the material from each rake has been dispatched to MP
State Cooperative Marketing Federation Limited. The
rake movement in the state of Madhya Pradesh is
strictly monitored by State Government and
movement is planned as per approval / consent of State
Government. In case of movement of BVFCL urea
beyond 1400 Km no recovery was made by DoF
during last financial years. BVFCL has claimed as per
the practice followed in last financial years.
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NOTE 18: Other Income — ¥ 6371.77 lakhs (Which
includes ¥ 197.03 lakhs under Miscellaneous
income)

i) The miscellaneous income includes ¥ 2.46 lakhs on
account of 145351690000000000 SALE OF BVFCL
JANAUSHADHI KENDRA we observed that the
sales amounting to ¥ 31920.00 related to the financial
year was not recorded and it was recorded on
03/04/2024 thus showing income less by this amount
and the cash on hand balance as on 31.03.2024 less by
this amount.

i. The collection with regard to the sale of BVFCL
JANAUSHADHI KENDRA is deposited periodically
in the BVFCL bank account and taken to books of
account accordingly. However the observation is noted
and a circular has been issued for depositing the
collection on fortnightly basis in the FY 24-25.

Exceptional items in Statement of Profitand Loss for
the year ended 31stMarch, 2024 : Relinquishment of
liability on settlement of dispute read with

Note 30.12 :Note on Gas Transportation Charges

The formal gas transportation agreement isnot yet signed
and no credit note has beenissued by Assam Gas Company
Limited forthe reversal of the earlier disputed excessbilled
amounts but the Company has accounted the reversal for an
amount of charges and our opinion the reversal of expenses
based on minutes of meeting without proper accounting
document and agreement in place is not correct.

The initial Gas Transportation Agreement between BVFCL
& AGCL was made for 10 Years effective from the Year
2005 to 2015. It was further extended for a period of 5 Years
i.e. upto March, 2020 with the same terms and conditions.
Thereafter, 4 Nos. of MoU were signed by both the
Companies to transport the gas as per the terms and
conditions of the Original Contract. The validity of the last
MoU was up to 31.03.2022. It was agreed in the said MoU's
that on signing of the agreement AGCL shall
submit the revised invoices with retrospective effect and
balance amount will be adjusted through monthly invoices
/through credit / debit notes as deemed fit by the
parties. However the Transportation Charges and the
Agreement could not be finalized upto March 31, 2024. In
the matter a meeting was held on May 09, 2024 at Assam
Secretariat chaired by Secretary to Govt of Assam,
Industries, Commerce & PE Dept. As directed by Secretary
to Govt of Assam, Industries, Commerce & PE Dept a
meeting was held on 17thMay, 2024 between the
management of both the companies BVFCL & AGCL. In
the said meeting the management of both the companies
agreed on the new Transportation Charges applicable from
April 2020. Based on the said MOM dated May 17,2024
between both the the management, the
Transportation charges has been revised during current
accounting period of FY 2023-24 with retrospective effect
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from April 2020. Accordingly the excess Transportation
charged from April 2020to March 2024 amounting to
Rs.4617.83 lakhs has been shown under Exceptional items
as Relinquishment of liability on settlement of dispute.

Further as per AS — 4 Adjustments to assets and
liabilities are required for events occurring after the
balance sheet date that provide additional information
materially affecting the determination of the amounts
relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date.
Events occurring after the balance sheet date which do
not affect the figures stated in the financial statements
would not normally require disclosure in the financial
statements although they may be of such significance
that they may require a disclosure in the report of the
approving authority to enable users of financial
statements to make proper evaluations and decisions.
Since the amount is having material impact on the
assets and liabilities same has been done in line with
the requirement of AS.

As per AS-5,extra-ordinary items should be disclosed
in the statement of profit and loss as part of net profit
and loss for the period. The nature and amount of such
extraordinary item should be disclosed separately in
the profit and loss statement that its impact on current
profitand loss can be perceived.

In the instant case the MOM of the minutes signed by
BVFCL and AGCL persons in the meeting held on
09th May 2024 under the Chairmanship of Secretary to
Govt. of Assam, Industries, Commerce& PE Deptis an
undeniable binding obligation on AGCL thereby
necessitating the above adjustment.

The excess Transportation charged from April 2020 to
March 2024 amounting to Rs. 4617.83 lakhs has been
shown under Exceptional items as Relinquishment of
liability on settlement of dispute and shown in the face
of the Profit and loss account.

OTHER OBSERVATIONS:

i.)  As per the Transaction Audit Report given by CAG, a
total 0f 2740 nos. of quarters are available with BVFCL
out of which 2485 nos. of quarters were fit and 255
quarters have been declared unfit. As per the

The security deposits of corporation quarters allotted to
non-employees of the corporation were revised on
recommendation of HAC dtd 22.11.2022 and
subsequent approval of the competent authority. The
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information provided by the management, the rent for
these quarters was fixed a decade back. The only
available document in form of minutes of 2nd
Township Discipline Committee (TDC) meeting held
on 03.12.2010 was provided in support of fixed rent. As
per the TDC meeting, the rent was subject to revision
after every three years, which was still not revised till
March 2024.The outsiders i.e. non-employees of the
corporation who avail quarters of BVFCL, pay monthly
rentranging from-to -which was revised during 2010.
Since then the rent was not revised Non revision of rent
results in loss of revenue to the company.

ii.) The Company (BVFCL) has entered into marketing

agreement with the National Fertilizer Limited (NFL)
for marketing its urea and gave NFL bank guarantee
amounting to % 10 crores. As per the agreement BVFCL
will also ensure sale of fertilizers supplied by NFL by
its retailers, through POS, for the quantities not sold
through POS and not acknowledged by wholesalers/
retailers in iIFMS. Further, in case the payment due
against suppliers made as per the agreed terms is not
received within the stipulated pcriod, interest 1% above
the one year SBIMCLR prevailing on relevant due date
shall be charged.

As there was un-cleared POS stock of urea NFL
revoked the bank guarantee on 13.03.24 amounting to
235.29 lakhs also levied interest of ¥ 37.83lakhs for
delayed payment. Further, in April 2024 another 5
crores were collected by NFL by further revoking the
bank guarantee.

Thus, the company's own subsidy amounting to ¥
120.764 crores was stuck due to non-clearance of urea
stock from POS as on 31.03.24 and due to revocation of
bank guarantee by NFL for ¥ 735.29 lakhs the company
suffered liquidity crisis.

The trading margin of only Rs.70/- MT has been earned by
BVFCL amounting to ¥ 9.79 lakhs on trading of 13993.38
MT of NFL's product but suffered interest loss of much
more than that due to revocation of bank guarantee and levy
of interest. The marketing department needs to ramp up its
collection activities so that the precious funds are not
blocked and should take wise decision on marketing the
products of another company after properly vetting its own
capacities to meet the agreement terms and conditions.

ii.) The total revocation of bank guarantee made by NFL

management of BVFCL has noted the observation and
will take appropriate action.

was Rs.732.04 lakhs which includes an interest of
Rs.39.89 lakhs. The said interest of Rs.39.89 lakhs has
been debited to the respective dealers who delayed in
payment to BVFCL out the same Rs.17.20 lakh has
already been collected from some dealers & balance
interest to be collected shortly during 2024-25. Hence
interest component is not a loss to the company. With
regard to the balance Rs.692.14 lakhs it is to state that
there was outstanding stock in POS in respect of three
states i.e. Odisha,Assam and West Bengal to the tune
0f 4303.98 MT however the same has come down to
29.90 MT as on 18/09/2024. The marketing
department of BVFCL has already lodged refund claim
of Rs.684.30 lakh (with supporting details) which is
expected to be realized very soon. Efforts are on to
clear the balance PoS stock 29.90 MT and lodge the
refund claim with M/s NFL for balance amount.
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ANNEXURE- IV TODIRECTORS' REPORT

CAGREPORT ANNEXURE

Comments of the comptroller and auditor general of india under
section 143(6) (b) of the companies act, 2013 on the financial
statements of Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited for
the year ended 31 march 2023

The preparation of financial statements of Brahmaputra Valley
Fertilizer Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 In
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the
management of the company. The statutory auditors appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the
Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements
under section 143 of the Act based on Independent audit In
accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their
Audit Report dated 24th August, 2024.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have
conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements of
Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2024 under section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without
access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited
primarily to Inquiries of the statutory auditors and company
personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting
records.
On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come
to my knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or
supplement to statutory auditors' report under section 143(6) (b) of
the Act.

For and on behalf of the

Comptroller & Auditor General of Indla

Sd/-
Sandeep Lall
Principal Director of Audit

(Agriculture, Food & Water Resources)

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 15.10.2024
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Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the Audit of Accounts of Brahmaputra Valley
Fertilizer Corporation Limited, having its Registered office at
Namrup, Assam, for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 in
accordance with the Directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India Under Section 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013
and certify that we have complied with all the Directions / Sub-
directions issued to us.

FOR & ON BEHALF OF

B.L. PUROHIT & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS SUBHASH PUROH??
PR 3TT036E FCA PARTNER
UDIN- MEMBERSHIP NO. 059631

Place : Guwahati
Dated: 24.08.2024
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation
Limited (BVFCL)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

1. Opinion:

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements
of Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March
2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year and Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial
Statements (including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph of our report,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act') in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, and its profit and cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

2. Basis for Qualified Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing
specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
code of ethics. Our observations on which our opinion is based are
given in Para 3 below. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

3. Observations for Qualified Opinion:
OBSERVATIONS ON BALANCE SHEET

3.1 NOTE7:TRADE PAYABLES %22,922.59 lakhs

As per Section 22 under MSME Act, 2006 the buyer who is
required to get his account audited under any law, shall disclose
the principal amount and interest dues thereon (to be shown
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AN 8: A AT SAATE £10539.56 T
TTEeh! & ARATRT £1496.68 7RA:
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6T TR I 21 g9 T foh 718 iRt 3 =afehat & oTH gs off
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TTOTTHESREY ST okl £33.66 TG e fe@m@n & sy
1 ST AT A feaman 72T 8| 718 taetie fUee famad 22-
23 3 tfee feard o fopammrar g <it snsft oft =i fer and 2023-24
Tl

TTEeh! & Tt T AR PIae # 15 heri & ferg 71 28.99 A
U o 2, Toreeh forq weier 3 wasientor fean for S8 @1
FRITR g L 1R, AfehT 3728 el aer T amma T A )
5 SRl % T1Y ITHT I FRER A8 8, I Sog ¥ Se
sferfies TSy Ao i ST =, it 3 iR s
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AE 10, TURTEIT AR IYHIT (ATATS): T18032.25 ARG

ey, € S ITHTT” TUTH 10 F STER, TAL AL, oS-
ST YT I HICH T STHTOT 6t TEq3AT 1 TS o & |
HIRIAT Y ST 2, ST 78 WA Bl @ fof AT3en & 58 wiorsr o
Tfeleh ATV 3T whT fireiTT 37T SA18en sl aimTd o e &
Y YT ST R 21 36 T, U fordl) off T ant s wug 2

3.2

b)

33

separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each
accounting year. Further as persection 15, where any buyer fails
to make payment of the amount to the supplier, the buyer shall,
notwithstanding anything contained in any agreement between
the buyer and the supplier or in any law for the time being in
force, be liable to pay compound interest with monthly rests to
the supplier on that amount from the appointed day or, as the case
may be, from the date immediately following the date agreed
upon, at three times of the bank rate notified by the Reserve Bank
of India.

Since the dues of MSME were outstanding for more than 45
days, so the interest portion should be calculated as per MSME
Act,2006. As per the details made available an amount 0f¥34.55
lakhs is payable as interest on the outstanding amount however
the company has neitherpaid nor provided for this interest in
contravention of the MSME Act. This has resulted in
understatement of current liabilities and other expenses
corresponding to overstatement of profit for the year by ¥ 34.55
lakhs.

NOTE 8 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES %10539.56 lakhs
Advance from customers ¥1496.68 lakhs:

This includes an amount of ¥33.66 lakhs against Liability for
Deposit for Scrap Materials sales. We observed that this amount
was received from persons who have purchased scrap materials
from the company but the amount is booked as liability instead
of income by sale of scrap and as result the liability is shown
excess by ¥33.66 lakhs and profit is shown less by the same
amount. This observation has been made in the Audit Report for
the Previous FY 22-23 which is still persisting in the current FY
2023-24.

Advance from customers include 28.99 lakhs from 15 dealers for
which the management offered the explanation that they have
closed their businesses but amount has not yet been refunded to
them. The refund of the excess amounts should be made at the
earliest to dealers with whom there is no business as undue
holding of these amounts may cause legal issues for the
company.

NOTE 10. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS(PPE)
:%18032.251akhs

As per AS 10 on “Property, Plant & Equipment”, items such as
spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are
recognized as PPE when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the enterprise and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Further, any such

119



\\\%///
HEl[y dofl Bicesue viufter fAidcs

BVFC BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

% STTAR it o &9 F afiepa fopam T 2, 38 ofiefis & w0
q@ﬁaﬁﬁwwaﬁqaﬁti@rqﬁqﬁﬁ%mmﬁw
Wu@mﬁwwmﬁql

ST = oifts o e IS wal o w9 1 £553.97 e e )
EIeAifeh, UHT Seqall T IS Jeagd Tel AT Sl 2l 36
STTE, T ST STE 7T T2 fofaoT o STTER, I <@ T &
%@Uﬁraﬁ‘aﬁﬁq’aﬁﬂﬁmaﬁ% 3R 32 THT & ATy
USiiehd ST qeagr forar ST =1few em grtfe, U@ i
%W?ﬁﬁﬁmwéaﬁ(mﬁwaﬁaﬁﬁr@ TN ST
%m%wﬁﬁwwélsﬁw,wséﬁﬁsﬁﬁm
B U FET-TeR fe@mEn T §, e aiomrasy o
forerott #f ewtie 7T Ty S it 0 s feEmEn T R 5w
AT, VRt qicea e o Heag e 7 T o TiumHerey fod
¥ 2023-24 3 foTU st o THT AT Rl o STeT-TreTeR fe@mn
TR

I AR (Ul form a1 22-23 shi sAifee i & fermman 2,
ST o A 2023-24 H w2

. O Y afoued dufEl Y ueEe AE 8, STieh I
SR 8 STt e H UEft wuf €, S 1ot Swntt safergd
FHThT & T STT Hoha SR H T2 8| 36 THoTeas gt
T ST IYHLOT] hT I fereh fraor & SR
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T T 3T ST IR UH 10 H a1 T & foh afshar s &
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Y HETHES I TS 7, el I2 06.01.2020 & F-Ii=Te 2]

spares which have been classified as Inventory as per AS 2
should be capitalized as PPE and should be depreciated over
their remaining useful lives of such assets.

The company has shown £553.97 lakhs as capital items under
PPE. However, no depreciation is charged on such items.
Further, as per the stock details maintained by the company, it
has been observed that many items of stores are capital in nature
and should have been capitalized and depreciated in due course
of time. However, no such bifurcation has been done and all the
items have been shown as items of inventory, stores and spares.
Thus, the overall inventory has been materially overstated
consequently understating the overall PPE as being reflected in
the financial statements. Moreover, non-charging of
depreciation on such assets has also resulted in overstatement of
the overall Profits of the company for the FY 2023-24.

This observation has been made in the Audit Report for the Previous
FY 22-23 which is still persisting in the current FY 2023-24.

The company has not identified impaired assets though it has
huge number of assets lying in its books which have outlived
their useful lives and are not in active use any more. This has

resulted in over statement of property plant and equipment.

Decommissioning of non-functional Namrup II Group of Plant:
The plant has been shut down since 06.01.2020. The technical
committee constituted by the Department of Fertilizers in its
report dated 7.01.2022 recommended against the repairs of the
plantas itis no longer economically viable.

The Board of Directors in the board meeting no 177 held on 8th
May 2023 approved in principle the permanent
decommissioning and disposal of the Namrup II Plant Except
water treatment plant.

However, the company has not decommissioned the Namrup IT
plant assets. AS 10 on Property plant and equipment states that
Items of property, plant and equipment retired from active use
and held for disposal should be stated at the lower of their
carrying amount and net realizable value.

This observation has been made in the Audit Report for the Previous
FY 22-23 which is still persisting in the current FY 2023-24.

Further, repairs amounting to ¥64.22 lakhs are booked in
expenses for Namrup II Plant during the year despite it being
non-operational since 06.01.2020.
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3.4 NOTE 12INVENTORIES:%6199.82 Lakhs

a.

As per AS 2 on “Inventory”, estimates of net realizable value of
inventory are based on the most reliable evidence available at the
time the estimates are made as to the amount the inventories are
expected to realize. These estimates take into consideration
fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring
after the balance sheet date to the extent that such events confirm
the conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

Moreover, as per AS 5 on “Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior
Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies”, an estimate
may have to be revised if changes occur regarding the
circumstances on which the estimate was based, or as a result of
new information, more experience or subsequent developments.

It has been observed that provision for stores and spares has been
made by the company for inventory which is outstanding for a
period of more than 3 years amounting to ¥1337.99 lakhs
including provision reversed during the FY 2023-24 amounting
t0¥5.31 lakhs. However, such provisioning has been done based
on estimates set by the company internally and no actual
valuation of the inventory has been conducted for evaluation of
the Fair Market value and obsolescence of the non-moving
inventory. Thus, in our professional opinion, the basis for the
estimation of provisioning against inventory is not justified and
the same should be revised. Such provisioning should be done by
the company based on actual valuation and physical verification
of'inventory conducted by the company on a periodical basis.

Furthermore, the percentages being used by the company as a
basis for provisioning against non-moving inventory has not
been updated or revised and is being used consistently over the
years. For instance, inventory with no movement from 15-20
years is being provisioned against at 50% whereas inventory
with no movement for more than 20 years is being provisioned
directly at 95%. However, in our opinion the percentages being
used for provisioning against inventory may be periodically
revised and should be based on the actual valuation of such
inventory being conducted at regular intervals.

This observation has been made in the Audit Report for the
Previous FY 22-23 which is still persisting in the current FY
2023-24.
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3.5 NOTE 13 TRADE RECEIVABLE:%17392.74 Lakhs

a)

iii)

b)

We observed that the company has not made adequate
provisioning for Bad and doubtful debts. In accrual accounting,
businesses use the provision to recognize an item of expenditure
for potential bad debts. They do this as soon as bills are given to
customers instead of waiting to determine which bills are
unrecoverable.

Age wise break-up of trade receivables for the F.Y. 2023-24
shows ¥ 943.85 lakhs as outstanding for more than 2 years which
includes 5% balance claim of subsidy for the period from
January 2017 to October 2017 amounting to ¥6.94 crores from
FICC, DOF but only ¥96.73 lakhs provision for doubtful
receivables has been made. Thus, adequate provisioning for
doubtful receivables is not made in the books by the company.
Trade Receivables others includes Sundry debtors sales
(Marketing) ¥2011.33 lakhs against which the company has
%1186.02 lakhs as cash security deposits and the balance ¥825.31
lakhs is unsecured. Further, ¥544.75 lakhs is outstanding for more
than six months from the date they were due for payment, however,
the company has not created a provision for doubtful debts.

Sundry Debtors sales (Marketing) ¥2011.33 lakhs includes
receivable of £122.95 lakhs from Kisan Suwidha Kendra (KSK)-
There are ten KSK managed by the company in Marketing
department since 2016 and there is receivable of ¥122.95 lakhs
against these. The realization made from these KSKs was not
regularly deposited or properly accounted for and thus these
accounts are outstanding. Normally there should not have been any
balance outstanding. No provision for doubtful debts has been
made though the balance is more than 4 years old. This observation
has been made in the Audit Report for the Previous FY 22-23 which
is still persisting in the current FY 2023-24.

Observations on the credit policy of the Company:

The Company formulated Credit Policy in December 2023, but
implementation of which was not that effective in the FY 2023-24.
As per the Credit Policy “Total credit period offered to
Dealers/Retailers should not exceed 60 days from the date of
Invoicing in case of trading products.” As per the Ageing
provided to us Dealers having balance outstanding as on 31st
march, 2024, with no SD or PDC for more than 60 days is
%383.19 lakhs.

As per the Credit Policy, “Every Dealer/Retailer is offered with
Secured Credit and Open Credit in a proportion of 1:3. Secured
credit is to the extent of Security Deposit offered. Any Credit given
beyond the Security Deposit is Open Credit. Open Credit is secured
through a Post Dated Cheque collected from the Dealer.”
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¢)

However, in actual practice, it has been observed that balances of
dealers with No PDC as on 31st March, 2024 is £1910.04 lakhs
having SD balance of ¥318.02 lakhs Thus credit is allowed more
than the specified limit of 3 times the security deposit.

Trade receivables include ¥15460.67 lakhs receivable against
subsidy from Government of India however; subsidy bills are
yet to be generated from iFMS portal for the amount of ¥
12731.44 lakhs.

3.6 NOTE 14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES¥11845.66 Lakhs

There are 6 bank accounts which are inoperative since long with

balance 0f%3.92 lakhs. If the accounts are no more required, then must

be closed so that the ideal fund lying there can be used productively.

3.7 NOTE 15 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES: ¥

a)

b)

8252.41 Lakhs

GST input balance as per GSTIN is ¥8063.33 lakhs whereas as
per the books of accounts it is T6868.25 lakhs, there is a
difference of 1195.08 lakhs. Further, the cash ledger as per
GSTIN shows ¥3.10 lakhs whereas in books it is ¥133.64 lakhs.
The impact of these unreconciled difference on the Profit & Loss
or assets/liabilities of the company is not ascertainable.

Further, as per sub-section (3) of section 54 of CGST Act, 2017,
which provides for the refund of unutilized input tax credit in
cases where credit is accumulated on account of rate of tax of
inputs being higher than the rate of tax on output supplies i.e. on
account of inverted duty structure. The time period for claiming
refund of the same is 2 years from the due date of furnishing
return u/s 39, for the period in which such claim from refund
arises. However, no claim has been filed by the Company till
date for the refund of the GST amount and as a result funds are
being blocked as Input Tax Credit which may not be used by the
company for set offin distant future.

¢) Advance to Suppliersincludes:

fereror 3 99 © i THT | hEn Particulars Outstanding for more than
(F 9TE 1) 3 years (% in lakhs)

ElREEu] 89.49 BHEL 89.49

FAES W%ﬁi‘s’, %7—@ 5.24 Flowserve Sanmar Ltd, Chennai 5.24

AU e ﬁ'(jﬁg?ﬂ 18.51 NF Railway Ninsukhya 18.51

%gl—?lﬂ By 21.22 Hindustan Paper 21.22

ST oh 6.34 John Crane 6.34

% 140.80 Total 140.80
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Complete details of the advances outstanding for more than 3
years is not available and therefore are doubtful of recovery and
therefore appropriate provisions should be created for full
amount of advances above 3 years of £140.80 lakhs however
provision is made for 34.90 lakhs only. The short provisioning
is resulting in incorrect presentation of assets and liabilities,
profitand loss of the entity.

g, 1= 1M ¥ = 3feafaa o ufyr snfie € s fuser FS d) Other Advances includes the below mentioned balances which
aﬁﬁﬁ-@ﬁé@% AT T & qUTTTed Ida et 8l are appearing since last few years and are not adjusted and seems
tobe incorrect.
%!ER‘UT '@'I?ﬂ_dﬁ_s' 31.03.24dh | 31.03.23 deh Particulars Account ASAT31.03.24 | ASAT31.03.24
FATEH) EFATEH) code (Zin lakhs) (Zin lakhs)
st et 1 (farferen) 422/107 | 0.35 0.35 Advance to Others (Misc)
L= Revenue 422/107 0.35 0.35
Sohaish A 422/103 | 2.17 2.17 Advanceto contractors
(‘Tﬁaﬁ) ( Transport) 422/103 2.17 2.17
W%R% 425/101 0.94 0.94 Deposit with Calcutta Port
T SHT Trust 425/101 0.94 0.94
T . FHHEATET ! K0T T AT T Z165.06 AT | £93.24 ARG e) Loans & Advances to Employees ¥165.06 lakhs includes ¥93.24

Ter focfter fearfa w57 sremmenfSa 9et & ufomreey gy ot
THTE T Il ST ST TR 3l
. AT T TThR] UTTeRT T oh T STHTE107.08 AR:
i) 399 AR T 3T 3= Rt fovim o ute s iy
et 2, grerifer g 3 g it 1fsr 34.16 @@
T3 SSHTEE 6868.25 TG &9 217 AT & d&d SIS
T 2, 39 YR forefr foraror & FRife Stam ST
T R Rl Rt T )
i) 3Hh STATET, SRR FTImT 7 2023-24 & fofw <7 fobs &
Toreg 3Tt rfarfEm, 1961 T 9T 270U A8 2021-22
o6 A0 47,65 TATE & T AT HHTATSIA foharT o, Tetifer,
39 e WHTISH o Teehi # STTfeT &Y fora i 21 39
TeRTL STHT T3T T 47.65 ARG &9 31fereh femman mar it
T &1 3T o ek fG@TT |

T, ST TG e 6 T S ST A S o @, Foreeht afe e
T TS 21 SHOt ST ST TRT o & 7 3T TR AT 9fE 9
foru ferstehoot adteh @ <ff @ret H weh s qfe e 3t STt =R
TTh 38 TR AT T o 3T AT SR ohl T&TT 6l 1T 4eh|

)

g)

lakhs consisting of thirteen entries lying unadjusted since long
and the consequent effect of these unreconciled items on the
financials is not ascertainable readily.

Deposit with Excise & Govt. AuthoritiesZ107.08 lakhs:

i) includes deposit with income tax department and other tax
departments however TDS and TCS amounting to ¥34.16
lakhs and GST %6868.25 lakhs is shown under Other
advances thus there is incorrect grouping of the deposits as
depicted in the financials.

ii) Further, against the refund due for AY 2023-24 the Income
tax department had adjusted the penalty u/s.270A of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 for the AY.2021-22 amounting to
%47.65 lakhs however, this refund adjustment has not been
accounted in books. Thus resulting in overstating the
deposits by ¥47.65 lakhs and understatement of accumulated
losses.

The company has made certain deposits with third parties for

which confirmation has not been obtained. Prudently

confirmation should be obtained once in three years to confirm
the amount advanced as deposits by the company to safeguard its

legal rights to claim the same.
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3.8 TH-BTH freRuT uR sraretienT

e 17 afETeT & UEd- ¥74896.44 ema(rad ffda
Icutal % T 7w iR wrer gers wfowst & forw %
38626.48 FHUS VTHAT)

3.8 OBSERVATION ON STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

NOTE 17 Revenue from Operations- ¥74896.44 Lakhs
(Which includes ¥38626.48 crores on account of Price and
freight subsidy for manufactured products)

T TorehT g1 TTeh QT & AT AT T & foreh o1 & TR
fersht dafrue o Hrezrm @ e &1 @ @) fUsed o i e d 7
forehT 5ot Wik shr AT A Ffg S v uitafa ar e 2, fomss
ROTTHEET SE 9B § e 3T%E 8 74T 81 31.03.24 T,
58278.402 Hifgw A i for @ A e T i i 8, o
T 120.764 RS i Joa afouet v Te 55 8, 78 o foer
AT 30.06.2024 Toh 51GH 68,555.209 Hifdeh T 2178 foernt
T T 130.17 FUS € 30 THR I8 U T qeT o T8 & 3R
St o ferqur forvgmr =AY &2ieh ot wrTe i 3 forw Torifa dame
T T SATATIHAT & AT(h AISHST ST ohi ohT ST UHIATSHIHT
o UTE &t foRdT ST Heh STT huT o foe e Fendt oo
Bt e (e it fi) st feraror = fear man -

i) uheATSHH faftame 3 sTEw, S sifam fesfr g g i it I) As per FICC Regulation, the Company is entitled to claim the
9 2
Rt h ae R T afcaS FreaT - I ghale: - price subsidy only after clearance of stock from ultimate Point of
o
Sale:-

LR KGR E R L E L e T aﬁm%ﬁmﬁamﬁ@%ﬁ% a) We observed that the Company has recognized subsidy
gt Gfeugl 31 &1 gr=dr & & 99 o = arferesrr o income against unbilled stock of Neem Coated Urea as
R & 9a/T T 2 Se uh ¥ f9ue e @y detailed below in the table where by the Marketing

s r ’ o % st department of the Company does not have the information of
102.165 Hilesh &1 GIH‘OMU B l 11 . the whereabouts of 102.165 MT. The pending stock quantity
% %gtlj(éﬂ (45 1 )ﬁ A ferel ETeh AT 19,1847 3332‘[ of Namrup II plant- Neem Coated Urea (45 kg) was 19.184
3R i FIes ?II;F{'QT (50 ﬁhTIT) 0.75 Iﬁﬁ}ﬁ T ol ﬂ'\%ﬁ MT and Neem Coated Urea (50kg) was 0.75 MT. As the
Y (TSI 2020 H foresh e o o1 ScqTeT sig sl fear o, Namrup IT plant stopped production after the blast in 2020
W IR T TR o T o @e frkaT 3 ITE the above stock is pending with which wholesaler or retailer
T . 5 ;E'T 3 ! is not known to the Marketing department of the Company.
fre &, 21 et f Frdore fersmar shr sme e €1 g amfire Subsidy involved is%1.76 lakhs. Also, out of the 19.934 MT,
HisqElZ1.76 ARG EI WL, 19.934 HfZH TTHY, 18.915 18.915 MT has not been reconciled for reasons as stated
Hifeeh 7 T U AT T RO & Torer T2t fomam mam B above. Similarly, pending stock of Namrup III urea (50kg)
92250 e ea 7 & 83.25 Mk ea T W SR IO & was 92.250 MT Subsidy involved is 20.63 lakhs. Out of the
fﬁ?‘l’ﬂﬁmw%l 3T 2018 F 50 Rrctm Hr AHRT 92.250 MT, 83.25MT has also not been reconciled for the
. 3 ; ; P o reasons mentioned above. The 50kg packaging was
ER'.EF{ e o Rkl | ) fereh =27 2 discontinued from April 2018 but still there is un-sold stock
3@3‘1 T el 7 &M o 0T DoF ¥ el S afewrel sh in the POS. Non-reconciliation of the inventory is resulting
Wﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬁ@%l indelay inrecovery of the claims and subsidy from DoF.
ERIEEIH 50 fereTram 45Tt | Hifgwead | afeadih Urea Unit 50Kg 45Kg Un-reconciled | Subsidy
RS srTenfia | HOhT Packaging Packaging | quantityin Involved
Hifgset e TAEHY inMT inMT MT inZlakhs
IHETII 0.75 19.184 18.915 1.76 Namrup-IT 0.75 19.184 18.915 1.76
AHET-111 92.250 83.250 20.63 Namrup-IIT 92.250 83.250 20.63
%A 93.00 19.184 102.165 22.39 Total 93.00 19.184 102.165 22.39
Q. T 3 @ foh o oyt @e fasharsti/Siaii sy aga b))  We further observed that the company is having huge unsold
Nl >

stock lying with the retailers /dealers or the urea is already sold
but sales is not routed through the POS. Increasing trend of
unsold stock quantity is being reflected compared to last year,
resulting in substantial amount of fund being blocked up. As on
31.03.24, stock of unbilled quantity of 58278.402 MT exists on
which price subsidy amounting to % 120.764 crores is unrealized,
this unbilled quantity further increased to 68,555.209 MT as on
30.06.2024 valued at T 130.17 crores thus this is turning into a
serious issue and the marketing department of the company
needs to formulate strategy to liquidate the stock so that the
claim to release of the subsidy may be lodged with FICC
otherwise there will be serious liquidity problems for the
company. The  Details of the stock (Neem Coated Urea) is
stated as below-

125



|

\
SAR-
EEcaa

FEI det hicosuie Biufeer fofacs
BWVFC BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

Beel

[N

31.03.23
dsh

31.03.24
dsh

30.06.24
dsh

TTHIHTAT

38,464.86

58,278.402

68,555.209

ﬂf@T 31.03.23 31.03.24 30.06.24
dsh dsh dh
W’{fjﬁT 38,464.86 58,278.402 | 68,555.209

i) sArETfad FfEr & fag wrer wiw fom o 22-23 & fog
F462.77 TG 3R fom a9 23-24 o foIw £292.85 @@ (2
STt o foTw) sthmn 21 39 et Wiy § wrerfies () oK
fodrer (Trsh) wreT a1 wftrer €, S e ufq Hifdss o
1250 i 5T & dedf sqeeii wreT s Afafh 81 29.06.20 %
AT ST 6 SFTAR, T WA GelTs T HTsEST 1400 Tt
e a3 gTetiten, ST IR &l 1400 et &
ST AT B o ST TR T ST o1 gRT 1400 ettt &
3ATereh o1 AfoHEt T aTaT fohalT T ) e Teh STt STIaeT oh
RS, T foha e sfafe et sH g wfdrer 31 =,
IS QTS ol STTH o Eaey # hlg Hi2raar 72l &, 38t 39
3T o AT ot Bl o SIS, 38 3Th (Leh URET = o
EYH @A H 1 % 3Tl Tehe ferarsraT=nfEw e

1T 18 3T AT - T 6371.77 o (raw farferer e ok stavta
%197.03 ARG A E)
farferer =1 & 145351690000000000 sefUwEiTe S Sfwfer
he shl fershr o T2, 46 e et €, gaa 2w for fordfim ad
T gty %0.32 @ i ot oo & i g oft o 3@
03.04.2024 =T &1 {oR3T TTT T, 8 Yeh 36 TIST & 377 hl h
foamaT T 31 31.03.2024 ST T W ohe | ST I ST URTH T
fe@mrmm

31 |, 2024 Y GHTH 99 & o0 o 3R g1fy foremor #
STETLITIUT 3TSeH:
e s e waRrawTamT4617.83 @™

e 30.12 o aREe Jesd WA

=TT T aiae Tt o 3Tl 7 SEaTe Te 1 gu 8 31K
s1em g ot fafiee g uee foanfea sifafes forer i g
TITRT 3 IeTCHT o ToTU sh1g shise e STt et femarm e @, et
At o e Yoo o 0 £4617.83 A S Siuadt o forg
£673.55 TG < T o foI Setetht 1 feamer e 81 gawt
T ¥ 3o an eedqrest 3 g9eitd & fomar s8e o fimet o
ST T G T STACHL Tl Tl 2| TfISTaH, ST I 3@ T H
fereh femman & i et o feamm e Rl

ii) Freight receivable for imported urea is outstanding ¥462.77
lakhs for FY 22-23 and ¥292.85 lakhs(for 2vessels) for FY
23-24. This freight receivable consists of both primary (rail)
and secondary (road) freight receivable over & above ad-hoc
inland freight at the rate of 1250 per MT received. As per
DOP order dated 29.06.20, subsidy on rail freight is
restricted to 1400kms. However, imported urea had been
transported to states beyond 1400 kms and further subsidy
over and above 1400 kms have been claimed by the
Company. In view of the aforesaid DOP order, the additional
freight claimed is doubtful to be received. As per convention
of conservatism, no doubtful income shall be taken into
consideration in recording of transactions by an entity.
Since, no certainty exists regarding receipt of freight, rather
than recording it under income, it should have been disclosed
under Notes to accounts as Contingent Assets.

NOTE 18 Other Income - %6371.77 Lakhs (which includes ¥
197.03 lakhs under Miscellaneous income)
The miscellaneous income includes ¥2.46 lakhs on account of
145351690000000000 SALE OF BVFCL JANAUSHADHI
KENDRA, we observed that the sales amounting to 0.32 lakhs
related to the financial year was not recorded and it was recorded
on 03/04/2024 thus showing understatement of income by this
amount and understatement of the cash in hand balance as on
31.03.2024 by thisamount.

Exceptional items in Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
ended 31st March, 2024:

Relinquishment of liability on settlement of dispute ¥4617.83
lakhs read with

Note30.12 Note on Gas Transportation Charges

The formal gas transportation agreement is not yet signed and no
credit note has been issued by Assam Gas Company Limited for
the reversal of the earlier disputed excess billed amounts butthe
Company has accounted the reversal for an amount of
¥4617.83 lakhs towards transportation charges and
¥673.55lakhs towards GST.In our opinion the reversal of
expenses based on minutes of meeting without proper
accounting document and agreement in place is not correct. As a
result the income is shown excess by this amount and liabilities
are shown less.
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3.9 3T ITATH:

)

ii)

CAG T & 7% o aramia faté o sTam, sfeftuseiea
o T T 2740 FATE 3Ty €, o | 2485 FATE I &
ﬁzssmﬁtmmaﬁﬁﬁ%qwﬁwmané
ST o ITTER, S FATERT T PRI U ST T T R
T o) azrﬁmq%amﬁﬁm 12.2010 st SIS ot
CASEIRERCERICERSIEI ) (ﬁ%ﬁﬁ)aﬁm%ﬁm%mﬁ
THHT SUCTSH SEATAST STCTo SHrT T ol IETet it Sgh
HTER, TR H &2 1 |Tet o Si1e SRire form ST o, o
AT 2024 ek HINTEA T foha T amsedd T It fm &
A= S S UHEHITE % 1L T AT 33Td &, 3 770/-F
1200/- %93 ek H1Tereh ot < &, & 2010 o S0 Gemifera
fora e o a9 @ foreram wenferg w2 fomam e om e &
G 3 U U ol TTea ShT BT BT 2

et (fefipeiee) 3 3 e & fowom % fog e
mﬁaﬁwﬁﬁé@(@@@%wﬁqﬂﬁaﬂsﬁmﬁw%aﬁt
THTRTA 1 10 IS TR T sl T 2T 2] THEiId o STTER
U TUeT TAUHTS ST 37O e fershastl g ST fom e
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁmﬁwﬁaﬁfmm ST HET
W%Wﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬂ%%aﬂmﬁ%%ﬁﬁmﬁ/@m
PR 70T SRR & STt e 1 78 21 3 e, 4
HAfRATAT o et Herd Tl o STTER R TR e
P afor 3 i ST A €T 2, A it S Fefor o e
T Y oh T T37TS UHHTTRARTR H 1% A1 ST o T S|

=feh I 1 fieleE L @l o, 38y Tewed A
13.03.24 T % 235.29 TG o Sieh TTHAT 1§ L & AT T
A o T £37.83 @ &1 =411 +ff S| 6k ST,
I 2024 H TTTHUSA  sieh T 1 & leh 5 IS ST

30 YR, Ul hI I T AfeHSt TET T 120.764 FS
31..03.24 T TreTTH | IEAT €16 AT el 7 81 o Hor
372 g% off ST TTUHTS ST 735.29 ARG 1 e M €
T o hITOT ST ShT AT Hehe ohT ATHAT HLATIST|
Sefuweiter g1 THUHUA & 13993.38 Hifds 7 Seare &
TR AT 70 B9 H{ e 2 ohT SATY AT STfSTd fShat 7T,
19,79 TG &G R, Aok seh T T8 B 3T AT Y ST
6 ThT0T SHE e ST TSl ol BT 53

foror fervmr ent 1ot e i fartera o asft o bt STTargereRdT
&, e g eI 7% 7 21 ST S8 T 1 3Tat g
mé%%qauﬁwaﬁa@rﬁﬁmw%aﬁiﬁﬁﬁmm
SOt o IcaTa T oh forauT o frerehyet i T =y

3.9 OTHER OBSERVATIONS:

)

ii)

As per the Transaction Audit Report given by CAG, a total of
2740 nos. of quarters are available with BVFCL out of which
2485 nos. of quarters were fit and 255 quarters have been
declared unfit. As per the information provided by the
management, the rent for these quarters was fixed a decade back.
The only available document in form of minutes of 2nd
Township Discipline Committee(TDC) meeting held on
03.12.2010 was provided in support of fixed rent. As per the
TDC meeting, the rent was subject to revision after every three
years, which was still not revised till March 2024.The outsiders
i.e. non-employees of the corporation who avail quarters of
BVFCL, pay monthly rent ranging fromZ770/- to £1200/- which
was revised during 2010. Since then the rent was not revised Non
revision of rent results in loss of revenue to the company.

The Company (BVFCL) has entered into marketing agreement
with the National Fertiliser Limited (NFL) for marketing its urea
and gave NFL bank gurantee amounting to ¥ 10 crores. As per
the agreement BVFCL will also ensure sale of fertilizers
supplied by NFL by its retailers, through POS, for the quantities
not sold through POS and not acknowledged by wholesalers/
retailers in iFMS. Further, in case the payment due against
suppliers made as per the agreed terms is not received within the
stipulated period, interest 1% above the one year SBI MCLR
prevailing on relevant due date shall be charged.

As there was un-cleared POS stock of urea NFL revoked the
bank guarantee on 13.03.24 amounting to ¥ 235.29 lakhs and
also levied interest of ¥ 37.83 lakhs for delayed payment.
Further, in April 2024 another 5 crores were collected by NFL by
further revoking the bank guarantee.

Thus, the company's own subsidy amounting to¥ 120.764 crores
was stuck due to non-clearance of urea stock from POS as on
31.03.24 and due to revocation of bank guarantee by NFL for ¥
735.29 lakhs the company suffered liquidity crisis.

The trading margin of only Rs.70/- MT has been earned by
BVFCL amounting t0%9.79 lakhs on trading of 13993.38 MT of
NFL's product but suffered interest loss of much more than that
due to revocation of bank guarantee and levy of interest.

The marketing department needs to ramp up its collection
activities so that the precious funds are not blocked and should
take wise decision on marketing the products of another
company after properly vetting its own capacities to meet the
agreement terms and conditions.
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4. 9T SATETT A i tera Hiferes sTiTeraan
ot o1 et et o e & @ 21 T, it shuet bt e
GURTROMTcHFR T3 1,583.04 AT TR

FHUAT I 68, 166.28 TG 9 T E<Id H1eT 8 T2 3 Eehl T
IS £36583.24 ARI TR 2

BTcAi{eh Jee T el @ fo faret qear § et o hor shoeft o1
TG o T T ST 15 ST e 2

5. T SRETa T AT

T A@IET HTHed o ATl & SiT gqR Uier ol 7 =g o o
T faretta forarmott sht g eramien § e Hecadol ) SA
701 o STTHR & S@TaRIeT HTt ohi (e 36 shul o A el
BT 2, AT 78 U TGt arg bt 2

6. fareitar ferawor 3t 39 W SraTudieres At faie o etetaT sr=a
SICEANE

ST =T 3T Hed 317 STHRT GFR o o foTe e B) 31
SR § &S ot fard o wrifirer Sepit snftrer 2, fSred s i
TS 3 serien S caeraferes forriiar fatd smfirer &, feh et
Tordfer foraror s ST T gan SAtfeet it frard snfier 72t 21

forcfer et oX garl T 310 SRR %l shad e ol & 3T eq
O L foreft ot TeR T o SATTE foreen s el shid 2

Tordfr foramont <t gam eramodiett 3 Geer 7, A forier 2 T =m
3T TR oh! Ue 3T VAT hid T9F 36 o1 W fommr =i for s/
S TR Toit ferawott am s SamoiaT & R 9T STHehRT
T Tk &9 B ST & F1 3= Wi oreh ® & Terd T ia e 2l

afe, TR ST AT T ST ok TR o, T g e g E R g
T SR H h1E HEaqul Tord foartor &; a1 g1 36 q2 3hi Fare
AT ST 3| FH Hte H & Fte i o ferg e ot et 31

7. farfrar feramont o foro water & fRreie

ST ST fHIeeTeR Ao SATAfRm it €T 134 (5) W afvid Ameti & fofe
e 8, St 5 forfier foreroti ot Qumdy s weier 1 2, it srferfoem oy
$TRT 133 % dad (HIEE iEish HT=ehl Bied SRd | 378 i W TR
TR Ty crateR fgiat oh STem shaet ot forefier fearfa, forefar srawta
TR TRl yaTE o1 TRt TR et g9 3 71 38 e | et o
fcEa eIt ol GRaT 7R ATt 31 1= Sfafiaarstt i T
HIT ITHT 9T M o6 FIq STl o e & AR o

4. Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
The net worth of the Company has been totally eroded, as the net
worth of the Company is negative at¥31,583.04 Lakhs.

The company is having accumulated losses to ¥ 68,166.28 Lakhs
againstits Share Capital 0f¥36583.24 Lakhs.

Though the management says it has no intention to cease the

operation of the company because of erosion of net worth.

5.Key audit matters:

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional
Judgment were of most significance in our Audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current year. Reporting of Key Audit
Matters as per SA 701, are not applicable to this Company, as it is an
unlisted company.

6. Information other than the financial statements and auditors'
report thereon:

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation
of the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report & Business Responsibility Report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

7.Management's responsibility for the Financial Statements:

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134 (5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
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Torefier foramoT o st ©w, STef shaT o1 o] e o &9 H ST
T T &HAT ST ST L, STET AN 8, =] S5 § Heierd
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T ¥ R EETC BT 2, T o 73 TeleT T i1 G S o
IR sig R 3hT SUET = T &, IT 3Heh YTE UET ohi o TeAmar
IS ITEdfeeh fashea T 71

e ded ot it foriter gfqae ufshan it s@i@ & o ot
IS

8 . foeitw faamont <t sramden & oo SEmodiaes 6
et

T 3239 39 o1 § Iferd ST ITH s & fop o forefiar foremor
Y FT § e e & 45 €, 91 98 9rargl a1 4
FHOT 7Y, I Tk @ qdieres i e S s e gart
ST 81 S STTHTE Teh o< ST ohT ST 2, wferd I8 Tt
T 2 fop THT o STTER fope T SHifee gueT weh wiifae TerdeaTt
I HTTC STel o7 HIS[G 8| TTeAdaeT SRaTeel a1 e 6 3ca=T 81
Tl & 3R 3% e 7w ST @ afe, safETa w9 @ a1 g
foreamert, 3 37 Tt foramott o STTemR W SwRmTehdtatt g fore T
Tfofen fofai snt werifarg S FY SFaq & & e sTaesd 2
THT % STEN $Hifee & 9IT & &9 §, 79 IR fof od 8 g
31Tz A A HRE ST T B T e i &

o forci feremcott & witfares eta foraror 3 Siiftawt <t g o6t 3fit
IERT HATHTH e, ATe o SETIE! AT JfE F FHROTE, 3 SArawi
o Tfd STterl sraTieT gfshanet ot fesg 3 fwfeq =,
ST AGTINEIT |18 TH SRl ST EHRT T o foTt STTemR e i
& for vty 3 Sfera 81 e & afommeesy difaes Tera
forareoT 3T 9aT 7 TR 31 e FfE o TRumeTsy g AT
Siftgw ¥ 31feres B, it sarael # fiefhwm, STest,
SHTSIZHeRL =%, TTetd SR 3T SATdieh [=RI=70T 2l Seeier TTHe
REETIES|

. SAifge Tt sTafies fesor i aag e i darfes vt eiifee
SIS R o6t ST ek <11 wifeerferalt a6 feermer & Swgh 21| horft
AR, 2013 T & 143(3)(1) % ded, 89 38 S H A9 T
ek i o forw oft e & foh s/ shuit 36w vty iafier
Torfer foreror goTeft 2 o7t U@ et st uimea gumesfierar
FTR

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the
Company's financial reporting process.

8. Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements:
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Wealso:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,
2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report and we
have duly placed our doubt on the company existence of going
concern under. the reporting Head Material Uncertainty Related
to Going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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9. Reporton other legal and regulatory requirements:
9.1 As required by the 'Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020

(“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters
specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of "the Order", to the extent
applicable.

9.2 Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and except for the matters described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion paragraph 3 above obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion paragraph 3 above in our opinion, proper
books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company, so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph 3 above, the Balance
Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph 3 above, in our opinion,
the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7

of'the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended;

In pursuance to the Notification No. G.S.R 463 (E) dated 05-06-
2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Section 164
(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to disqualification of
Directors for appointment as Director of Company, is not

applicable being a Government Company.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
"Annexure B".

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report
under section 197 (16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the limit
prescribed by section 197 for maximum permissible managerial
remuneration is not applicable to a government company as per
Notification dated 05.06.2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs.
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With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation in
its financial statement under Note 30.1 as contingent liability;

ii. the Company has not made provisions, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a.) The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented, that to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,

foreign

that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest on other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provided any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

c. Based on audit procedure which we considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub — clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

v) The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the

i)

year in contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the
Companies Act,2013.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
for maintaining books of account using accounting software
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is
applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023.

132



ﬁ%@
WEI el hitarsuie hiufeerd frfdcs ;:TQ@.‘;—

BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED BWVFC

or et 4 26 WE 2024 (31rta for ad 24-25 @ 311 % ot
3HffEe oot hl Gfererm e T el & AR aRomeTsy, g form
Y 23-24 % 7T 3T HHeSA T SHifee St glarar ot fooaoft
F T 3rEaef &)

9.3 Syfirfam Y amT 143(5) % idvia Wid o {32 e merern

e (AU o eI o ST i wiarehi shl Sdee o
ST 3R ST STeT ST HIHET o6 Heer H qiT T H SHT= &
H Wl T e Jorsl & STTAR HuAl h gEdhi 3
HAfE! I SART ST o STUR T A &4 & 73 FeT 3R
TATIRLOT o STTAR, B9 TRA o [RIAeh T HeTeran wierd &
frctt it su-fdwn o Ffdy areti ot "srgeren o # fomrore

w®E

wfmuadreama
sfige gafed de dhaT
TS AL
THITRTA 3110568

B/-

FATY QU Te,

THHT 9TfER

ASEIATHEAT 059631

UDIN :24059631BKGPYE3661

TAT : TR
fafer: 24.08.2024

During the course of audit, we noticed that the Company has
enabled feature of Audit Trail on 26th May 2024 (i.e from FY
24-25 onwards) and consequently, we are unable to comment on
audit trail feature of the said software for FY 23-24.

9.3 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors'

Report in terms of the directions of the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India (C&AG) under Section 143(5) of the Actand on
the basis of our examination of the books and records of the
Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted
auditing practices in India and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we give in the "Annexure C"
statements on the matters specified in the Directions and Sub-
directions of Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

FOR & ON BEHALF OF

B.L. PUROHIT & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN 311056E

S/d

SUBHASH PUROHIT,

FCA PARTNER
MEMBERSHIP NO. 059631
UDIN: 24059631BKGPYE3661

Place : Guwahati
Date: 24.08.2024
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Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report for the
Financial Year 2023-24
Referred to in paragraph 9.1 of Independent Auditor's Report to
the members of the Company on the Financial Statements.

Wereport that:
i) a) (A) The company has maintained computerized records
showing particulars quantity and value of Property, Plant
& Equipment however, the company has not maintained
the specific situations of its Fixed Assets in the Fixed

Assets Register.

(B) The Company has maintained computerized records

showing particulars of intangible assets.

b) As per information and explanations given to us by the
company management, the physical verification of property,
plant and equipment was assigned to an external agency. The
agency has commenced the task of verification of property,
plant and equipment and the process of physical verification
is expected to be completed in the subsequent financial year
considering the voluminous nature of the fixed assets in the
organisation and multiple departments involved.

Any material discrepancy which might be observed in the

verification will be dealt in the subsequent financial year.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and
the land holding records produced for our examination, we
report that the company holds 2611 bigha, 2 katha and 13.5
laccha of freehold land in Namrup, Assam where its plant is
located.
According to the information and explanations given to us the
Company does not have immovable properties of land and
building taken on lease.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not revalued its Property, Plants & Equipment's
during the reporting Financial Year.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
company for holding any Benami property under the “Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made
thereunder.

ii) a) As per information and explanation given to us, we observed
that the stock of manufactured goods, traded goods and the
packing materials used for the packing of finished goods
have been physically verified by the management at the year
end however, we observed that the physical verification of
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stores and other inventory is not being done since long time.
Further, discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for
each class of inventory were not noticed in respect of the
materials covered during the physical verification.

b) As per information and explanation given to us, during any
point of time of the year the Company has not availed
working capital limits from any banks or financial institution
against the security of its current assets and hence (ii) (b) of
CARO 2020, isnot applicable on Company.

iii) The Company has not made investments in, provided any

iv)

v)

vi)

guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties therefore
reporting under Clause (iii) of the CARO 2020 is not applicable
on Company.

As per information and explanation given to us, there are no
transactions which attract the provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and security provided by it, therefore reporting under
Clause (iv) of the CARO 2020 is not applicable on Company.
The company has not accepted any deposits from the public and
hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
Provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015
with regards to deposits accepted from the public are not
applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the Cost Records maintained by the
Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government
for maintenance of Cost Records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and we are of the opinion that prima facie
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained.

vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us

ax, Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service-tax,
Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, cess and
any other material statutory dues have been regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us no such undisputed arrears of
statutory dues were outstanding as at 31st March,2024, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us,
some disputed dues against the Company are outstanding as
at 31st March,2024, in respect of Assam Value added tax
and central state tax(CST). The details for the aforesaid
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E’aﬁl’ﬁ% Eﬁﬁ% The Assam CSTand Commissioner
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viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has not surrendered or disclosed as income any
transactions not recorded in books of account during the year in

the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix) Based on our audit procedures, and as per the information &

xi)

explanation given to us by the management, the company has not
defaulted in the repayment of dues of principal or interest on loan
to the bank, financial institution or debenture holder and hence

the clause ix(a) toix(e) are notapplicable on this company.

(a) During the reporting Financial Year, the Company has
not raised money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the
provision of clause 3 (x) of the Order is not applicable on the
Company.

(b) During the reporting Financial Year, the Company has
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year and therefore the
requirements of compliance of Section 42 and Section 62 of
the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable on company.

(a)To the best of our knowledge and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no material fraud
has been observed being committed by the company or any
fraud on the company has been noticed or reported.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under-sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the
year and up to the date of this report.
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(c) As auditor, we did not receive any whistle-blower

complaint during the year.

xii) This Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence this clause of
CARO 2020 is not applicable.

xiii) The Company has not entered into any transactions with the
related parties and hence compliance with sections 177 and 188
of Companies Act is not applicable on the Company.

xiv) a) Internal Audit of the Company is being conducted on
quarterly basis by a Chartered Accountant firm and the
scope of audit coverage seems to be commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.

b) We have duly considered the reports of the Internal Auditors
for the period under audit.

xv) The company has not entered into any non—cash transactions with

directors or persons connected with them, except for payments
of salary and other perquisites as mandated in service rules for
directors of a Government company.
The Company is a Central Govt. Undertakings and its
managerial remuneration to the Chairman Cum Whole Time
Managing Director is as per the pay fixation prescribed by the
appointing Govt. Departments i.e. Ministry of Chemical and
Fertilizer. Thus the company has paid/ provided managerial
remuneration only as per mandate of the Central Govt., which is
itself a sufficient compliance of provisions of section 192 of
Companies Act2013.

xvi) a) The company is not required to be registered under

section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities, and hence this
clause of CARO 2020 is not applicable on Company.

¢) The Company is nota Core Investment Company (CIC)
as defined under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank
of India, and hence this clause of CARO 2020 is not
applicable on Company.

d) The Company is not being managed by any Group
Concerns, and hence this clause of CARO 2020 is not
applicable on Company.

xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us,
during the current reporting period the Company has incurred
cash losses amounting to ¥6460.12 lakhs and no cash losses
were incurred in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii)The Company is a Govt. Company and its Statutory Auditor is
being appointed by CA& G of India. None of the appointed
Statutory Auditor of the Company has placed its resignation so
far.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us the
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faien : 24.08.2024

management of the Company has expressed its capability of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date though the net worth of the company is negative.

xx) According to the information and explanations given to us by the

management the Company fulfills 2 out of 3 criteria for the
applicability of the provisions of the Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 however, the amount to be spent on CSR
based on the two per cent of the average net profits of the
company made during the three immediately preceding
financial years is negative and therefore this clause 3(xx) of
CARO 2020 is not applicable on Company during the reporting
year2023-24.

xxi) The Company is a single entity and has no group concerns and

hence this clause of CARO 2020 is not applicable on Company.

For B. L. PUROHIT & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 311056E

S/d

CA SUBHASH PUROHIT
Partner

Membership No : 059631
UDIN: 24059631BKGPYE3661

Place : Guwahati
Date : 24.08.2024
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Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited
Annexure —B to the Auditors' Report

Referred to in paragraph 9.2 f of Independent Auditor's Report
to the members of the Company on the Financial Statements for
the Financial Year 2023-24

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,2013 ('the Act'):

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Brahmaputra Valley Corporation Limited (the
Company') as of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls:
The Company management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI). The responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
to Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the
Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
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financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control bases on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risk
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting:
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that"
1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the Company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorization of the Management of the
Company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting:

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company has irregularities in material respects,
and significant deficiency in internal financial controls system over
financial reporting were identified and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were not operating effectively as at
31st March,2024including timely filing of appeals against the
assessment orders passed against the company leading to imposition
of penalties and not giving effect of the penalty in financials, non-
availability of proper records for unreconciled balances in the current
period, incorrect classification of income, expenses, assets and
liabilities, insufficient provisioning, non-conduct of 100% physical
verification of fixed assets and stores, Failure to perform
reconciliations of significant accounts, correction of misstatement
due to error (like in calculation of depreciation) which is based on
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

FOR & ON BEHALF OF

B.L. PUROHIT & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN 311056E

S/d

SUBHASH PUROHIT, FCA
PARTNER

MEMBERSHIP NO. 059631
UDIN-24059631BKGPYE3661

DATE: 24.08.2024
GUWAHATI
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Annexure C of the Independent Auditor's Report for the
Financial Year 2023-24
Referred to in paragraph 9.3 of Independent Auditor's Report
to the members of the Company on the Financial Statement

Directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 for

g fder the Financial Year 2023-24

4. | feem-fe T Rieren ferafurat Sl.no|Directions Auditor Comments
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system on the integrity of the
accounts along with the
financial implications, if

any, may be stated.

software except accounting of
manufacturing process, material
management, fixed assets
register and payroll processing
which is maintained in software
in COBOL system for the time
being. The legacy data from the
COBOL system migrated to
Tally system needs to be
scrutinized and cleaned so that
unnecessary and duplicate
ledgers are sorted and taken care
of.
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Whether there is any
restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver /
write off of debts / loans/
interest etc made by lender
to the company due to
company's inability to repay
the loans? If yes, the
financial impact may be
stated.

Based on the details provided
by the Management and our
audit we observed that during
the period under audit there is
no restructuring of an existing
loan or waiver/write off of debts
/loans/interest etc. made by a
lender to the company due to
the company's inability to repay
the loan.
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3T HEFAST TSeE & | TSET g 3Uesy T T Whether funds (grants /| Based on the details provided
fafsre = & fo wm/ae foraor SR gam craTaia subsidy etc.) received | by the Management and our
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W@y 3@ o e oew | e gM @ ge accounted for/utilized as per | Company from Central/State
o & Awer s its term and conditions? List | agencies.
3F|TQ°I the cases of deviation.
a;%q@ﬁ ARy FOR & ON BEHALF OF
Wgﬁ%ﬂ@m B.L. PUROHIT & CO.
—re S : CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
UDIN -24059631BKGPYE3661 UDIN-24039631BKGPVEIG61
THEARTT 311056 FRN 311056E
- sid
WW’ Q':h_{:ﬁ'q SUBHASH PUROHIT,
T FCA PARTNER
AT €T 059631 MEMBERSHIP NO. 059631
TOIT: TATETET PLACE: GUWAHATI
m"z 4.08.2024 DATED : 24.08.2024
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
(€fi3TTETT / CIN U24123A52002GO1006786)

31 |, 2024 % STTER T T

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 E‘;‘f‘ji:)
foraor PARTICULARS feoqoft .| 319, 2024 TR | 31 919, 2023 T
Note Asat 31" Asat 31"
No. March,2024 March,2023

1 gieraret ot e 1 | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
<h. Ry ffer A | Shareholders’ Funds
@) | TSt (a) | Share Capital 1 36,583.24 36,583.24
@) | fod i afemy (b) | Reserves and Surplus 2 (68,203.31) (69,037.52)
. TR-ada é?TdTE B | Non-Current Liabilities
(@) | <mEfats sur (a) | Long term Borrowing 3 57,275.00 57,275.00
@) | 1= dEiaty e (b) | Other long-term liabilities 4 2,173.78 1,756.16
()] HEIEIERICEIE] (¢) | Long-Term Provisions 5 2,278.37 2,616.91
. FTAAT SASTET C | Current Liabilities
() | FcuTErSER (a) | Short term Borrowing 64.94 2,495.80
@) ST AT (b) | Trade Payables 22,922.59 21,428.62

qe&n 3an it T SEH =T eT SToh1IT Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises 580.25 67.98

q&H | A SRS maﬁ@ﬁw ) Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than

TR BT ENEEIRN micro enterprises and small enterprises 22,342.34 21,360.63
@ T FIAH FATE (c) | Other current liabilities 10,554.48 15,777.63
() ST TR T (d) | Short-term provisions 223.66 663.19

TRT (T TOTAL (A+B+C) 63,872.75 69,559.05
1l gttt Il | ASSETS
q AT AT it D | Non-Current Assets
(=) Tufe, T 7R SUHT 3R 31143‘ (a) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets

wafem
0 T EfET (e "t (i) | Tangible Assets (Net Block) 10 16,973.50 15,101.83
(i) e Hafw (ii) | Intangible Assets 10 12.04 10.32
(iii) qsﬁ"'l?f EIDR LN (iii)| Capital work-in-progress
) i a) | Tangible 10 468.20 468.20
@) Y b) | Intangible 10 24.50 25.25
(iv) ‘Tlfﬁ"'l?f = Tt (‘TiSﬁTR'T HHH) (iv)| Capital work-in-progress ( Capital stores) 10 553.97 682.68
@) | drelenTforss sHoT 3T 1M (b) | Long-term loans and Advances 11 1,332.30 1,103.12
3 T afET T E | Current Assets
(%) Hre Hjﬁ (a) | Inventories 12 6,199.41 3,449.04
@) ST T (b) | Trade Receivables 13 17,392.74 29,407.11
()] TG S S I (c) | Cash and Bank Balances 14
- Thg 3T ok THheT - | Cash & Cash Equivalents 11,047.41 6,710.64
- = e Sdd - Other Bank Balances 798.25 5,796.03
() STCYHTICTeR KT I AT (d) | Short-Term Loans and Advances 15 8,230.74 6,443.98
®) I I qiEafET (e) | Other Current Assets 16 839.68 360.85

AT (T+T) TOTAL (D+E) 63,872.75 69,559.05

W@@@TW Significant Accounting Policies 29

@t o fau stfafes feoafort Additional Notes to Accounts 30

T 1e 37 Tt feremot &1 ush The accompanying note forms an integral part

AT IR of these Financial Statements
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TS o T 31T SThT AR A
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

it
Priyanka Kumari
st wfa
Company Secretary

TEET ARG ! TR Her {1 & STTHR
TAEE R

e, g gfed

qrfier

TSI FEEIaT & 05963 1
o T, FE 3110568
UDIN- UDIN :

femieR: 23.08.2024
T : Lasé

Ty, 1. 3™

S.C. Das
s (for)
Director ( Finance)
< 37 T - 08988297
DIN - 08988297

As per our report of even date annexed
For BL Purohit & Co.

Chartered Accountants,

CA Subhash Purohit

Partner

ICAI Membership No. : 059631
Firm Regn. No : 311056E

Dated: Guwahati
Place: 23.08.2024

ot % s

P.K Banik

e U ey iR (Tt Tuw)

Chaiman & Managing Director ( Add Charge)
2 3775 T-10095724

DIN - 10095724
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TR AT WIEATSI ARIM feAfies
BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
(&3TETT / CIN U24123A52002GOI006786)
31 AT, 2024 1 GHTH 9 o fog ey i =il o feremor

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024 E‘:ﬁ:’lri?)
foraor PARTICULARS feoqoft .| 319, 2024 TR | 31 919, 2023 T
Note Asat 31" Asat 31"
No. March,2024 March,2023
I TRt | T I | Revenue from Operations 17 74,896.43 114,649.60
I T AT II | Other Income 18 6,356.91 1,199.57
I hHel T III | Total Income 81,253.34 115,849.17
v Py IV | Expenses
Wﬂmﬁﬁiﬁ'm Cost of Materials Consumed 19 16,720.66 20,765.14
TETh-37-28 hI Tlig Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 20 17,763.29 34,297.25
ﬁwaﬁaﬁaﬁwajﬁﬁwﬁaﬁw Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 21 (2,534.91) 628.02
T T W 3T WER ATt Work in Progress and Stock in Trade 21 280.19 (419.20)
wUaR fea e s Employee Benefits Expenses 22 6,059.32 5,545.99
Tt e Finance Cost 23 65.97 9.63
Tag™ IR ufteier sa g Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 10 1,513.74 3,472.76
T =TT Other Expenses 24,25,
26,27 47,717.61 48,677.45
HeT =T Total Expenses 87,585.86 112,977.05
\% STETLRUT 3T TETIRIT A 3T V | Profit before exceptional and extraordinary (6,332.52) 2,872.12
W UEA AT (11-1V) items and Tax (III-IV)
VI FTETETRUT Sq (AT Y it VI | Exceptional Items
w) & It TuTE a) | Prior period Adjustment - Expenses / (Income) | 27A (2,548.90) 434.49
) Rusicakei b) | Relinquishment of liability on settelement of 4,617.83 -
dispute (Refer Note No. 30.11)
VI | 3TETeRoT sqat 3R VII | Profit before extraordinary
W TEA AT (V-VI) items and Tax (V-VI) 834.20 2,437.63
VIII | 3TETerior |t VIII| Extraordinary Items -
X Eh‘(ﬂ::i‘m (VII-VIII) IX | Profit before Tax (VII-VIII) 834.20 2,437.63
X Cagps X | Tax Expenses
a) ERticicTy (1) | Current Tax - -
Q?) ST Y (2) | Defferred Tax - -
XI Wﬁ%%ﬁmnﬁmﬂﬁ% XI | Profit/ ( Loss) for the period from
feru @y / (@1f) (VII-VIID continuing operations (VII-VIII) 834.20 2,437.63
XII uﬁmmaiaa?ﬁ%m/@ﬁn XII | Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations - -
XIII | OferTe s & & foe s XIII| Tax expenses for discontinuing operations - -
X1V uﬁmmaizaﬂﬁﬁm/(grﬁ) XIV| Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations
T o °1e) (X1I- XIII) after Tax ) (XII- XIII)
XV FATH/ETH (XTI +XIV) XV | Profit / Loss (XI +XIV) 834.20 2,437.63
e 91 31T (%. 1,000/- Tfer 9= ): Earnings per share (of Rs. 1,000/- each): 28
Slﬁfwllﬁ I FUA ) Basic Earnings per Share (Rupees) 22.80 66.63
el SRR UaeT o (FUA H ) Diluted Earnings per Share (Rupees) 22.80 66.63
Wﬁﬁ'@ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ Significant Accounting Policies 29
@rat o feru arfafes fewfirat Additional Notes to Accounts 30

T AT 2 faitar et &1 ues e e ®

The accompanying note forms an integral part of these Financial Statements
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TS o T 31T SThT AR A
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

it
Priyanka Kumari
st wfa
Company Secretary

TEET ARG ! TR Her {1 & STTHR
TAEE R

e, g gfed

qrfier

TSI FEEIaT & 05963 1
o T, FE 3110568
UDIN- UDIN :

femieR: 23.08.2024
T : Lasé

Ty, 1. 3™

S.C. Das
s (for)
Director ( Finance)
< 37 T - 08988297
DIN - 08988297

As per our report of even date annexed
For BL Purohit & Co.

Chartered Accountants,

CA Subhash Purohit

Partner

ICAI Membership No. : 059631
Firm Regn. No : 311056E

Dated: Guwahati
Place: 23.08.2024

ot % s

P.K Banik

e U ey iR (Tt Tuw)

Chaiman & Managing Director ( Add Charge)
2 3775 T-10095724

DIN - 10095724
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TR AT BIEATSI HTaRIH feAfies

BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
(GI3TETT / CIN U24123A52002GO1006786)

31 TTH, 2024 31 GHTE 99 o fIU Tehe Y18 T farawor

Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended as on 31st March, 2024 E‘;ﬁﬁ:)
Teraror PARTICULARS 2023-24 2022-23
AT ATt & Tehat e : CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES :
W@W/@Iﬁ) : Profit/(Loss) before tax : 834.20 2,437.63
SIS : ST HTIehelTd o STATET qT T Add:Adjustments for Non Cash items
TohE WaT I 3T o T ittt & other than
Operating Activities
- AIgE - Depreciation 1,513.74 3,472.76
- R HI ATk il oh T - Provision for Obsolescence of
%’Q‘SI'IH%IW stores & Spares 9.90 41.20
- B o Foha M o fofq Jraem - Provision for Leave Encashment 492.50 373.43
-39EH o foTe yrae - Provision for Gratuity 559.56 274.46
- yfereerfue gftdaft i AL o E@G’Iﬁ - Fixed Assets written off against
T gt ¢ < ufa replaced assets 127.86 42.10
I WW%%’QW Provision for Unmoved Capital Stores |- 8.09
T forelt 7% et 8 I8 Taue sfda & | Provision no longer required written back| - -
anfue fordt 2o Liability Written back (2,721.52) (34.99)
oy fordt g W@E‘I’HT@T Depreciation written back (2,710.21) (152.23)
ST Eﬁtéﬂ?ﬂq Provision for doubtful Debts / advances |- 47.58
g @Td H guf Assets Write off (Net) (13.23) 442.49
(2,741.40) |- 4,514.90
aﬁl’&sﬁﬁdﬁvﬁaﬁm T 3T IETIRUT | Cash flow from Operation Before
wE A ‘J::i‘ T § ThE TaTE Working Capital
Changes, Taxes & Extraordinary Items (1,907.19) 6,952.53
T YSiT TREaHT o T aHTsH: Adjustments for Working
Capital changes : -
ST 3T = 9T (T{%{)/EFRQT - (Increase)/Decrease in Trade and
Other Receivable 12,014.37 (26,780.79)
- |TA Hjﬁﬁ @ﬁq’)ﬂﬂ:ﬁ - (Increase)/ Decrease in Inventory (2,760.27) (589.33)
- IR 37 3T 31 é’qﬂTﬁT{&{/(W) - Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable
and other payables (3,799.00) 15,870.00
- i 3 o= mﬁ;ﬂﬁﬂqﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁi - Increase in Advance & other
Current Assets (2,265.59) (769.68)
- qfﬁ"l—d ic i) Eﬂ:_s( - Increase in Capital stores (100.48) (105.17)
- JUGH 3R TR T Thg Ya - Gratuity and Leave encashment paid (1,052.06) |2,036.98 (1,443.42) | (13,818.40)
129.78 (6,865.87)
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ST 7e Extra ordinary items - -
T FHRIHATIT T ThE TaTE (F) Cash Inflow from Operating

Activities(A) 129.78 (6,865.87)
Fraor wreieheTTal ¥ TeRe TaTE CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES :
Fraa ufutat i @i Purchase of Fixed Assets (790.04) (357.54)
a‘i@o—@pﬁﬁ % foro afim o (ﬂ'ﬁ&')/ﬂﬁ (Increase)/Decrease in Advances for

CWIP (0.75) (311.51)
IEEHEIPEIRIE T CIT @) Cash Outflow from Investing

Activities (B) (790.79) (669.05)
e o for 3T 37kt 3T &
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
[EREak T . Ht. oft & AR
Priyanka Kumari S.C. Das P.K Banik
ERCIkCIEE) IEENEAER)) ITeey T e fewmes (@ffen wm)

Company Secretary

HUEE A s g Her il % Sgar
ALE AR

T, T e

e

STTSHIMET Tl & 05963 1
& . J9: 3110568
UDIN- UDIN :

feieR: 23.08.2024
T : ‘0332‘

Director ( Finance)
2 311 TF - 08988297
DIN - 08988297

As per our report of even date annexed
For BL Purohit & Co.
Chartered Accountants,

CA Subhash Purohit

Partner

ICAI Membership No. : 059631
Firm Regn. No : 311056E

Dated: Guwahati

Place: 23.08.2024

Chaiman & Managing Director ( Add Charge)
2 3178 TH-10095724
DIN - 10095724
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TR AT BIEATSI HTaRIH feAfies

BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
(GI3TETT / CIN U24123A52002GO1006786)

31 TTH, 2024 31 GHTE 99 o fIU Tehe Y18 T farawor

Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended as on 31st March, 2024 Ejﬁ-iﬁi

foraror PARTICULARS 2023-24 2022-23
To<Ta hricheTTal & ehg TS CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES : - - -
TFohe 3R Aohe TueheT H faet ke NET INCREASE IN CASH AND - -
& (F +E+T) CASH EQUIVALENTS: (A+B+C) (661.01) (7,534.92)
T o TR H Tohe 3T Tohe THHE : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT THE

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR : 12,506.67 20,041.59
T o 3T o Tehq 3N Tohe THRET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT THE

END OF THE YEAR : 11,845.66 12,506.67
Notes:

- Cash and Cash Equivalents include :

- Purchase of fixed assets has been shown net of adjustments.
- Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect method" as set-out in
Accounting Standard (AS) - 3 on Cash Flow Statement issued by ICAI

- Previous Year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged, wherever found necessary to confirm to current year's presentation.

Cash & Bank Balances, Short term and other deposits, which are highly liquid and encashable as and when needed.

TS o o 3R STehT AR &
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

it ot
Priyanka Kumari
EREiRcIC
Company Secretary

T A o g Her i % STfEm
AL HFRE

i, o qfed

arfier

STTSHITET Fe=IaT & 05963 1
i T, e 3110568
UDIN- UDIN :

feien:  23.08.2024
T : ‘\jélg?f

wy. ©. 3

S.C. Das
e (o)
Director ( Finance)
<1 3118 U7 - 08988297
DIN - 08988297

As per our report of even date annexed
For BL Purohit & Co.
Chartered Accountants,

CA Subhash Purohit

Partner

ICAI Membership No. : 059631
Firm Regn. No : 311056E

Dated: Guwahati
Place: 23.08.2024

ot % s
P.K Banik
e Ud ey R (3l 9uw)
Chaiman & Managing Director ( Add Charge)
2 31 TH-10095724
DIN - 10095724
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED BWFC
TR AT BIEATSI AR feAfes
BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
(FT3ATETT / CIN U24123A52002GOI006786)
¥ 2023-24 = for foredtar feraor ot feefort
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2023-24 E‘]j“a“]@kj’)
feraror PARTICULARS 3191, 2024 T 319, 2023 T
As at 31" March,2024  |As at 31" March,2023
feoqut 1 : PR U NOTE 1 : SHARE CAPITAL
EITfﬁl'Eljf Q;\T-l'T : Authorised Capital :
eI %. 1,000/ % - 5,100,000 3fFET = | 5,100,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1,000/~ |51,000.00 51,000.00
each
I, e Qamusﬁ Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Capital :
THET T FEH Promoters' Contribution
Y% &. 1,000/ % 100 Sferrel I 100 Equity Shares of Rs. 1,000/- each  [1.00 1.00
REAELS o foTT YT TR © hg § 9TH Equity received in cash from Gol
it I 1,000/- €T 588000 against Revamp 588000 Equity Shares of
HECCimp Rs. 1,000/- each 5,880.00 5880.00
I Others
Y% 1,000/- TIT F 3,070,224 3T TR | 3,070,224 Equity Shares of Rs. 1,000 /-
01.04.2002 ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂmm each issued against transfer of Net Assets
featies & 05.04.2002 =1 et afwaf=i & | as at 05.04.2002 w.e.f. 01.04.02 from
0T o forw ST fekarm o) Hindustan Fertilizer Corporation Ltd.  |30,702.24 30,702.24
36,583.24 36,583.24
(1) aﬁaﬁrﬂgﬁm ST 31 § TR} T §&AT 3 (i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the
EEQRIRUMEARESIEE end of the year : fiﬁﬁ:}
feraror PARTICULARS 3191, 2024 d% 319, 2023 9%
As at 31" March,2024 | As at 31" March,2023
Number of Amount Number of Amount
Shares (Rs.in Lakhs) | Shares (Rs.in Lakhs)
a3 JTEAT | gferet A Equity Shares at the begining of the year [3658324 |36,583.24 |3658324  [36,583.24
SIS oY o S ST feRam T Add : Issued during the year - - - -
Y & i T I [T Balance at the end of the year 3658324 |36583.24 |3658324 |36583.24
ii) 5% ¥ arfires IR T I A ii) Details of Equity shares held by each share holder holding more than 5% shares :
IR UTehT o ATH JERLRh FRT AT (s
3‘%32"} (Rs. in lakhs)
I <Rt faremT: Name of share holders 31 U, 2024 9 31 1T, 2023 9
As at 31st March, 2024 | As at 31st March , 2023
TG IR ©IOT BT IfowTa| e SRR SITOT SRt ST
i wEr Ak
Number of  Percentage of | Number of ~ Percentage of
Shares held  holding Shares held  holding
ST o Tl President of India 3658324 100% 3658324 100%
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iii) 3 o 3fq § SIS ER W Y R iii) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
THTEI hT ATH Promoters Name 31.03.2024 1 IR 6T gwfrs‘l’aﬁwnﬁm
e
No. of shares as on % of total shares
31.03.2024
TR ok Ut President of India 3658324 100%
HUT o UTH ool Ueh &1 a1 o gferaet The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 1000 per share.
ﬁm%ﬁwn@ 1000 @QQ’&I’W%I Each share holder is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity
ek YRRk U IR Uk 1 T gha®  shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
B ufeammoe i fearfa o, sferét SRame  distribution to creditors and all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
HUAT AT 9 Hu T SERl i o shareholding.”
TS S At ATE VT Bt IhT
PRt o ST UTH e & ferw
L1ER (e e
(Rs. in lakhs)
feraror PARTICULARS 319, 2024 T 319, 2023 T

As at 31" March,2024

As at 31" March,2023

Tewuft 2 :TRiaa R sfew

NOTE 2 : RESERVES AND SURPLUS

AT 3T 7T 1 farawor Statement of Profit and Loss
ST T Opening Balance (69,037.52) (71,475.15)
STT: Y 3 IO ATe/(81H) Add: During the year Profit/(Loss) 834.20 2,437.63
FA Total (68,203.31) (69,037.52
fewuft 3 Sratater o NOTE 3 : LONG-TERM

BORROWINGS
AT T O S3TST <h R Interest free unsecured loan from Gol 57,275.00 57,275.00
T Total 57,275.00 57,275.00
fewauft 4 ;3 Frataty ettt NOTE 4 : OTHER LONG-TERM

LIABILITIES
T ST T 2,173.78 1,756.16
HeT Total 2,173.78 1,756.16
fewutt 5 ; ratafer araem NOTE 5 : LONG-TERM

PROVISIONS
AR f&d @ % foTT e Provisions for Employee Benefits
3I9EH & %I'Q Biceich Provision for Gratuity 1,475.92 1,756.27
EEEESEIUEIRIERIC] Provision for Leave Encashment 802.45 860.64
T Total 2,278.37 2616.91
fewtt 6: ereuehTicTeR SAaTREAT NOTE 6 : SHORT-TERM

BORROWING
EEZSIRIEER] Bank Overdraft - 2,495.80
b TRy Book Overdraft 64.94 -

64.94 2,495.80
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED BWFC
TR AT BIEATSI AR feAfes
BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
(SIS / CIN U24123AS52002GOI006786)
¥ 2023-24 = for foredtar feraor ot feefort
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2023-24 (‘:ﬁ:ﬁiﬁ)
foraror PARTICULARS 319, 20247 | 3197, 2(023 a
Asat 31" March, | Asat 31" March,
2024 2023

fewauft 7 ;oM TEAE NOTE 7 : TRADE PAYABLES
) qgH 3R SRS maﬁiﬂ SHTAT T a) Total Outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises 580.25 67.98
o) g&H 3 SRS ITTT % ITATET 3T THERT | b)Total Outstanding dues of creditors
Eql EWWTT@T other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises 22,342.34 21,360.63
ksl Total 22,922.59 21,428.62
fevqutt 8 - o FAHTT SFaT NOTE 8 : OTHER CURRENT

LIABILITIES
ST TRRT TS - T Deffered Government Grant - General 6,955.94 9,123.71
a9 o < ITH SEH Opening Balance of Grant 9,123.71
SHT ;- SAHYh 37T T CISGESIS] Add:- Interest Accrued on Unutilized

Grant 391.11
TG - AT S BT @d o foremor § 7r=ret | Less:- Govt Grant recognised in
ITH ShRRT SREE] Statement of Profit & Loss Account

along with GST on Goods & services (2,558.87)
tTjﬁ = Capital Reserve - -
gifarferes Tt (dru, I H, IS Jqeh, Statutory remittances (Contributions
éz, ﬁaﬁh‘(, Sfruadt anfe ﬁﬁ"'l?l’*f) to PF, VAT Withholding taxes, Excise

Duty, VAT, Service Tax, GST etc) 155.36 301.56
eI ¥ ST Advances from Customers 1,495.92 2,682.20
I Others
1) SATIR <FaTAT o SAATaT faferer demH i) Sundry Creditors other than Trade

Payables 314.64 2,238.93
ii) =TT é?il?lT@ ii) Liability for Expenses 1,320.18 864.82
iii) 17T ITATTS iii) Other Liabilities 312.42 566.41
Hel Total 10,554.48 15,777.63
AT il AU 3R TW@TE % T 9Ra | Anamount of Rs 10,000 lakh have been received during the financial year 2021 - 22 from Gol
TR | T o 2021-22 % R 10,000 | for repair & Maintenance of plants. Interest accrued/received during the financial year 2021-
TG & T ART 916 g5 8l foreffa ad 2021- | 22,2022-23 & 2023-24 is Rs. 80.66 lakh , Rs. 412.72 lakhs & Rs.391.11 Lakhs respectively.
22,2022-23 31 2023-24 % < IARAG/IH | An amount of Rs. 2558.87 lakhs (Rs. 2227.70 lakhs charged to Profit & Loss A/c along with
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STST SHATT: 80.66 AT T, 412.72 ARG &9
3f0391.11 ARG FIAR] 2558.87 ARG & <l

GST input tax credit of Rs. 331.17 lakhs) in addition to the same the GST credit of Rs.206.24
lakhs for the Previous Year was also charged to Profit and Loss during the financial year

Tfir (T ST BT @ | 2227.70 TG ¥ (Previous year Rs 402.41 lakh including reversal of GST credit of an amount of Rs. 57.20
& @Y SeEdr 92 9 shfee 331.17 @@ lakhs) . However Utilization certificate of an amount of Rs. 4842.80 lakh has been sumbitted to
T & AT et a9 & fIT 206.24 RF | the DoF for payment made on cash basis. (Refer Note No.- 30.9 of notes to accounts)
T T SiuEt shfee ot fofr ad sh gy
ST =TSt fera I ot (et o 57.20
T T T T F Sfodet shfee o ek
Tfed 402.41 ARG T) | FATIY, Tohg TR T
A o fTT 4842.80 AT &9 T 1T 1
STAAT IO o fosmT B SR st
feam e R1 (o fequoft iy feguft T (et
fewautt 9: sreuTafer wraam NOTE 9 : SHORT TERM
PROVISIONS
SUST ohT AAHT STehTaT Current dues of Gratuity 161.92 483.62
ST ThE LT T AT SR Current dues of Leave encashment 61.74 179.57
R3Sl Total 223.66 663.19
fordftar &t 2023-24 % forg samar S i w6 srrgam faamor
Age wise break-up of Trade Payables for the F.Y. 2023-24 Eiﬁiif;
fearor Particulars 199 & A 19239 | 28399 | 3@ AREH FA
Less than 1 year 1-2 years| 2-3 years| More than Total
3 years
(1) PL&H,H@@TW?@W (i) MSME 574.25 6.00 580.25
(i1) 3= (ii) Other 22,284.67 17.39 11.89 28.39 22,342.34
(iii) Ferafe e - g&w, @9 | (iii) Disputed Dues - MSME
TR HeTm 2w -
(iv) Teranfea srepm - 3= (iv) Disputed Dues - others -
R3Sl Total 22,858.92 23.39 11.89 28.39 22922.59
Toreitar o 2022-23 o foTQ =amaw 3 Tt &1 STEEw freror
Age wise break-up of Trade Payables for the F.Y. 2022-23 (e
TerartoT Particulars Lk ET 1929y 2939y EEL K IEET &
Less than 1 year 1-2 years| 2-3 years| More than Total
3 years
(i) 9&w, T SR A 8™ | (1) MSME 67.98 - - - 67.98
(i) =T (ii) Other 17,085.03 2.95 35.45 2.67 17,126.10
(iii) ferafea seRr - H&H, @ | (iii) Disputed Dues - MSME
(iv) feranfea sepmn - 3= (iv) Disputed Dues - others | 2,549.16 1,68538 | - - 4,234.54
HA Total 19702.17 1688.333| 5.45 2.67 21428.61
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BVFC BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

3. U T 31 |, 2024 T Ueh AT qeh-iehl AT shi i
13.06.24 =6t fravd o eqrem o faeenfug et uitufat & fafaa
T o Harer 1 o (et o 42,10 @ &) o 0 127.12 A
TR (eIgT o ST 316, 2! Tt & aife aret wea frertfed & fopar
ST Heht o, WEY wfeeenfua it 1 e fewm fise aut @
Geifera

4. =T Y 3 S ST T THTSR 3R I e o STER wiea
TEAETE ST T sciTeh oh s STt 1 e 1| firee) o at @ @t
61 &bl H o1 ek ST AT 1| THUHAT SR e sfetd o6
SR g & firerT &t o forg =imey ard & 38 e foperr mam gwrer
AT T <@ T § Toh T i o wmet § gos St
TR T 21 =0 9 § g forar ma @ it @ e sifafen
BT 1 3 o &9 H 31 fHAT T 8] FABH o T i
oo e et srafir shfee i veam 1 8 2 3 38 S
[ERIEIEETIE]

3. The company has written off Rs. 127.12 lakhs (net of depreciation)
during the year ( Previous year Rs. 42.10 lakhs) towards written down
value of replaced fixed assets on the basis of report dated 13.06.24 of
an inhouse technical committee as on 31st March, 2024 since book
value was not ascertainable, major part of such replaced assets related

to earlier years.

4. During the current year the company identified the difference
between the Accumulated depreciation & Net Block as per FAR and
as per Trail Balance. The depreciation was over charged in books of
accounts over years. Same was rectified in the current year to match
the Depreciation as per FAR and Trail Balance. Further it is noticed
that in case of some of the assets the deprecation has been over
charged. The rectification has been done in the current year and excess
depreciation charged has been booked as income Depreciation past
period Credits by adjusting the provision for depreciation to the extent

ithas been identified and can be rectified.
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED BWEFC
TEIYA At HIEATSR HTaNeH faties
BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
(FT3ATETT / CIN U24123A52002GOI006786)
¥ 2023-24 = for foredtar feraor ot feefort
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2023-24
(E 7A@ H)
(Rs. in lakhs)
[EE PARTICULARS 319, 2024 @ | 3190, 2023 @
Asat 31" March, | Asat31" March,
2024 2023
feoauit 11 Sratafer wor R alm NOTE 11 : LONG-TERM LOAN AND ADVANCES
ERSIUGEEIL A.Capital Advances
e R Rrgar=aT 9T TR Secured, considered good - -
afera , 52 =T /T ST Unsecured, considered good - 0.01
. 3T B. Others
TR SRR o foreg STa RT 6 & H Deposit held as margin money against gurantee issuer 1,230.61 1,000.00
ST TfET Security Deposit 65.23 68.63
Hfive @ Prepaid expenses 36.46 34.48
Hfery Doubtful 28.65 28.98
o2 wierer it o fore greem Less: Provision for doubtful advances (28.65) (28.98)
%l Total 1,332.30 1,103.12
Teoquft 12 : seqeE NOTE 12 : INVENTORIES
HEAAT IITE (STHTIAT) (& =AaH A | Intermediaries product ( Ammonia ) 202.66 482.85
RIREC] EIT@TH@ ) (valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
IR IS (=AM T ITTH % 3TeATaT ) Finished Products (other than those acquired for Trading) | 2,058.06 138.60
ST IdTaT T LI Stock of traded Products 973.00 103.86
3 Others
(FIAdH AT 1 faret wifyr I W) (valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
sl fociet s @ik Stock of LPG Cylinder 1.94 2.47
Frveqor o qead view 7R sfdafcs ‘iﬁ Stores & Spares under inspection 367.09 0.98
AqNTE H ER Stores in Transit - 168.20
A () Subtotal (A) 3,602.55 896.95
MUSROT 3N ﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁ‘jﬁ (TTd W) Stores and spares (At cost) 4,117.41 3,975.95
AT gt w61 Wik (T IX) Stock of packing materials ( at cost) 72.13 203.30
Yl : Less :
<h) ETI%TW 3 ?ﬁ?ﬂ'ﬁ?ﬁ e INLSIERIE] a) Provision for obsolescence & Impairment (1,338.00) (1,343.32)
) ST ST T 3 fore grerem b) Provision for shortage of Bags - (30.67)
) FIR ScaTal shl HHT ok fIT Srerem ¢) Prov. For shortage of Finished products (253.17) (253.17)
) ST ScaTeT shl T o feIT STeren d) Prov. For shortage of Trading Products (1.30) -
T (@) Subtotal (B) 2,596.86 2,552.09
FA (FHT ) Total (A+B) 6,199.41 3,449.04
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BVFC BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

forefiar e 2023-24 o R IR A, HeFad aeqr TR At
gt (Tadis Sm) w1 9w wemde R e ik uig e
ToremTiera/eafarat sl Tt & & @ § FHTI ST R |
T S T ST T il Fraiedl o FoTg ST SATeid S s
1 weh oaaeh Hife qareht 2, st fon ferqufy g 29. 7§ seoi@ fomn
TR

forefier e 2021-22 % SR, TR AT i 3aiedl § £253.17 TR h
T TS TS| TR W (BoD) 3 MeRITE, Siedl ot Hed T&dehi
T ST ToRAT T STR | TR 26T AT HHT o6 70 oh ST s
| 3 of1e, ferfterad 2022-23 H, Gt <t sfifaes geamd= e &
JATIR YT 32l o o foharm 1| satory, facfier ad 2021-22 Fr
T hT ot e geaied b ferc iy o 2022-23 % 3T Sfore
TofaIT T BTAiToR, S Eas H ST AT ST qdehi H T Tl I8
e forefr a 2023-24 H£253.17 A A1 TART W g4l TGTH 3R
& A o ST (IR R HeT) Rl ST HTHT ook shi S sk a5

fordt af 2010-11 & dtH, Wi 3T T & ifqs g §
fopeirricrart oTE 78 3TN AaTER £30.67 TR sht TFRT ki T <6l ol oh
ST o & Jehl 5 a1 [ohelT TTT| T {eh, 78 T 7T fof J&crehi
T U IS TelToId L2ieh 81 & foteeh el I8 T s 74T o)
THIAT, S8 ST i T8 s e T

TAA I o S, AR ScATET shl il o feTT 1,30 @@ 1
FICBIEEEIRIRIDIN

Physical verification of Finished Goods, Intermediaries, and Packing
Materials (HDPE Bags) have been carried out during the financial
year 2023 - 24 and discrepancies/ damages found have been properly
dealt with in the accounts.

The company has formulated a comprehensive policy for age wise
provisioning for inventories of Stores and spares as stated in Note no
29.7.

During the FY 2021-22, shortage of inventory of finished goods
amounting to Rs 253.17 lakhs were identified and as per the directives
of the BoD the value of inventory was carried in the books and a
corresponding provision against the same was created for the amount
equivalent to the value of shortage. Subsequently in the FY 2022-23
the inventory was accounted based on the physical verification report
of the committee hence the inventory pertaining to the shortage of
urea for FY 2021-22 was charged off to consumption of the F'Y 22-23.
However the provision created existed in the books of account. The
error has been rectified in the FY 23-24 by increasing the inventory by
the amount of Rs. 253.17 and crediting the prior year material
consumed (shortage of'urea) to that extent.

During the FY 2010-11 discrepancies were noticed during physical
verification of stores and spares and accordingly an amount of Rs.
30.67 lakhs was provided for in the books as Provision for shortage of
Bags. However it is noticed that no corresponding inventory is carried
in the books for which the provision is created. Therefore the
provision is written back.

During the current year a provision of Rs.1.30 lakhs has been created
against shortage of trading products.
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED BWEFC
TR AT BIEATSI AR feAfes
BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
(&3TETT / CIN U24123AS2002GOI006786)
TN 2023-24 o fore foreftar feraor o fewafort
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2023-24
(E 7A@ H)
(Rs. in lakhs)
[EE PARTICULARS 319, 2024 @ | 3190, 2023 @
Asat 31" March, | Asat31" March,
2024 2023
feoquft 13 =amaw sfer NOTE 13 : TRADE RECEIVABLES
RRIE) % foTu 37 IRI@ | B2 |18 ¥ 2114 | Trade receivables outstanding for a period more than
Frafer Y SR Tl six months from the date they were due for payment
STEEEAT (YT ") Subsidy ( Government of India) 1352.34 741.90
I Others 544.75 4186.10
1897.09 4928.00
T UTE T Y a1 =i i Trade Receivable less than six months
TSTHEAT (YR |Lh) Subsidy ( Government of India) 14108.33 23701.63
I Others 1484.05 874.21
15592.38 24575.84
wfary grfeai & %I'Q eI Provision for doubtful receivables -96.73 -96.73
15495.65 24479.11
A Total 17392.74 29407.11
ST TR 3T 17 Aggregrate of Trade receivables :
sfera, fore sreaTAMT T ? Unsecured, Considered good 17392.74 29407.11
aftfera s o= dferr o e ® Unsecured Considered doubtful 96.73 96.74
wifare sTfeett o forg s Provision for doubtful receivables -96.73 -96.74
17392.74 29407.11

foaquoft 1 - SR T - wfsEE! (YR SRR) T YT SR E 9T
FH A isaS M 8, %12,076.43 7@ (T a9%8,817.59
TAR) 1 8, ST e TeE § w6 el 2

foquoft 2: - s Tt §%127.97 o (fse a9 2127.97 9r@)
et 8, S 2016 B feraur farsam gy weiferd | shuges s e st
Tt g TSI ek & 9T A A1 ) forqur farmt I Shwmes &
ToprelT off | BT SETC TR AT ST €, ST T siel U T @ #
ST fofe T 2| Tetien, SaeR qumiis SR H 8 7R 39 95 Siea
EUEZECIE G

foquoft 3 - R TR 1. 78 9@ (Ut i %178 o) Itie
&, ST SR e 1001 F Tad auff i gaw forsht & weifea 8 oo
forvrmr 3 fopeft oft oty 67 SU aT = S R) 912 T 6 9Tt Ul
T Tl ST & ST e & T S A T H RIS aftad T gar R
FHU SHHT TUTEISH UTHAT T 7, 3T GHEISH & o8 S6H
FIEIRIEAS Il

Note 1 :- Trade Receivable - Subsidy (Government of India) includes
Subsidy receivable from Government of India amounting to Rs. 12076.43
lakhs (previous year Rs. 8817.59) which is subject to clearence from POS.

Note 2:- Trade receivables include Rs. 127.97 Lakhs (Previous year
Rs. 127.97 Lakhs) on account of receivable from seven numbers of
KSK managed by Marketing Department since 2016 and two number
of KSK managed by private parties. Marketing Department has not
sold any materials from KSK on credit and the payments were
deposited in BVFCL account. However the reconciliation of the same
is under process and expected to be completed very soon.

Note 3:- Trade receivables include Rs. 1.78 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.
1.78 Lakhs) from retail sale of Vermi-under dealer code 1001. Marketing
Department has not sold any materials on credit. The account represents
the transactions 6 years earlier and since then there is no change in the
account balance. The company is in the process of reconciliation of the
same, necessary entries will be passed after reconciliation.
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feauft 4. - afead) (AT ") T1,352.24 A ARG R TURH  Note 4:- Subsidy ( Government of India) outstanding for more than
ETS Il'iﬁ'}l T 7Tk T9T 9 TR % SEH 769431 1@ (ﬁ'@ﬁ EL) six months amounting to Rs. 1352.24 lakhs includes Rs. 694.31 lakhs
¥694.31 A1) It &, S SHeRT 2017 9 HFZI 2017 TH &t  (Previous year 694.31 lakhs) outstanding for more than 5 years on
Sty feru 5% mmw%wﬁmwﬁ ISk Re) account of 5% balance claim of subsidy for the period from January
TRTAT | S 3 T, S RS, SN UG A T FA A R 2017 to October 2017. Company has not made any provision against
%f@maﬁémmﬁﬁw%l ’ ’ the said amount being receivable from FICC, DOF.

forer a1t 2023-24 o fog TR TTfEt T STgER foreror

Age wise break-up of Trade Receiveables for the F.Y. 2023-24 Eiﬁﬁ:ﬁ)
feraror Particulars 6 HTE ° FHH IaNEFHA [ 19299 | 293a%  (3a6d s | Fa
Less than | 1-2 years| 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years
(i) Tfdfeme =zmam e (i) Undisputed Trade 15,592.38 204.22 706.25 140.92 802.93 17,446.70
Receivables
ii) ferafee wrer (ii) Disputed - - 4277 - - 42.77
receiveables
el Total 15592.38 204.22 749.02 140.92 802.93 17489.47
forer e 2022-23 o forg saTaR FTfRET T AR o
Age wise break-up of Trade Receiveables for the F.Y. 2022-23
(= T )
(Rs. in lakhs)
feraror Particulars 6 HTE ° FHH 1aNEFHA [ 19299 | 29398 (3a6d s | Fa
Less than | 1-2 years| 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years
(i) fdame =mm e (i) Undisputed Trade 24575.84 3899.69 177.10 2.73 805.47 29460.83
Receivables
ii) ferafee wrer (i) Disputed 0.00 43.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 43.02
receiveables
A Total 24575.84 3942.71 177.10 2.73 805.47 29503.85
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED BWEFC
TR AT BIEATSI AR feAfes
BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
(EATET / CIN U24123A52002GO1006786)
TN 2023-24 o fore foreftar feraor o fewafort
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2023-24 PRSI
( Rs. in lakhs)
feraror PARTICULARS 319, 2024 @ | 319, 2023 7
Asat 31" March, | Asat31" March,
2024 2023
fooauft 14 g 37T Tohg TUqT NOTE 14 : CASH AND BANK BALANCES
EJRET IR The AT A) Cash and Bank Balances 11,047.41 6,710.64
o) e % TR B) Balances with Bank
EICIBESLIRCIGIR:] In Term deposit accounts 795.47 5,789.86
SRTAT, YRITNT, SR 3 31777 9fd gfdergaredi | Balances held as margin money or security against
* %ﬂ{ TS ST = Rasel HegH @l TI'§| borrowings, and other commitments. 2.78 6.17
A Total 11,845.66 12,506.67
feoqut 15 . sreatfater T iR 1w NOTE 15 : SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
31133‘? &1, ST 31T g T4 Unsecured, considered good
SHETIET o K0T 3 1M Loans and advances to employees 165.06 115.55
s fiftem %IQ A Advance for Insurance Premium 90.96 66.11
IeUTE I TR ITTRIRTIET % I8 ST ART | Deposit with Excise & Govt. Authorities 107.08 85.79
ARt st AR Advance to suppliers 609.54 520.35
T Ifm Other Advances 7,254.16 5,621.34
CﬂT‘{\fﬁEFcﬁaﬁ & foru wiferer s1fim Doubtful advances to suppliers 34.90 34.78
T Gy SATMT o forw yraeme Less: Provision for doubtful advances (34.90) (34.78)
tlff Yo I Prepaid expenses 3.94 34.82
T Total 8.230.74 6.443.97
feoqut 16 ;37 aduT wfatrEt NOTE 16 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
31'{3;(? &d, ST =T qH g Unsecured, considered good
T 9T Other Receivables 682.32 272.83
31{[(? &d, Hferer q g Unsecured, considered doubtful
T I Other Receivables 197.57 197.57
EI?."Iﬁ: wfarer greg fsr %%’QW Less: Provision for doubtful receivables -197.57 -197.57
ECIRSCISLESIS) Interest accrued on deposits 157.36 88.02
Rlul Total 839.68 360.85

311 TTfeE o farferer <er (weee) nfte €, fomehl wifsr2546.37 arm
(frct o #444.41 1) 2, ST SAEHE e TS 3 RIeTs s &
Wmﬁuwmﬁwﬁaﬁw%ﬁ%ﬂwwww
2, %mﬁaﬂqaqqqa ﬁaﬁw%aﬁm TN Ty fanmr
ST 32T et & e e e 3 T8 TR H 5 el § ST
T STH g5 21 38 ATdh, b ioetl sl wrarert o +ff STt fepg e

T AT, fertEie stfufirm afi fgai & qea stfes it e
F o fore, femieet frmder & g e 3 faer s frg
BTCATeh, TRET HHeh 9 "I HT=IdT" o TR UL, ShHTIET o AT
W %197.57 @ (et o £197.57 A1) ST A6y o
AT o Raets TTae= @ R

Other receivables include sundry debtors (Estate) amount Rs. 546.37
lakhs (Previous year Rs. 444.41 Lakhs) due against licence fee etc.The
management is taking necessary initiatives to recover the licence fee
receivables etc., by calling on the parties like BSNL, Police Department
Authorities, Govt. Health Department and other individuals. Dues from
some of the parties have been received in the process. Moreover, warning
letters have also been issued to the defaulters.

Further, in order to protect rights under Tenancy Act and rules, rental
bills have been raised against the defaulting tenants. However on the
basis of Accounting Standard 9 " Revenue Recognition " , Provision has
been kept against arrear licence fee etc. from other than employees Rs.
197.57 lakhs ( Previous Year Rs. 197.57 lakhs).

161



\%/

W2

;;,gmf— TEIpT Ao Bitaswe eiuke @Ets
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TR AT BIEATSI AR feAfes

(E3TTET / CIN U24123A52002GOI006786)

BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

¥ 2023-24 = for foredtar feraor ot feefort
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2023-24
(F T H)
(Rs. in lakhs)

[EE PARTICULARS 319, 2024 @ | 318, 2023 7

As at 31" March, | Asat 31" March,

2024 2023
feoaoft 17 srrert & Terea NOTE 17 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
=.fafafifa scaret i forshi A.Sale of Manufactured Products
Hj{'ﬂT Urea 9,900.86 12,049.64
TAdieh ol forsht Sale of NPK 293.22 89.91
SEEEIE Bio Fertilizer 228.20 221.78
Tfﬁ ke| Vermi compost 5.75 8.49
0T () Total of 'A' 10.428.03 12.369.82
. Waﬁi‘)ﬁ i fersht B. Sale of Trading Goods
THSAT 3 forshi Sale of MOP 603.91 2,200.25
iRt S fersht Sale of Pesticides - 33.35
Srudt i fasht Sale of DAP 93.60 4,404.76
weEdt 6 fersh Sale of SSP 3,103.08 7,950.85
EISEIRCED Sale of Vegetable Seeds 16.52 12.23
{ehwhiethe i fershi Sale of Rock Phosphate 376.67 756.99
& UTeh dedl shl farshl Sale of Micronutrient 198.10 161.10
Tt s Sale of City Compost - 28.96
Ww?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ Sale of Urea -Traded 3,572.93 3,516.77
@Wsﬁﬁlﬁﬁ Sale of Agro Power - 324.45
ST AR SaTeh shi foIshT Sale of FACTUMPHOS 304.18 110.52
A i forshl Sale of Amm. Sulphate 1,067.96 2,999.35
T Tthe T forsht Sale of HIL Net - 18.76
@ﬂﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ Sale of imported urea 14,551.14 11,725.82
CIRICERIRIEAREED] Sale of Mukta Power 1,823.76 4,416.28
HhT Tell EIREED] Sale of Calcium Nitrate 38.85 945.23
TAURUS Tte st fersht Sale of NPK 32.45 826.73
TR i forsht Sale of PDM 51.19 565.77
diEium & farshr Sale of other Trading products 7.59 -
T (@) Total of 'B' 25,841.93 40,998.17
A (1Y) Total of (A+B) 36,269.96 53,367.99
T, 3T T | T C. Other Operating Revenue
i) fifa scare (Ffem) i) Manufactured Product ( Urea)
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(T I )
(Rs. in lakhs)
ENEIRIECERIE %WH@W a) Price Subsidy for manufactured products 35,720.04 52,245.03
@) fafafda saamet = fore arer §€I’I’§ b) Freight Subsidy for manufactured products 2,943.65 3,340.79
TSTEERIAT
i 3Trfad aﬁm%maﬁuﬁqﬁf ii. Reimbursment of expenses for imported Urea
% ) T AN Elﬁ‘{\ﬁ a) Purchase cost Reimbursement 240.65 991.17
@) 7T gellg b ) Freight 1,223.65 462.77
M SEPEER] ¢ ) Income from laytime 21.55 64.88
iii) Ut etafer it TsragTar iii) Past period subsidy - Income / (Reversal) (1,523.06) 4,176.97
0T (M) Total of 'C' 38,626.47 61,281.61
A (FHEHT) Total of (A+B +C ) 74,896.43 1,14,649.60

TETAT ITH/ITH G AT £38,663.69 A (et o £55,585.82
AR T AT ST B Td | &t 1T 7T 8] I8 TTH-12 (ShRT
IFIEHI o6 AT raier) o TR R TR 2|

JaTh JENT G AT (TRATSETED) 8 SfeReT S 8
=R, forfter A 2023-24 o S S/mH qew wfsue! 1 afg/Ff &
Heifera £2,511.75 A (Ut o £1,084.12 A& fg STaT) hi TR
TR T STRT femieeaT, fife, fHeem s eaierton st e o wd
TUIIISH ST AT, fohT T |

Subsidy received / receivable of® Rs. 38,663.69 lakhs (previous year Rs.
55,585.82 lakhs) is credited to statement of profit and loss. This is
followed as per AS- 12 Accounting for Govt. Grants.

Pending notification from Fertilizer Industry Coordination Committee
(FICC), the adjustment relating to escalation / deescalation price subsidy
payable / receivable amounting to Rs. 2,511.75 lakhs deescalation claim
during the Financial year 23-24 (previous year Rs. 1,084.12 lakhs
escalation claim) has been accounted for on accrual basis taking into
account the guidelines, policies, instructions and clarifications issued by
the Govt. of India.

163



\%/

W2

;;.}gw;— TEIpT Ao Bitaswe eiuke @Ets

BVFC BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

TR AT BIEATSI AR feAfes

BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

(E3TTET / CIN U24123A52002GOI006786)

Y 2023-24 o T forfiar foraor ox fevaforat
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2023-24
(F T H)
( Rs. in lakhs)

Taraor PARTICULARS 31T, 2024 0 | 31 9T, 2023 7
As at 31" March, | As at 31" March,
2024 2023

feuuft 18 3t wuTE NOTE 18 : OTHER INCOME

<h) SIS AT AlInterest income

i) STATAT ST WY O T (83.98 ARG T i) Interest on short term deposit (TDS deducted 307.22 283.69

% IEiud il fUset o %. 80.24 TRT FU)| Rs. 88.88 lacs Previous year Rs. 83.98 lacs)

ii) 3TRIERL Fhe 9T ] &= ii) Interest received on Income tax refund 3.57 6.00

iil) T WA iii) Interest on others 0.08 0.44

iv) EEGRCIGIR IS iv) Interest on savings Accounts 0.01 0.01

%l Total 310.87 290.14

) ThT 3T Eﬁl‘l’st TIS"; et st fersht B.Sale of Scrap & Salvaged materials 111.82 37.21

) FHHTET T 3T Fﬁ"'ﬁﬁm@'&fw C.Recovery of Licence fee, Electricity & Water charges

I forteft wa Stet I9 31t <Al g etc. from employees & others. 266.17 292.62

=) fafaer smar D. Miscellaneous income 181.41 199.41

) HUHHA Ud TE@re T Hei o aehiy E. Recognistion of Govt. Grant related to repair &

LM Al AT Maintenance 2,765.11 345.21

=) farferer eram 6t amoeht F. Sundry Liability written back 2,721.52 34.99

Rkl Total 6,046.03 909.43

el AT Grand Total 6,356.91 1,199.57

AT oo, forsTett 371 AT o Yok ohl agelt § £249.65 ARG 3
AT & AT Y[, T 37 forstelt 3 3eeh o &0 1 3 @ (et
TTE259.66 ATG)|

forfrar a 2021-22 3 SR TR THR T Yie shl T 37 TawaTe
o ToT8 10,000 T T 50 £2,558.87 @ (S £2,227.70 71
AT ITETH W H & R T 3 E331.17 ARG o SuEel shie bl
T o & T QT ) 61 ST = shl AU 37 W@ o foe
Tora | sEes SAfafin, oot ad & £206.24 IRa o STTHST shige T
ot forefier ad o SR @ o =i @ o st feoram T (st ot
7402.41 TG, fSEH £57.20 1@ 3 Suddt shfee T fada miter 2)|
(Gt fequft - 8))

FauH a9 § £2,721.52 TG Y T STt o i e, o ot
shfeew (farforer), wirem fommn, wftere S1e, @iie % forg et ik
TS TTATS 3 feIT 936,06 ARG T TSI SN 8] 38k 3T,
%1,572.17 ARG sl fgefiaes AranTel SeRT 1 TeeH T8 Yg=H &
TS T fofaT 7RI foh e eI 37eT STarvreh 12 21 6l aar e
FA T foraad 2010-11 T s 6t wft & few £30.67 g 1 T
st arfet B, foraes feTu sh1g weifaa sadt i 21

Recovery of licence fee,electricity & water charges includes Rs. 249.65
lakhs from others on account of licence fee, water & electricity charges
(Previous year Rs. 259.66 lakh).

An amount of Rs 10,000 lakh have been received during the financial
year 2021-22 from Gol for repair & Maintenance of plants. An amount
of Rs. 2558.87 lakhs (Rs. 2227.70 lakhs charged to Profit & Loss A/c
along with GST credit expensed off amounting to Rs. 331.17 lakhs) in
addition to the same the GST credit of Rs. 206.24 lakhs for the Previous
Year was also charged to Profit and Loss during the financial year
(Previous year Rs 402.41 lakh including reversal of GST credit of an
amount of Rs. 57.20 lakhs) have been utilized for repair and
maintenance of plant (Refer Note No.- 8)

Sundry liability written back during the current year amounting to Rs.
2721.52 lakhs includes provision for sundry creditors Misc, Godown
rent, transport charges, liability for purchase and railway freight
amounting to Rs. 936.06 lakhs. Further provision for secondary freight
payable amounting to Rs. 1572.17 lakhs has been identified as provision
no longer required and hence written back. Sundry Liability written back
also includes Provision for shortage of Bags amounting to Rs. 30.67
lakhs created in FY 2010-11 against which there is no corresponding
inventory.
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED BWFC
(® 7 AT H)
( Rs. in lakhs)
ToreruT PARTICULARS 3199, 2024 9 | 31 AT, 2023 T
As at 31" March, | As at 31" March,
2024 2023
forquft 19 3wt <t 78 wmft i AwTT NOTE 19 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
BIEAERIG) Natural Gas
Blckzacy Opening stock - -
ST: Tlg Add: Purchase 14,126.06 17,260.05
7R Wik ST TiE 1 IR Total of Opening Stock and Purchase 14,126.06 17,260.05
3ifay T Closing Stock - -
gad Consumption
3 - 11 Plant - IT - -
=i - 111 Plant - I1I 14,126.06 17,260.05
ad % I Total Consumption 14,126.06 17,260.05
TR 3T TRR 91 sl @ud Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 1,096.90 1,579.29
Afek Tt < @ Consumption of Packing Materials 1,497.69 1,925.80
ST 2T 17 T 6T et ART Total of Cost of Materials Consumed 16,720.66 20,765.14
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BVFC BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2023-24

T 2023-24 3% Toru fora fereror ur fevaforat

(® 7 ArE H)
( Rs. in lakhs)

\EE)

PARTICULARS

31 9T, 2024 TR
Asat31" March,
2024

31 49T, 2023 9
As at 31" March,
2023

fouft 20 k-2 A @le

NOTE 20 : PURCHASES OF STOCK - IN - TRADE

)

it e Fr wlig Purchase of City Compost - 28.08
St it wlie Purchase of DAP 93.03 4,371.69
A i Ty Purchase of MOP 596.56 2,194.36
AN E R RCERA Purchase of Presticides - 31.18
Tt i Elie Purchase of SSP 2,938.49 7,053.00
EISEARERE Purchase of Seeds 15.26 11.75
{oh BIEhe T THig Purchase of Rockphosphate 361.84 726.81
TATHUS ¥ IR T Purchase of Urea - Traded 3,036.07 3,470.92
ieh 31 &lig Purchase of Zinc 174.69 138.72
ERGEIRCEIE Purchase of Boron - 8.47
QEBTI?QE B e IRCE Purchase of HIL Net - 17.63
SR Tethe i Tl Purchase of Amm. Sulphate 1,053.02 2,932.40
qﬁ@:@'ﬁ EIREI Purchase of FACTAMFOS 295.49 108.39
T UTeR i Tl Purchase of Agro Power - 300.62
FfSem Tothe i Tlig Purchase of NPK 312.36 921.29
ik i wHiE Purchase of Imported Urea 7,250.99 6,489.59
ATl T Al THliE Purchase of NFL APS - 935.77
THUHRTA THITH ol ©WlT Purchase of Mukta Urea - 4,044.36
HehT IR 3t e Purchase of PDM 15.43 512.24
tﬂ@ﬁ'@??ﬁ Tl Purchase of Calcium Nitrate 35.45 -
Purchase of Mukta Power (Baroda) 1,577.22 -
Purchase of other Trading products 7.40 -
Rl Total 17,763.29 34,297.25
AT 21 :TAR TET , ITA A HAR YR | NOTE 21 :CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF
FEGAT hl AT Flt | uiadT FINISHED GOODS,
WORK IN PROGRESS AND TRADING GOODS
ELEE R W—Hjﬁ Inventories at the end of the year
. ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@i”ﬁ EaEsacy A. Stock of Manufactured goods
e (i) Urea ( Manufactured) 1744.51 130.79
mzaﬁm/arsi-ﬁwaﬁﬁ (Hﬂﬁﬁ'&ﬂ) Intermediaries product (Ammonia) /goods 202.66 482.85
&t Total 2007.5 5621.45
. TN 3TaT T LIoh B. Stock of Traded Products
TR Icd1E Traded Products 973.00 103.86
973.00 103.86
Hﬂfaﬁ{[ﬁm ﬁtl'la-ﬂjﬁ: Inventories at the beginning of the year:
. Faffifa aegat =1 i C. Stock of Manufactured goods
sy Urea 130.79 863.68
wmﬁmm:;ﬁ-ﬁwa@i (wﬁﬁm) Intermediaries product (Ammonia) /goods 482.85 63.65
e AT i LI Stock of Biofertilizers 7.81 6.79
TR ScaTal ohT Eeieh (THUET) Stock of Traded products 103.86 -
gyl Total 725.31 934.13
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. SATYTHA SeUTaT eht Teieh D. Stock of Traded Products

ST 3cq1E Traded Products - -

ik 1 o (?{%‘;)/ el Net (Increase) / Decrease in stock (2,255.25) 208.82

31.03.2024 T THTH B dTeT 39T T *The Closing stock of Urea as on 31.03.2024 includes silo

T W H 3917.275 WFWW stock 0f 3917.275 MT (Previous year 479.76 MT) and

(Tt a 479.76 Hifesh a) 3 1318.59 | stock in transit of 1318.59 MT (Previous year NIL)

Hifgeh o gifore wien (forset a w1 T

2

Me22: mﬁaﬂ’r%ﬂm NOTE 22 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

I S v Salaries and wages 3,624.36 3,685.27

afersr f3fer o o= ffer & 3ivem Contributions to Provident and other funds 404.90 415.11

FHUERT T S Staff welfare expenses 978.00 797.72

39 3T % AT e Provision for Gratuity Liability 559.56 274.46

RECRRIEAT I ICBIE] Provision for Leave Liability 492.50 373.43

%l Total 6,059.32 5,545.99
(&9 AT #)
(Rs. in lakhs)

Terawor PARTICULARS 31uTe, 2024 T | 31 9T, 2023 TF

As at 31" March,
2024

As at 31" March,
2023

feoqutt 23 <t @

NOTE 23 : FINANCE COST

E=ISERRN

Interest expenses:

o, I WO & ST 0T T =Tl

A. Interest on Unsecured loan from Govt of India

NESIEIRERIS]

i) Normal Interest

ii) SSETRY ST ii) Penal Interest - -

. %ﬁ@ﬁmmm B. Interest on Secured loan from Bank

ek AT ST T TS Interest on bank over draft 65.97 9.63

el Total 65.97 9.63
fewuft 24: [T TS A& NOTE 24 : REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

T 3 ST - 9o Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 231.98 192.87
O I STFTEIT - T I AR Repairs and Maintenance - Plant & Machinery 2,334.70 657.57
HTHA U SR - 33T Repairs and Maintenance - Others 193.41 58.73
A Total 2,760.09 909.18
fewutt 25: farereft o Som NOTE 25 : POWER & FUEL

forereft ST S Power and Fuel 27,832.56 34,545.64
Hel Total 27,832.56 34,545.64
fewauft 26 : wrerwTET UE FefeiT s NOTE 26 : FREIGHT & HANDLING EXPENSE

T |TST Freight 7,833.90 6,139.06
i yuw Handling charges 3,039.85 2,570.74
gyl Total 10,873.75 8,709.80

D
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BVFC BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

¥ 2023-24 & feru fadfiar foraor wr fevaforat
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2023-24 N
(Rs. in lakhs)
TeraruT PARTICULARS 319, 2024 9 | 31 AT, 2023 T
Asat 31" March, | Asat 31" March,
2024 2023
feoauft : 27 s =T Note : 27 Other Expenses
EEl fortra wfga formm Rent including Lease Rentals 26.92 23.72
sffn Insurance 110.84 117.44
Slet Q?:[E!'I'g EIEL'\G!'UT IERECTS T I Water & Air pollution Control Tax & Cess 10.37 10.41
Y TSTE Land Revenue 21.07 21.07
ERCET Rates & Taxes - 0.04
CERESR] Communication Expenses 23.08 23.17
T S ATET Travelling and Conveyance 131.63 86.54
asot T e gt Printing and Stationeries 2.25 10.45
TR G Business promotion 5.61 19.49
M 3 IIEH Donations and Contributions 3.13 2.88
fafer SR =TTt o Legal and professional fee 14.17 29.79
Jenfies T wieTeht 1 I Payments to Statutory auditors 2.70 3.00
W % I7ET HETS T HH Cleaning work inside Factory 467.40 435.80
ﬁv_c@br o foru fafearer == Miscellaneous Expenses for factory 549.90 261.28
[l g Security expenses 1,667.23 1,678.41
e =T Director expenses 4.10 21.33
Gferer swo/=11m % foI e Provision for doubtful Debts FICC - 47.58
UHSTSHTE o Tfqrer ST o for srarem Provision for obsolescence of stores & Spares 9.90 41.20
e 37T Eﬁﬁ % ST o foTT JTae Provision for shortage of trading products 1.30
3T ‘Jc\\_rﬁ"'l'cf a’@ﬁ EY %’Q Y Provision for unmoved capital items - 8.09
Terfarer 3TreRfeh o TR Miscellaneous Casual labour township 199.15 180.72
fferer weme s Miscellaneous Administration expenses 1,148.05 703.82
TorshY wd forawor = Selling & Distribution Expenses 1,574.07 552.68
feg =t ReSiSIE) Payment to Retainers 150.49 191.83
gfeeenfug afEafa & %ﬂ'{ a% @id HSTet | Fixed Assets written off for replaced assets 127.86 42.10
g o afafEm
%l Total 6,251.21 4,512.83
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

BVFC

¥ 2023-24 & foru foaeftar foraor R Revaforrt
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2023-24
(T e H)
( Rs. in lakhs)

Teraor PARTICULARS 31 9T, 2024 e | 31 W0, 2023 T
Asat 31" March, | Asat 31" March,
2024 2023

30 fewuft 27 :: g srate e SUB NOTE 27A :: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

T EXPENSES

et STafer S (Arhfem) Prior Period Exp (Mktg) 192.86 -

T T Material Consumed 192.54 0.07

T 3T @@ Repairs & Maintenance 14.09 -

Terferer = Misc. Expenses 1.49 0.59

LIRS Insurance Charges 0.23 -

T e = Audit expenses 0.83 2.22

afersy ffer = Provident Fund expenses 0.17 -

HATSTHTS = CISF Expenses 21.94 25.65

EED EFV@HZE’W Work Contract Expenses 54.99 -

férgjr 3eh Electricity Charges 9.90 -

ESACRCI Gl Stock Account - 1.34

ATgHd oo AT Licence fee etc - 0.02

SH{ST =9 Dumerage Exp. - 6.48

T HAITIT T TeTRId &9 H FHO Write off of old assets - 289.81

AHET-IV EFWHlswgﬂsﬁql CWIP for Namrup - [V - 258.51

S RCENCIEara)) Other Expenses (Mktg.) - 22.09

SIS BT ART Total of Debit 489.05 606.77

AT INCOME

T 3T Material consumed 3.40 0.03

EERCIGENIEEIEEIEIED) Depreciation past period credit 2,710.22 -

HEuaus @9 CISF Expenses - 172.15

3353\13?05 Bank Charges 1.16 0.10

qoAeTdl STaTer TTHHT STHNT (AT <kl HHT) Prior Period material consumed (Shortage of Urea) 253.17 -

Shiee T hed Total of Credit 3,037.95 172.28

[, SIe7E/ (3h1ST) Net Debit/(Credit) (2,548.90) 43448
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BVFC BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2023-24

T 2023-24 % Toru fortar feremor w fevaforat

(B9 AT #)
(Rs. in lakhs)

Teramur

PARTICULARS

31 9Te, 2024 a%
As at 31" March,
2024

31 9T, 2023 a9
As at 31" March,
2023

feoauit 28 : ufd IR =@

NOTE 28 : EARNINGS PER SHARE

) aﬁaﬁ@mﬁsﬁaﬁﬁaﬁaﬂm A)Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year | 3658324 36,58,324
Bk wﬁsﬁaﬁﬁaﬁsﬁrm Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 3658324 36,58,324
Y & SR TR Sidadt T ST AT Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 3658324 36,58,324
37|d H&AT during the year

Tk 3frardt I T Sifehd qoT Face Value of each Equity Share 1000 1,000

) FfFardl ST SRl o ST Y o T B)Net Profit for the year attributable to Equity Share

RIEA E‘IT‘H(tlff ST THTS o &I1E AR Holders (after Prior Period Adjustments but before

g STHTEROT Hal ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ) (’6@ E’I’@ﬁ) Exceptional items) (Rs in lacs) -8881.42 2,437.63
FfFardl III GITEhT o SHRUT Y o T Y& M| Net Profit for the year attributable to Equity Share

(‘Zlff T THTRSH % 18 Afeh Tt Holders (after Prior Period Adjustments and Exceptional

STETENT W&l § Ueet) (893 o1 H) items) ( Rs. in lacs) 834.20 2,437.63
) STETRT nﬁﬁqﬁw%wmwuﬁr C)Basic earning per share on profit after tax before

SRR A SR ffea s (w9 A1) Exceptional items (Rs/share) 22.80 66.63

) T ST et (®IT /ﬁ'ﬂ'() IS D)Diluted earning per share on profit after tax and

W e TR ad S furfsra swums Exceptional items (Rs/share) 22.80 66.63
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T 2023-24 % Toru fortar feremor w fevaforat
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2023-24

29. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

29. WEequUt erET it
1. Fmtaseen

SR et FlegR HaiRH fafiee (sefureiee ) st
TR TR o QT TaTieel aTell HeisTeh & ohi ot 2, o/ 4
A ?oo?ﬁmﬁwmﬁrﬁmmw
WW%&%@(WCL)@WW%WW
foparT TRIT T et o isfiepd st e, fespre o e &, ST
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AT, 3TTeeh WTeT, T-AToET T T 3T 4TEd T ohi 36k
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1.

Corporate information :

Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited (BVFCL)
referred to the Company is a wholly owned Public Sector
Undertaking of Govt. of India was incorporated on Sth April 2002
after segregation of Namrup units in Assam from parent company
Hindustan Fertilizer Corporation Ltd (HFCL). The registered office
of the Company is located at Namrup, Dibrugarh which is involved
in the production of Urea, Bio-Fertilizer and Vermicompost and
Trading of Fertilizer etc.

Basis of preparation and presentation:

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the
historical cost convention in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India, the provisions of the Companies
Act,2013.The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss
are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule
IIT to the Companies Act,2013(“the Act”).The disclosure
requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the
Act, are presented by way of Notes forming part of accounts along
with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified
Accounting Standards.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as 'current' or 'non-
current' as per the Company's normal operating cycle of 12 months
and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies
Act,2013.The amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to
rupees in lakhs up to two decimal.

Use of Estimates:

The presentation of financial statements requires estimates and
assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets
and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Management believes that the estimates made in the
preparation of financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Any
difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized
in the period in which the results are known/ materialized.

Fixed Assets:

i. Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation.

ii. Cost includes cost of purchase and all expenditure such as

installation cost, inward freight, non-refundable taxes and
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any other expenses incurred for bringing the asset in its

current location till it is ready to use.

iii. Apart from cost of Fixed Assets, Revenue Expenditure
incurred during construction and commissioning period is
capitalized till commencement of commercial production.
Incidental Income prior to commencement of commercial

production is set-off against the cost of the Project.

iv. Additions to Plant & Machinery include major repairs as
well as renewals and replacements which will increase life
and efficiency of the Plant. In such cases, if the written down
value of the assets replaced is not ascertainable, technical

valuation is made for adjustment in the accounts.

v. Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with
an item of fixed assets and whose use is expected to be

irregular are capitalized.

vi. Physical Verification of fixed assets is carried out by the
internal committee constituted by competent authority each
year. And once in every five years the Physical Verification
of fixed assets conducted by an outside professional agency.

5. Depreciation and amortization:

i. Machinery, Equipments and Office Appliances costing up to
Rs. 5,000/- are fully depreciated in the year of addition.

ii. Depreciation is charged on “Straight Line Method”, as per
useful life and rate of depreciation specified in the Schedule
—IT ofthe Companies Act,2013.

iii. The cost of Machinery spares referred to in Para A (v) above

are amortized over the useful life of the Original Plant.

iv. Depreciation is provided on the assets after they are certified

to be installed and put to use.

6.

Borrowing Cost: :

Borrowing costs incurred in relation to the acquisition /
construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the
cost of such assets up to the date when such assets are ready for
intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged as an expense in

the year in which these are incurred.
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7.

Inventories :

i. Inventory includes Raw Material, Packaging Material, Stores

and Spares, Intermediate products/goods and finished stock

ii. Raw Materials are valued at cost (monthly weighted
average).

ili. Packaging Materials and Stores & Spares are valued at Cost
(inclusive of expenses incidental to bring the materials to the
present condition and location less duties and taxes recoverable
by company from taxing authorities) on the basis of monthly

weighted average or technical estimates, whichever is lower.
iv. Loosetools are written-off over a period of three years.
v. Stocks of:

a. Finished Goods :-
Urea is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value
comprising concessional price subsidy and freight
subsidy.

b. Intermediate products/ goods like Ammonia is valued at

lower of cost or net realizable value.

c. Bought out finished products — are valued at lower of
cost or netrealizable value.

d. The company has formulated a comprehensive policy for
age wise provisioning of inventory for capital stores and
other stores & spares on the book value for determining

the lower of cost or net realizable value.

The provision is made on the following basis:

SIL. No.

Age wise item category Provision %

Items not moved upto 3 years Nil

Items not moved for more than 3 years & upto 5 years 5

Items not moved for more than Syears & upto 10 years | 10

Items not moved for more than 10 years & upto 15 years | 25

Items not moved for more than 15 years & upto 20 years | 50

N | | W] N~

Items not moved for more than 20 years. 95

Subsidies:

The subsidy is billed and accounted for on the basis of receipt of
fertilizer at the destination and credit for subsidy in the accounts
is taken only for the quantities sold and stated in the Profit and
Loss Statement as revenue from operations. However, pending
receipt of notification from FICC for final settlement, the
subsidy claim for variations in input prices is provided for in the
accounts on the estimate basis taking into account the prevailing
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

method, guidelines, policies, instructions and clarifications
given by the Government.

Revenuerecognition:

i. Export sale accounted for based on the rate as per
Memorandum of Understanding (Agreement) with MMTC
subject to the adjustment as per policy and guidelines issued
by the Govt. of India.

ii. Indigenous Sales is recognized on issue of Delivery Order
and proper invoice.

iii. Income/Expenditure is generally accounted foron accrual
basis unless otherwise specifically stated.

iv. Interest on Advances to Employees is accounted forafter the
principal is fully recovered.

v.  Scrap/Salvage/Waste Materials are accounted foras and when sold.

Pre-Paid Expenses:
Expenditure up to Rs.” 10,000/- ineachcaseincurredin advances
relating to the following year(s), is accounted for in the year in

which itis incurred.

Prior period Adjustments:

Income/Expenditure relating to prior period(s) is accounted for
only in cases of errors or omissions.

Expenditure on Catalyst:

Expenditure incurred towards consumption of catalyst is
capitalized and depreciation charged as per its useful life given
in technical specification provided by supplier.

Retirement Benefits:

Provision for gratuity and leave encashment liability is made on
the basis of actuarial valuation.

Payment under Company's Family Pension Scheme:

Payment under Company's Family Pension Scheme is accounted

for as and when paid.

Grant In Aid -VRS:
Utilization of Grant in Aid against Voluntary Retirement Scheme is

accounted for on cash basis.

Grant In Aid —For Repair & Maintenance of Plant
i.  Grants related to revenue are presented as a credit in the
Profit & Loss statement under 'Other income”'.

ii. All repair & maintenance expense out of grant are charged to
P&L account. GST Input Tax credit are not being availed on

such expenses.
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

iii. Receipt of grants is recognized as deferred grant from the
Government of India. The grant amount, to the extent of
expenditure incurred, is being recognized as income in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

iv. Unutilized/Unspent amount of Grants are shown as deferred
Grant.

Deferred Taxation:

Deferred tax is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence,
on timing differences, being difference between taxable and
accounting income/expenditure that originate in one period and
are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent period(s).
Deferred Tax Assets are not recognized unless there is “Virtual
Certainty” that sufficient future taxable income will be available

against which such deferred tax assets will be realized.

Foreign Currency Transaction:

Foreign currency assets and liabilities not covered by forward
contracts are stated at rates ruling at the year end. Exchange
differences relating to fixed assets are adjusted in the cost of the
assets. Any other exchange differences are dealt with in the
Profitand Loss Account.

Impairment of Assets:

An asset is treated impaired when the carrying cost of assets
exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is charged to
the Profit& Loss Account in the year in which an asset is
identified and declared as impaired. The impairment loss
recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has

been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Investments:
All investments are stated at cost. However, a provision for
diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than

temporary in the value of investment.

Earnest Money Deposits & Security Deposits:
Earnest Money Deposits and Security Deposits which has not
moved and there is no claims pending against them for more than

5 years are written back and transferred to other income
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22.

23.

24.

Segment Reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of an
enterprise that is engaged in providing an individual product or
service or a group of related products or services and that is subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other business
segments as per Accounting Standard-17. Company has Identified
two primary reporting segments viz own manufactured fertilizers
(Urea, Bio-fertilizers and vermi compost) and fertilizer trading
(Indigenous and Imported).

Grant In Aid — For Catalyst
In case Catalyst procured out of grant it should be adjusted
against grant (after deducting @ Rs. 1,000/- each catalyst, which

isnominal value) as per deductive approach.”

Provision for Debtors:-
Trade receivables, other receivables, loans and advances are
fully provided for as doubtful upon review on case to case basis,

to the extent of such loss considered as incurred.
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NOTE 30:-General Notes to Accounts

30.1 Contingent Liabilities:

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions
(excluding employee benefits) are not discounted to their present
value and are determined based on the best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the
Notes. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in

the financial statements.

The Company's pending litigations comprise of claims by or against
the Company primarily by the employees/customers/suppliers, etc.
and proceedings pending with tax and other government authorities.
The Company has reviewed its pending litigations and proceedings
and has adequately provided for where Provisions are required and
disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial
statements. The company does not expect the outcome of these
proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial
statement and appropriate disclosure for contingent liabilities is
given below -

SHUHT , WRA TR o THTI U SHaileh HATH oh YRTTH{eh (42570
TR
. T TEe it
(1) =it wa b qiedt, Teae ua yeg fews 28 fdew
2023d%
(2) Srem e, fems (o)

31 HRI2024 T AT RTH éwﬁm'@ﬂ'r{%- As on 31st March 2024 contingent liability are as under:-
Tereor 2023-24 | 2022-23 Particulars 2023-24 | 2022-23
ST % foreg aTer fo7eg /0T o 'Y Claims against the Company not
7 Tl T fopam e acknowledged as debts:
i) |qhcH 3R 7= wfdergard: 199.47 101.73 i) | Litigation and Other Commitments :| 199.47 101.73
i) |EeEd, o R 3R A< % foeg ii) | Tax Liabilities against 'CST', Entry
AT 684.39 684.39 Tax & VAT 684.39 684.39
iii) |TTSRET 3 ST (TSI farfem iii)| Renewal Purchase Obligation
2010) - 747.57 (AERC Regulation 2010) - 747.57
%l 838.86 1533.69 Total 838.86 1533.69
30.2 Haifera uer Uehd IehtuT: 30.2 Related Party Disclosures:

Company is under the administrative control of Ministry of

Chemicals and Fertilizers, Government of India.

(A) Key Management Personnel:
(1) Shri S.P.Mohanty, Chairman & Managing Director Up to
28th December 2023

(2) Shri S.C. Das, Director (Finance)
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(3) &t Y. o, &If9es 22 | 2023 ¥ HewTh (IUTE) TS 3
Hadt 2024 B HUHE) 7 AT TR AT R E |

(4) 1t AT, 7T, T | 31 TS 2023 T

(5) &t 3T, fra, TR ek (Tud) | SR 2023 &
2T 2024 Th

@, 3T Hefa el o T TS AT AT AT TS -

(3) Shri P.K. Banik Director ( Production) w.e.f 22nd March
—2023& Addl.Charge of CMD w.e.f 3rd February2024.

(4) Shri R.K. Gupta, Company Secretary Up to 31st July
2023

(5) Shri. R.K. Tiwari, Assistant Manager (CS) w.e.f.1st
August 2023 to 2nd March 2024

(B) Contracts or arrangements or Transactions with other

HTHT YHE TS0 19 ShiTHeh aTelT 32 Related Parties:- Enterprise having Common Key Managerial
pel
Personnel
&, fEeeam 3ate o A fafies a. Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Ltd.
D
<h. ug’@rmmﬁ%ﬁ (A) Key Management Personnel:

(1) oft Q'H.‘Tﬁ. Iﬁ%'?ﬁ, eI @Wﬁ%&ﬂn‘ (1) ShriS.P. Mohanty, Chairman & Managing Director
b 2023-24 2022-23 Particular 2023-24 2022-23
uriesrtaes Remuneration
S T 26.45 33.27 -Salary & Allowances 26.45 33.27
_3T AT 0.00 0.00 -Other Benefit 0.00 0.00
FeT 26.45 33.27 Total 26.45 33.27

(2) shwmetam, e (o)

(2) Shri S.C. Das, Director (Finance)

&b 2023-24 2022-23 Particular 2023-24 2022-23
uTfesrtieR Remuneration

I TS 1 34.03 31.60 -Salary & Allowances 34.23 31.60
A AT 0.00 0.00 -Other Benefit 0.00 0.00
HA 34.23 31.60 Total 34.23 31.60

(3) #ff ik sIfek (IcaTe) 3 BEaRT 2024 © Hiwwe w6t fafes

(3) Shri P.K. Banik (Production) Addl.Charge of CMD

T w.e.f3rd February2024
& 2023-24 2022-23 Particular 2023-24 2022-23
arferfen Remuneration
- TS 1 31.46 0.78 -Salary & Allowances 31.46 0.78
AT 0.00 0.00 -Other Benefit 0.00 0.00
FA 31.46 0.78 Total 31.46 0.78

(1) 2 AR 3. T, EREIEICE] (1) ShriR.K. Gupta, Company Secretary
A1 2023-24 2022-23 Particular 2023-24 2022-23
qrferfes Remuneration
- TS 1 9.92 24.65 -Salary & Allowances 31.46 0.78
AT 0.00 0.06 -Other Benefit 0.00 0.06
A 9.92 24.65 Total 9.92 24.65
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(5) *ff 3k ToaR, werrek veivs (EieE) 1 37T 2023 T 2

(5) Shri R.K. Tiwari, Assistant Manager (CS) w.e.f.1st

A 2024 T August 2023 to 2nd March 2024
A1 2023-24 2022-23 Particular 2023-24 2022-23
rferfues Remuneration
- TS 1 9.11 0.00 -Salary & Allowances 9.11 0.00
AT 0.00 0.00 -Other Benefit 0.00 0.00
FA 9.11 0.00 Total 9.11 0.00

aTiefies H SETaf Al o sfifeRe Heaier T far

Remuneration does not include the provision made on

PIEPIEMIIE e actuarial valuation of retirement benefits.
W . T o Tl o AT 3133'%1' T SATELT AT AT (B) Contracts or arrangements or Transactions with
N . ) other Related Parties:

3. Teg i Selich R4 119 NIEES (LALANC) s HIH a. With Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Limited(HURL)
e 2023-24 2022-23 Particular 2023-24 2022-23
i 6 wle 2449 45 _ Purchase of Urea 244945 -
ﬁmﬁ 15 AT = T ST 430 Reimbursement of Travel 4.30
— = 2453.75 N Expenditure of Directors
= ' Total 2453.75 -

30.3 AQETIH AT I 30.3 Audit Expenses:

. |fafere 2023-24 [2022-23 sr.No/Particular 2023-24 |2022-23
&) |Fertres ot uhers A) |Statutory Auditors
- s i. |Audit Fee 2.70 2.40
L MCIRAG 45 2.70 2.40 ii. |Reimbursement of travelling and out
ii. amaﬁréaﬁw%@ﬁ?ﬁsrﬁqﬁ - 0.60 of pocket expenses - 0.60
i é@TWWWQG 317 =51 i afaafd [0.80 0 .70 i |Audit fee & Reimbursement of Other
S - = expenses 0.80 0.70
m qﬁw . C) |Internal Auditors
i [d @. e RIeeh T ITAT 9l T 14 i. |Audit Fee &Reimbursement of TA &
ERIEIRIE 1.40 2.86 Other expenses 1.40 2.86
T mﬁ-@-r qﬁ-w D) Cost Auditors
i, | rET ae sree Ud 3= St Y iagfd [0.37 0.49 i |Audit fee & Reimbursement of Other
N = expenses 0.37 0.49
3) |TRATERE / 2T e after: E) [FICC/TOP Auditors
i | e j[eeh U 1 fe L\IE L11 0.88 i |Audit fee &Reimbursement of Other
=) | druw o wdierss expenses 1.11 0.88
i | i e 3o w1 s L ufafd (017 |0.18 F) |PF Auditors
D) AT T ITeeh T / Wit i |Audit fee &Reimbursement of Other
5 QQ’& o expenses 0.17 0.18
SURILG 1 1.00 0 G) |Audit fee Inventory / Physical
M) | e T Yok UE o et verification Audit1.00 0
foru e = 42 12.98 H) |Audit fee & Other expenses for
other services 4.21 2.98
T 1176 11.09 Total 1176 [11.09
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30.4 THTHTHEST ATaaw, 2006 % ATOR T R &Y
EBRICAEC RN ED N ECIUE

Hew, T R wew g foshra stfifm, 2006 (THETHEST
HATIRI) o Ted H&H, T T HETH IEH I ST TRT FH

fereroTeh o=t oh T SUtod SR FHTHrR &:-

30.4 Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as
per MSMED Act, 2006:

The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprise under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), based on
the available information with the Company are as under:-

Teraor 31.03.24dsh  (31.03.23 d<h Particulars As at 31.03.24 |As at 31.03.23
. TRTAT 3T 39T TeT TRT 580.25 67.98 a. Principal amount due and
- remaining unpaid 580.25 67.98
. ST (%) T AT AR AT b. Interest due on (a) above and
fopart T st N N unpaid interest - -
T, THTEESE ST o ded ot c. Interest paid on all delayed
ToreAford A= 9 SO T A | - - payments under the MSMED Act |- -
g a9 % %TFT T s an\‘:{ T d. Payment made beyond the
appointed day during the year - -
T ST - -
) , e. Interest due and payable for the
S . ST (1) o SFATT fefefst il period of delay other than © above| - -
Aty & fou <7 samer - - f. Interest accrued and remaining

3. TSl 3 319 saTst B _

. ST a1 H 97 S e A

Y TS shl AT , -

unpaid - -

g. Amount of further interest
remaining due and payable in
succeeding years - -

& TS T e b o U1 T FrereoT Oa e g < e /et
%wmmﬁn% TR I TH 93] it qe=r i 718 €fimr
o foram T R aﬁ%aﬁmw@éfrtraﬁﬁéamrﬁ
/3T AT AT S e 2

30.5 TUA 15 (M) 2005 % FTER) FHART ATH AT
kel ohiuT :

O T FHAR AT U ATHITTE F SR U 15
(GG 2005) ST ST 2| ST o IS, G
amfe @ geiferq feafefaa wehe wem 15 @t 2005)
SATITIAHAT o dad UV fhTTT ]|

) TR SFR1aT ArSHTE
FHHETTET SR TRt o for wierss ffr o st 61 Firem
7.336.84 v (T ad £ 402.06 @)

@) Ui AT TS

ST QAT FISHTE o T 8, o & Iegel e SR SAfia staeml
TR T A 7o SIS (e shfee (PUC) a1 o1 ST
T TN SIURM o TR W i fopam S 2, St
BT T Yok AT Rl A AT I <l SAfafs 3618
Y ¥ g € SR 3ifem grfiea s 3 fore g 3ot
ST Y HTIAT 8| SA(SId STahTeT o6 o aTfereat hl I=gdt o wm
SUEREEICISIGIE

Dues to Micro and small enterprises have been determined
to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information given by such parties/available with the
Company. Interest amount due to MSMED parties during
the year is not due/accrued/paid or payable.

30.5 Disclosure pursuant to AS 15 (Revised) 2005) -
Employee Benefits:

The Company has adopted AS 15 (Revised 2005) for
Employee Benefits issued by ICAI. Consequent to the
adoption, the following disclosures related to accounting
etc. are made as far as practicable under AS 15 (Revised
2005) requirement.

a) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company's contribution to Provident Fund for
employees and executives isZ.336.84 lakh (previous year
402.06 lakh)

b) Defined Benefit plans

The Benefit plans which are in operation are Gratuity Fund
and Earned Leave. The present value of the obligation is
determined based on Actuarial Valuation using the Project
Unit Credit (PUC) method, which recognizes each period of
service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefits
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up
the final obligation. The obligation for Earned Leave is
recognized in the same manner as Gratuity.

180



\%/

A
WEI el hitarsuie hiufeerd frfdcs ;;Q@.g;—
BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED BWFC

) Qﬂﬂﬁ FRTyETiTd farfir stishe:- ¢) Various data as certified by Actuary:-

. TTCITIra AT ST & TR ST offaa Sre shraTerm A. Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of
Defined benefits Obligation

freor IUqTT 2AfSTa aTareRTIT Gratuity Earned Leave
Y o Y ﬁa{ﬁasﬁ[aﬁqﬁq@ 2239.90 1040.21 Present value of Obligation at the
AR gHTS R R beginning of the year 2239.90 1040.21
S < 161.27 75.94 Acquisition Adjustment
Interest Cost 161.27 75.94
et e v - - Past Service Cost - -
S Felr AT 2443 49.19 Current Service Cost 54.43 49.19
RNt AT - - Curtailment Cost - -
e @ - - Settlement Cost - -
A Tofal T & (1161.62) (668.51) Benefits Paid (1161.62) (668.51)
STTIcaT ot sfHifheh (ATH)/&TH 343.86 367.37 Actuarial (gain)/loss of obligations | 343.86 367.37
oY % 37d § eTRIed ST SaEH T 1637.84 864.20 P;e;ent value of obligation at the end
) AT of the year 1637.84 864.20
i) kRl 1475.92 80245 ) Lon}; term liability 1475.92 802.45
if) ST 3T 161.92 61.75 ii) Current liability 161.92 61.75
1637.84 864.20 1637.84 864.20
TR T B. Statement showing change in fair value of plan assets:-
‘@ﬁ : L %m?ﬁﬁ agaﬂ?qz;m Not Applicable as Scheme is unfunded.
4 [N

- - X i) feafrat C. Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit

. obligation and fair value of plan Assets:-Not Applicable as
% %‘ail 2 ot ForerTer: - Arsrr fereioe eff 2, gaferg e @y Scheme is unfunded.
|

. D. Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit/Loss
o, /2T feraur § Ar=ar ara s

fereor IUqT SAfSTe TaeRTIT Gratuity Earned Leave
JAqT TaT AT 54.43 49.19 Current Service Cost 54.43 49.19
el Qar arra _ _ Past Service Cost - -
S < 161.277 5903 Interest Cost 161.27 75.93
; B S — i i Expecfted return on Plan Assets - -
Curtailment Cost - -
T AT - - Settlement Cost - -
fruerm @ - - Actuarial gain/(loss) of obligations 343.86 367.37
aTfreelt st i AT/ (&) 343.86 367.37 Expenses Recognized in Statement of
AT/ ferarer | wrerr S = 559.56 492.50 Profit/Loss 559.56 492.50

181



|

N
AR i piteEE whe R

BWVFC BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

Tt

%. sifehes UT=raTd E. Actuarial Assumptions
fremor SUER ST TeTehTIT Gratuity Earned Leave
e X TR (SATEUTETH) 2006 - 08 2006 - 08 Mortality Table (IALM) 2006 - 08 2006 - 08
@aTﬁﬂﬁf SRS 60 60 Superannuation Age 60 60
it Hanfaf ue fospattmn Early Retirement & Disablement
(10 9fT &) (10 Per Thousand P.A)
- 3717 45 99 ¥ Aferw 6 6 - age above 45 6 6
- A 29 | 45 FH o= 3 3 - age between 29 and 45 3 3
- W!ZW‘WW 1 1 - age below 29 1 1
FEH R 7.00% 7.00% Discount Rate 7.00% 7.00%
RS 5.00% 5.00% Inflation Rate 5.00% 5.00%
aferafer o s ?ﬂq\:@ Fﬂ’Tj’gﬁ Return on Asset N/A N/A

30.6- Wiersa ffer s werer & weReteRtur

St o ey fafer oo ot st wioss fafer asar 1952 %
T 79t o qEq ST TEAT AS/620/Exempt/Genl/1468
feier 08.08.2007 o T&d 2 &Y 715 oft| BTeifer, ot o foser
T JaEi S iU g o STquTer Heiell 78 o T,
TR 4 P& A F AWE o F g Hewr
AS/TSK/EXEMPT/APCL/2008/287 feish 20.04.2009 &
TEd Ueh AITeE ST FoRaT 21 3ok 18, TTHEYT BieATssR STHH
FRA SR, for e SR e STTasT Sl AT T I TE
FHA/TE, B o [IT A TR S5 e % wHe e
TT<RT AT 5310/2009 FTER | §9eh ST, A1 = #ft
ATETHAR T 7 310 2010 F FHA & q_q A1y faar 3
fcfRrer fopa for Swrer strawy qep wfrare starerd i srgafa umw
for fomr sfiefiuwediva & wioss fftr @ & Sfusen o
TG T M 13.03.2018 T AT o =ARATAT hT
sifam et % e, aw Sar e o i e de
HAfufd 1952 % % 79 € % d8d B2 o / T F % g
SAIUHHT T i} 72 Tk T 2 3T TSR AT, TR
THT A O H&ATHT - 11/ MISC / 02/06 / EX /@E -1/ 11854
TR 24.07.2012 SR 99F o fofam &, =™ & 9 aRd
LRI & AU Bl H SEI8T i T his SATIR T 2 37
2009 T Teehter T anferent T 5310 1 fAefes 819 o Hror
sz L foa mm 2| Hidiew SR (2), sHuwal, 7 foeet 3
AU U HEAT UVI/AUE/IFETE/18 - 19 / 10042 feAiw
07.05.2018 o AT & SHUS Ua uHdt A= 1952 3 O
17(1) (T) o Hqd B2 T&M A o [oTg Toh Seamdl 9= 2, i
foramrefia @ fer sifam sew TR R

30.6- Disclosure regarding Provident Fund

The Company's Provident Fund Trust was granted
relaxation under para 79C of Employees Provident Fund
scheme 1952 vide Notification No. AS/620/Exempt/Genl/
1468 dtd. 08.08.2007. However, due to past operational
performance of the company and compliance related issue
of EPF trust, EPFO has issued a notice vide
No.AS/TSK/EXEMPT/APCL/2008/287 dtd.20.04.2009
for withdrawal of relaxation order. Thereafter, Namrup
Fertilizer Shramik Union filed a writ Petition No. 5310 of
2009 before the Hon'ble Guwahati High Court for set
aside/quash the withdrawal of relaxation order by RPFC,
Tinsukia. Subsequently, the Hon'ble Justice Mr. I.A.Ansari
vide judgment dated 7th April 2010 has ordered and
directed that until further order, the respondent shall not
transfer the Provident Fund Account of BVFCL to EPFO
without obtaining leave of the Court. During final hearing
ofthe Hon'ble High Court on 13.03.2018, it was viewed that
since power delegated to RPFC for grant / cancel of
relaxation under Para 79C of EPF &MP Act 1952 have been
withdrawn by Ministry of Labour & Employment, Gol vide
letter No. C - II/MISC/02/06/EX/Vol - 1/11854 Date
24.07.2012, The Court has no basis to cause interference
with the impugned decision of the Gol and the instant Writ
petition No. 5310 of 2009 stands closed as having become
redundant. However, a representation has been made to
Addl. CPF Commissioner (Exemption), EPFO, New Delhi
vide our letter No. A/VI/PF/ EXEMPT/ 18 -19/10042 Date
07.05.2018 for grant of relaxation under Para 17(1) (a) of
EPF & MP Act.' 1952 which is under consideration but final
orderis yet to come.
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0 dTe, ITRATHH, dudes ¥ 13 fadaw 2018 &1 3197 o
T TS/ T /TS /o e TUhHITe/ 1334 o HIeaW | A1
I AT & 13.03.2018 & Afaw folg & mum w
Seftuweia $fius owe & fUoa g & @&l @ i
TG 3 T ST 1321 81 36 sff, 2 75 2018, 16 ST
2018, 8 AT 2018, 28 fordsw 2018 ﬁrzz&wzolgﬁ
mﬁw%mwﬁwmw%mmwaﬁt
wﬁw%maﬁwwﬁwwéléﬁm
I Ut g forelt oft wfafferea st stermer i feamman R

ST, FET IS A 27 fadsw 2018 T IS 19T 361 S3h
T g 3= e 4 iR & e fie anfeent e o &
ot foram et gee & et erfesrryafaa st gee il 3t d
Friehal/HeTt s gfafies s aret foreft off geer o=t =t
aTferehT e s o forg srfrepd foram deg@m, 01.11.2018
1 HEAT WP(C) 7528/2018 o T8 TaTeTe! 3oef =ARITeR
¥ fie aifushr arr it 1 R AT =mEeE T A w
19.11.2018 = f33% & foruw @ foran 8 3fiv e,
fomrgferam grr ST 13 et 2018 o 3T7a=T o EeTerd T U
S T TSR 32T 81 19.11.2018 T W&l HT GAaTs & 1€
T o1 18.12.2018 3l 931 ok fofu o foharm wiva @ v 3
T ST H 18.12.2018 T =TT H IYTLT TU, 31q: AT
AT AE (a7 & | 6= 8 foh 39 ffer 31 3AFZa 2018 T
T ST STRT T&TT| 37T Ao 3T o forg et etrett faferar
TIATER

et st ffer g (sfehtumeivet Stiuw ge), 3 afva
F Wi T g, 25 FHER 2018 I AR 3=
T | Ueh e Ffreht g o, foram 31 o1t o |rer-any
Sfoamet @e - 4 (@ ARETs -1, gl g/ S
ST HEAT, TS / FUHeh / U / siefTusheiue / 1334 fedi
13.09.2018 ST IaTet Tt 2 (T ST, 75 foeett) g1
SR o EET - HY - w11/ 14 (16) / 2005 / T / 397
faTeR 24.09.2018 =T Tg T 37T Tg LA T 1T ol T8 3T
TR fa11R 31 AR 2018 F T A Sodf =ATaTera = 13
et 2018 37T 24 fordsit 2018 o AT 3 TETeA W Ueh T
& 38 18, AT Iod AT A 18.12.2018 I AR
a1eST uTita femam, fSrem 13.09.2018 3K 24.09.2018 & 3
foranfea sTresT o foraTeara ot 3TTTet 311esT ok feifera s fean
TTIT (3TTGRT AT S HeTH &)1 7 i 17/10/2023 1 Feiers
ferT TR o, wATferehendt o fergTet srshiet ST TR o ST W,
T <l &1 THTE o oTT T S oo T | 38k =71 311
o ST gAas shi ferfor e Tl sl s

Subsequently, the RPFC, TSK, vide letter No.
NE/TSK/Exe/ BVFCL/ 1334 dated 13th September'l8 has
ordered for transfer of past accumulation of BVFCL EPF
Trust to CBT Account based on the final judgment of
Hon'ble High Court on 13.03.2018. In the meantime, series
of communication have been made with CPFC & RPFC for
grant of relaxation vide our letter dated 2nd May 2018, 16th
July 2018, 8th August 2018, 28th September 2018 and 22nd
October 2018. But no representation has been responded by
either CPFC & RPFC.

Later on, The Board of Trustees in its 36th meeting held on
27th September 2018, have decided to file a Writ Petition
again with Hon'ble High Court and Authorized the
Executive Officer / Secretary of the Trust and any member
trustee representing workman / employee on behalf of the
Trust to execute the petition. Accordingly, a Writ Petition
have been filed with Guwahati High Court on 01.11.2018
vide Case No. WP(C) 7528/2018. The Hon'ble Court has
fixed the case for instruction on 19.11.2018 and ordered to
staying the operation of latter dated 13th September 2018
issued by RPFC, Tinsukia. On 19.11.2018, upon hearing
the parties have fixed the case for instruction on 18.12.2018.
No counsel on behalf of Union of India & Ors has attended
the Court on 18.12.2018, hence the Hon'ble Court further
pleased to direct that the stay Order dated 31st October 2018
in the meantime shall continue. No further date has fixed for
instruction till date.

Employees Provident fund Trust (BVFCL EPF TRUST),
Rep. by its Secretary field writ petition on 25.10.8 before
Guwahati High Court praying inter-alia for setting aside
and quash the order No, NE/TSK/Exe/BVFCL/1334 dated
13.09.2018 issued by respondent No. - 4 (i.e. RCPF -1,
Tinsukia) and letter No. - C - EX/C-11/14(16)/ 2005/ Ex/ EZ
dated 24.09.2018 issued by the respondent No. 2 (i.e.EPFO,
New Delhi) and vide Order dated 31.10.18 Hon'ble High
Court stayed the operation of impugned order dated
13.09.2018 & 24.09.2018. Thereafter, the Gauhati High
Court passed the interim order on 18.12.2018 suspending
the operation of said impugned orders dated 13.09.2018 and
24.09.2018 until further orders(copy of order attached
herewith). The matter had been listed on 17/10/2023, On
request for adjournment by the learned counsel of the
Petitioner, the matter was adjourned for two weeks. After
that the next date hearing has not been fixed till date.
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30.7-GEufdae;

ot = &1 rerfires fdae et i e s 8, srerta s i
Foi (T, T3tk H T PR 3 Iaiteh AT (Tt
TR STRITICTT) | TR SITEE SIS T g ST UTH-17

30.7- Segment Reporting:

Company has Identified two primary reporting segments viz
own manufactured fertilizers (Urea, Bio-fertilizers and vermi
compost) and fertilizer trading (Indigenous and Imported).

wﬁ@g%mﬁaﬂmﬁ:ﬁﬁaﬁﬁ Information in respect of said segment as required by AS-17,
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is given
hereunder.
TR EICE] quferd FA

feraror Particulars %l'lF!\a'Gf IREREL] %l'IFJ[\EFEIQ EERECR] am;aﬁ‘ IEEREL

Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous

Year Year Year Year Year Year
IR REVENUE - -
e forsht External sales 27,327.77 | 42,516.99 47,568.66 72,042.70 74,896.43 1,14,559.69
I FHATS Other Income - - 6,356.91 1,199.57 6,356.91 1,199.57
Sia-we fershr Inter-segment sales - - - - - -
HeT T Total Revenue 27,327.77 | 42,516.99 53,925.57 73,242.28 81,253.34 1,15,759.26
qRoTH RESULT
de i Segment result 1,185.25 1,936.12 (351.05) 501.52 834.20 2,437.63
FAEfe Unallocated corporate
FHIINE T expenses - - - - - -
i At Operating profit 1,185.25 1,936.12 (351.05) 501.52 834.20 2,437.63
ST T Interest expense - - - - - -
JATIhT Income taxes - - - - - -
wT=r Tiafafert | Profit from ordinary
AT activites 1,185.25 1,936.12 (351.05) 501.52 834.20 2,437.63
REASIL Net profit 1,185.25 1,936.12 (351.05) 501.52 834.20 2,437.63
S T OTHER INFORMATION
we ufEulat | Segment assets 63,872.75 | 69,559.05 63,872.75 69,559.05
S EICIEL Unallocated corporate
HINC TRl |assets - - - -
E?W?Fivﬁl Total assets - - 63,872.75 69,559.05 63,872.75 69,559.05
W I Segment liabilities - - 95,492.83 1,02,013.33 | 95,492.83 1,02,013.33
TG HUNE  |Unallocated corporate
ERELY liabilities - - - -
R ettt Total liabilities - - 95,492.83 1,02,013.33| 95,492.83 1,02,013.33
w 2P Capital expenditure - - 790.04 357.54 790.04 357.54
HoIg™ Depreciation - - 1,513.74 3,472.76 1,513.74 3,472.76
W% 3eTrdT|Non-cash expenses other
31 TAHS = |than depreciation - - 223.66 663.19 223.66 663.19
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30.8- STTATAT ST Tehe ThTuT

30.8- Disclosure of Ratios

%ﬁqﬁw W@ETHT‘EIW@HF% - The disclosure of significant ratios is as under: -
SINo. |Ratio Numerator Denominator 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 Variance Reason
FAE. | I Hiex CISED 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 Hadg ST
1 AT ST AT et ERREEEnI 1.32 1.32 0%
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liablities
2 ERECEIE R EelehTicTeh ST Sfoadt 31 o -1.81 (1.77) 2% -
Debt — Equity Ratio Long term borrowing | Equity & Reserve
3 sl U1 oS SIA | SIS 8 Ted FF AG | ST Wied (bt
Debt Service Coverage | Cash profit after tax Installment with
Ratio before interest Interest NIL NIL
4 st et (e | sre e HEECIMEI il
3 frerdt -3% 8% -63% SATIEaT H
Return on Equity (ROE) Net Profit Equity Share Capital Decrease in profitability
& reserve
5 TS ARSI | I T A bl hiAd | AT ggt 6.68 1741 -62% Y o5 37 W ST aeqll 1
Tt H gfig 3t s o A §
FHft % HHI
Inventory Turnover Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory Due to Increase in year end
Ratio inventory of trading good and
also decrease in volume of
Business.
SR T e T ¥ g o o % ot & g1 B gt ST AT
B T 3 32 7.15 -55% st o ]

Trade receivables Sales Average of opening Due to Increase in year end
turnover ratio & inventory and decrease in sales.
closing of debtors

© ST AT IR ST @eAT SRERCHEE A k) TR g <t i 1 'die
S EHT 7 A | 1.44 3.44 -58% AT # T SR AT aeqet
H Y % HRT

Trade payables turnover | Purchase Average of opening Due to decrease in Purchase

ratio & closing of creditor| cost of Natural Gas Price and
Purchase decrease in traded goods

¢ [ Sl FHRIER AT | 5 AT feht ERRNIGRC] &80 R.E& 2¢% THeATeR & T o FROT

Net capital turnover ratio | Net Annual Sales Working Capital Due decrease in Turnover
9 T[S AT ST TE AT 0.01 0.02 -50% FHRIET T T o FHTOT

Net profit ratio Net Profit Turnover Due to decrease in turnover
10 |Fefastwfea | e frenfra it AT 8 et 3R oo osft

(3T ) (30T + Serare) 2.99% 10% -70% Bl

Return on capital EBIT Capital Employed Due to decrease in profit and

employed (ROCE) (Debt + Equity) Increased in Capital employed

g | o e wfoher ECIE I foitfora gft
(3T + gfeferd) = B -

Return on investment EBIT Capital Employed

(Debt + Equity) NIL NIL -
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30.9- TR TS hl ATAAT-EATTT

A TR - YT w107 SohTeai o Seiter i sH1T W@
foT wefET sht woa SR T o i foretar ay 2021-22 %
2R 10,000 TG T <ht TR R 37K foafe 61 21 forg
2023-24 % SR 3R THRT FFEH W A 391.11 AR
T (Tt N £ 412.71 T 3hi Ik HATEANT TRRT ST
ERIIERAERIERIE]

I ToTIT BT T 4842.80 TG 9T ST SYATAT SHTOT U SFHT
e e & (e fomr o 2023-24 % SR 2597.77 ARG &)
37 fom a 2022-23 & S 1277.77 g &9 AR fom a9
2021-22 H 3R 967.26 ARI TR ) hT ST IMUA L.

forftar e 2023-24 o S et =T TRT 2765.11 TG TR off
I foraror fTgem 2

30.9- Recognition of Government Grant-General

Government of India has sanctioned and disbursed of an
amount of Rs 10,000 lakhs during the financial year 2021-22
for Repair & Maintenance of plants to sustain operation of the
Urea Manufacturing Units. Interest of ¥391.11 lakhs during
FY 2023-24 (Previous year ¥ 412.71 lakhs) earned on
unutilized government grant have been included in the above
Deferred Government Grant.

Utilization Certificate 0f ¥4842.80 lakhs has been submitted to
Department of Fertilizers ( Comprising Utilization 0f32597.77
lakhs during FY 2023-24 and%1277.77 lakhs during FY 2022-
23 and¥967.26 lakhs during FY 2021-22 ).

During the financial year 2023-24, the total amount incurred was
of an amount of Rs. 2765.11 1lakhs and details are as under:-

fafre 2023-24 2022-23 Particular 2023-24 2022-23
aiquff % foeg 1M 424.45 141.47 Advance against supplies 424.45 141.47
Tt T g, e1eft ek I e Material procured, yet to be

IETIRIDI) 489.80 733.89 consumed 489.80 733.89
forciar & 23-24 & forg Sfuwe) wfga Material procured and consumed

T TS YN hT TS arel 331,17 including GST for the FY 23-24

(3T T 3 Sfavia HT=rell I7H) 2558.87 34521 Rs. 331.17 (Recognized under

qﬁaﬁgmﬁm Wa; other income) 2558.87 345.21
w9 e & s (R ad 22-23 % Prior Year GST recognized as

o g ot o SfeEdt 57.20 € 3 Grant in Aid (prior year GST of

ST 377 3 149.04 T Hr=rar & Rs. 57.20 for FY 22-23 &

) 206.24 ) Rs.149.04 recognized under

W . S——— other income) 206.24 -

S — > 2765.11 345.21 Total Grant Income recognized in

Hﬂ\%ﬁmq(?ﬁ@ﬁ pre—— Profit & Loss Account 2765.11 345.21

> > GST Payment on used material

(et 1 SEH) - 57.20 (Reversal of GST) - 57.20
K 367936 1277.77 Total 3679.36 1277.77

HECEU! e eR AT 16 (if) % STTER HERIAT STEH W Sege!
wiwﬁ:%zwwqﬁmm@%ﬁr{w%@ﬁmﬁ
aﬁﬁwsrmaﬁm BTeATTeh o oy 21-22 3 22-23 H R
S0 S | =TSl el [ohAT T o) =] o H fuwed o o g
Wméwﬁaaﬁwﬁaﬁqﬁm&m%mﬁaﬁﬁw
w%ﬁmwmﬁsﬁ%waﬁgé%

As per the significant accounting policy 16 (ii) GST Input Tax
credit on Grant in Aid are not being availed and hence same
needs to be charged off to expenses. However during the financial
year 21-22 & 22-23 same was not charged to expenses. In the
current year the GST relating to previous year grant in Aid
expenses has been charged to as prior period expenses and with
corresponding increase in the Grant in Aid Income.
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30.10 (EE)SITI'%W@THEFF&:- 30.10 (A) Capital work in progress:-
G - et - S o oA frerteor stef o et a) For Capital - Work - in - progress ageing schedule:-
H Emﬁlﬁl's?qt’[ T ety %%’I’Ql’ﬁ?\ﬂ Amount in CWIP for a period of
HrescgaTsat oSS HH [1-2498 | 2-3 499 | 308 30 |l CWIP Less than 1 -2 years | 2 -3 years |More than 1 | Total
ﬂl\ - = year years
DPR Expenses on
TR =T |- 3.91 - - 3.91 SSP Plant . 391 - . 391
ST =3 Gt DPR Expenses on
it afEST |- 7.12 - - 7.12 Solar Power
V& Project - 7.12 - - 7.12
) DPR Expenses on
SR = - - - 457.17 457.17 Namrup-IV - 457.17 457.17

(@) ST & fore - swifer o, foreent g e forafiad @

(b) For capital - work in progress, whose completion is

Wﬁlﬂﬁp{mﬂgmﬁwﬁm RIEE overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.
forctfera To be completed in
lﬂwms‘\ﬁ a9 %T |1-2a% | 2-3a9 31‘:‘.& AF [t CWIP Less than 1 -2 years| 2 -3 years [More than 1 |Total
S ) year years
THuEd e |0 0 0 0 0 SSP Plant 0 0 0 0 0
TR St afEis0 0 0 0 0 Solar Power
Project 0 0 0 0 0
HEI-IV 0 0 0 0 0 Namrup-1V 0 0 0 0 0
(&) Foremmamefir srd ufieufat:- b) Intangible assets under development:-
() forermar SRS 341@ %a%aamj gl o fore - (a) For Intangible assets under development ageing schedule:-
(@ in lakhs)
Wﬂrgﬁ o arafr s %I'Q afsr Amount in CWIP for a period of
LN CWIP Less th 1-2 2-3 More than 1 [Total
1 a’é _a T 1 2 a‘& 2 ; 3 aﬁ gg-g _%m‘ y::f an years years ye(;;g an otal
W W SAP
24.50 B 24.50 Implementation 24.50 - - 24.50

feh TRESHT -1V, ST %%ﬂﬂﬂﬁ?%waﬁf&ﬁ
Wﬁfﬁaﬂtmmﬁammmaﬁgﬁaﬁﬁné
%W@Eﬁwmﬁmﬁsﬂaﬁmﬁaﬁééﬁm
SARERATTE Rl

et o fuf o STTEW, SAP ERP S/4 HANA o i~
oAt ITEH SR HiweaT & Afew st/ Rerfier de
Tk fea el

TSt 9T 39k favET, WRA R I A wEudt
afremT 3 forg Sgifaer Tt 2 2 2, 36 ae A 7 Sfterr
FTETRI, Tehrioh! e Tor1er Helieh o SHATET 0GR TSHT o fIg
TorerT st woT oft @ 2T 21 wEuHdT G SHT ST €T % fg
TATHEToh SRR 3h! - fh o fore fferaT erter sfsra 7 21

R o1t IRESHT- BTt & § TelTeehi § THE § Jedifad 2.4
TS | el aTe afeTSr 6 forg tfm ST e i 21
whT feen ot emoT o fory Saara ot = et forar ST R

Since the Project Namrup-IV is under consideration of DoF
and expected completion date and estimated cost has not been
notified by DoF, hence there is no ageing for overdue or
exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

As per management decision implementation of SAP ERP S/4
Hana has been put on hold till final implementation /
stabilization of Tally Prime Accounting Software.

SSP Project- Department of Fertilizer, Gol has given in
principal go ahead approval for the new SSP Project,
Subsequently Board has also given investment approval for
the project based on DPR Study, technical cum financial
appraisal. Tender for engagement of LSTK contractor for
establishment of SSP Project is under evaluation process.

Solar Power Project- Recently the consultant has submitted
the final DPR for the proposed 2.4 MW Solar PV Power
Project at Namrup. Developer for Installation of Rooftop
system is yet to be selected.
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30.11 e afiare giees o fequutt

SieTuwHiue 31 Usiieue o st smfen e aftasd awsiar
T 2005 T 2015 dh 10 ST 3 forq, fema mam om 58 32t f=mt
ST ITAT o |1 5 N1 hT STATTITT 2020 Teh o ToIU AT F@TaT
T 1| $9eF SIS, e 3T o T S It o ST
ftere & fore ST shafaet g 4 wmgitar T o gaTer fhe
M) Sifqw wEEhar IO T SEAT 31.03.2022 9 offl S
HHEaT IO § 78 HEnf g8 off foh aweia W e e W
TSTTETCR qeieaTd STel & SR =TelT Seqd T S A
Tif3T =Rt wTfreh =Ter / shfee / Sfere et o aream & wiféa g
3fera qwEt S T wATEfo R ST BTt afeeT ek
ST EHE T 31 HTE, 2024 7ok a9 &9 a1 &= 1 et 36
A | TEH ieeTa™ § 09 7S, 2024 =l 3T8H TLhE, 3AIT,
aTforsr ST forvmr o wferer i STeareqa 5 U S g3 3TEW
AR, JETT, ATfOrsa R o1 formT o wiear o framgam 17
TS, 2024 I AT HATAT ok TG o o< T I3 g3l 3T o
AT i o et | uiere Yok T EeHid S ohll 3T
U o Yo o sfi 17 0, 2024 o THSTIUH o ST o fomt
& 2023-24 H TR o U o T ) degem, 31
2020 & UTE 2024 T 4617.83 ARG ¥ T A= TiaeT
[oh oraiTa o O X ST o AT o ®9 H AR Hal o
Ted feEmT TR

30.12 TR AT hl it hl St o T I STt e

forT e 2021-22 < I 253.17 A T2 shi R HTeA 2l Feit <hT
T T TR 1 118 S TawTeh et o fHavTT o SgEm Teiehi
el 1 Y a1 fohaT T ST St o foeg, sheft o6 Tt o s
TTRT 2T ST ST TRAT| $6eh a1 fofet & 2022-23 W afifr =6t
ifcreh AT NUE o TR 9 EEl 1 crar-siRan foram i,
AT fomt e 2021-22 % forw Ffee st et & weiferd w=ft
fort o 22-23 st @ @ wnifiver fopam T BTedifeR SHTET T
ST T Jedeh! § Hisfe ol ford o 2324 4 &=t 7 253.17
TR T TIRT STGTeRL ST 36 HIHT ook T& o1 ohl @ shi 715 it
(T =hT ) ol ST ek A I G 2

30.11 Note on Gas Transportation Charges

The initial Gas Transportation Agreement between BVFCL &
AGCL was made for 10 Years effective from the Year 2005 to
2015. It was further extended for a period of 5 Years i.e. up to
2020 with the same terms and conditions. Thereafter, 4 Nos. of
MoU were signed by both the Companies to transport the gas
as per the terms and conditions of the Original Contract. The
validity of the last MoU was up to 31.03.2022. It was agreed
in the said MoU's that on signing of the agreement AGCL
shall submit the revised invoices with retrospective effect and
balance amount will be adjusted through monthly invoices /
through credit / debit notes as deemed fit by the parties.
However the Transportation Charges and the Agreement
could not be finalized upto March 31, 2024. In the matter a
meeting was held on May 09, 2024 at Assam Secretariat
chaired by Secretary to Govt of Assam, Industries,
Commerce& PE Dept. As directed by Secretary to Govt of
Assam, Industries, Commerce & PE Dept a meeting was held
on May, 17, 2024 between the management of both the
companies. In the said meeting the management of both the
companies agreed on the Transportation Charges. Based on
the MOM dated May 17, 2024 between the management of
both the companies the Transportation charges has been
revised in the FY 2023-24. Accordingly the excess
Transportation charged from April 2020 to March 2024
amounting to Rs. 4617.83 lakhs has been shown under
Exceptional items as Relinquishment of liability on settlement
of dispute.

30.12 Prior period error for shortage of inventory of
finished goods

During the FY 2021-22 shortage of inventory of finished
goods amounting to Rs 253.17 lakhs were identified and as per
the directives of the BoD the value of inventory was carried in
the books and a corresponding provision against the same was
created for the amount equivalent to the value of shortage.
Subsequently in the FY 2022-23 the inventory was accounted
based on the physical verification report of the committee
hence the inventory pertaining to the shortage of urea for FY
2021-22 was charged off to consumption of the FY 22-23.
However the provision created existed in the books of
account. The error has been rectified in the FY 23-24 by
increasing the inventory by the amount of Rs. 253.17 and
crediting the prior year material consumed (shortage of urea)
to that extent.
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30.13-3A =R SR RT

STT o6 Fe, Forcreft Fa H =, T Uel T ol o T 311
Heiferd ST o Heer & AT TRl TR s 2

30.13-Additional Information

Additional information in regard to value of Imports,
Expenditure in Foreign Currency, Stores & Spares
consumption, and other related details are furnished as under:-

feremor

. 2023-24 2022-23 S.N¢ Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
1) | 3A&rd EFWC\F\’IRCT?H U HTUR 1) | Value of Imports calculated
S EEARGAERIRIRI on CIF basis
i. shedl "I - i. Raw Materials -
il. q‘fﬂ"'l?fq'lﬁ 37.47 352.42 ii. Capital Goods 37.47 352.42
iii. 12 Ud TRE UTeE - iii. Components & spare parts -
2) EL g‘;\’rﬁam 46.27 10.41 2) | Expenditure in Foreign Currency | 46.27 10.41
1. 3cUTel i TRIE - i. Purchase of products -
ii, TRl SITRTT - ii. Know-how -
iii. TR Tt eeh - iii. Professional Consultancy Fees -
iv. 311 rEf(IT) - iv. Other Materials(Travelling) -
3) AT f3hT TTU TETe SFiT S dfed e ATd, Her 3T 3) Value of Raw Materials, Stores & Spare parts and
; : Components including Chemicals& Catalysts consumed:-
T ITEH IR -
. | ferawor 2023-24 % 2022-23 | % seno| Particulars | 2023-24 % 2022-23 | %
i. | st 105.90 0.64% 149.64 0.72% i. | Imported 105.90 0.64% 149.64 0.72%
ii. | TeEl 16,614.76  199.36% | 20615.50 [99.28% ii. | Indigenous  [16,614.76  |99.36% | 20615.50 [99.28%
HA 16,720.66 | 100% 20765.14 (100% Total 16,720.66  |100% 20765.14 |100%
4) ﬁésﬁ‘ng‘rﬁ'a;qﬁ - _ 4) Earning in Foreign Currency - -
A
5) IEYT U faemter 5) Research & Development
D
oh. TS oI (a) Revenue Expenditure - -
. g1 o5 (b) Capital Expenditure
6) AT AR : 6) Other Information's :

) THUAT o ATH I T TS 316 AU oh ST o e
aufi guferT s o T I El

@) SATHY Hufxr Rt SR - 31 0, 2024 G SHMHET o
(e arfifm, 1988 (1988 1 45) 31T 36 ded M T
frmt % ded st guft wed % Ty s o Raes e

o

TSR [ AT A ord 72

) et Tewhieet - St bt 31 7T, 2024 o fopelt it sl 2
forefler €I A1 31 FAURTAT g foepet fewhieet =ifva T8t
[ERIRRIK

a) Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name
of the Company : All the properties are held in the name
of company.

b) Details of Benami Property held - There are no
proceedings initiated or pending against the company for
holding Benami Property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act,. 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made
there underas on 31 March, 2024.

¢) Wilful Defaulter — The company has not been declared
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lenderas on 31 March, 2024.
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o) SHUTAT ok BT el THIN - 0T T 31 0T, 2024 T
St ferfem, 2013 T T 248 AT ShAT AT, 1956

TRT 560 o dad Gei THTH HUT=1 o T h1s oeT Tal 2

3) hufat shi g URAT ST ATATET - A T

=) ToReet hiwt a1 Agferet HiEt T forarur - St 3 forfiar
aﬁ%aﬁmﬁs@a&@rmaﬁma&mﬁwmﬁémﬁ
fRaral --

30.14- SRETUHEAT T

afRiT 3 @A CoBOL H T ST &1 ST Ueh g T SoTTedt 2
BT 3T ATFEI HETIdT SUTsH e 81 CoBOL HTdaaT i
Jffee gre @9a TEl &, SAfiT ol STRfeT Hidea—
forftera 2023-24 SR o g T

a9 2023-24 TN WS § Al o shri-aa st ATt off| 3a
AT o SR, T STANTHAT QT SIS, T+ COBOL
3T et U T TR | HSh T =0T A, 9TEe fishf€ COBOL
@ frata for o i foee el o smmanq fore o) 3ef & emama
T TH 3 TR ATAT 5| ST JUMTA T THHTAE T o
for Seheitr et oft 3t 75) ot i STTawreRdT & AR
AT R Reerliartr 7 STufera aw & HAfaes g &)
FhfeTT, et = wrfieR T COBOL ¥ 2eft & gt At
TrenT oh EaTaRoT o6 T I o alTa €1 Ufe AT bl warm i shi
HATE & ST oh IV TS LT T AT AL fohaT ST e

T AT, H ST T8t STYTS TS S=Iferd 5o 3 ST,
AT CoBOL |2 sht oI 7T 7, forereh ae wfarfs
T foretram/asie T {3 ST 21 IS oft stawaes aftad
U farfe qTied e A arid/sr e giafs i 3ere o st
g/t gt urfa s frarsmar 2l

30.15- Frser i hr gerT
. ik TohedH T ¥ e qUITTohd (o T 3, féremer Stet 31w

FEITETEN

T, Uz 998 & iche S A femm U €, St e for St=ren T et

T N et o o STeRe R, et +ft STTewren &, I T,
refafterd ST affend feram T2l

d) Relationship with Struck off- The company has no
transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of
the companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act,
1956ason31 March,2024.

¢) Compliance with number oflayers of companies — Not
Applicable.

f) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency-
The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency
or Virtual Currency during the financial year. - -

30.14- Audit Trail

The companies accounts were maintained in CoBOL which
is a very old system. Hardware and software support is not
available. Audit Trial is not possible in CoBOL software
therefore Tally accounting software was chosen to be
implemented in financial year 2023-24.

Financial year 2023-24 was the implementation period of
Tally in our Organization. During this period, our users
were working on both applications, i.e. COBOL and Tally.
In transition phase, master records were exported from
COBOL and then imported to Tally. Many times errors
occurred while importing to Tally. Backlog entries were
also done to run the two systems in parallel. Customization
as per the company requirement and stabilization took more
than expected time. Therefore, Tally implementation
Partner advised to enable the Edit Log only after
completion of transfer of all Master Records from COBOL
to Tally. Due to the above the Audit trail could not be
implemented.

Further as per the prevailing practice followed by the
company in the erstwhile CoBOL software was adopted in
Tally whereby the deletion / modification in entries are not
done. Any change required is done by passing rectification
entry or by reversing the entry passed / improper entry and
passing the correct/ proper entry.

30.15- Previous year's comparison

a)

b)

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest lakh of rupees
except where otherwise stated.

Previous year's figures have been shown in brackets unless
otherwise stated. Previous year's figures have been
regrouped, rearranged and reclassified, wherever
necessary.
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BVECL conducted dealer and retailer training programmes at various locations in Assam & West Bengal in the presence of
BVFCL Marketing Team and BVFCL channel partners. Discussed on BVFCL product portfolios Visions, present fertiliser
scenarios, BVFCL Upcoming New products and plan of fertilizers for the upcoming season of Boro Paddy Crop.
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Annual Sales Conference & Marketing Meet of BVFCL Marketing and Finance Team held by BVFCL in Kaziranga, Assam
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